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Independent Auditor’'s Report
To The Members of DHFL Advisory & Investments Private Limited

Report on Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of M/s DHFL Advisory &
Investments Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“Financial Statements”).

In cur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, of its loss and total comprehensive income
(comprising loss and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year then ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {(SAs) specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {ICAI) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the director’'s report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The director’s report
is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

QOur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be




When we read the director's report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance
and take appropriate action as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to cobtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accerdance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these Financial Statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit., We also:

¢ . Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our.gpinion, The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud i ;_m than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve coilusion, forge;ﬁinten\tmnal omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control" : (2




Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant te the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)
(i} of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls,

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overali presentation, structure and content of the Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued
by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in
“Annexure B"” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a,

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books:

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read W|th Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) rules, 2015 as amended n




On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31st March, 2024, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from belng appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial contrels over financial
reperting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controis, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure B”; and

. The provision of section 197 read with schedule V of the Act are not applicable to
the company for the vear ended 31st March, 2024; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Repert in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and accerding to the explanations
given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its Financial Statements- refer Note -14 to the
Financial Statements;

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Pretection Fund by the Company.

iv) (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, ne funds {which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been advanced or lcaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds {which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11{e), as. prowded under (a) and (b) above, contain
any material mlsstatement




{(v) The Company has not declared/paid any dividend during the year and
hence provision of Section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

(VI) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has
used accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, Further, during
the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit
trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is
applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the.
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 on preservation of audit trail
as per statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024.

ot
DINESH KUMAR BACHCHAS
Partner

Membership No. 097820

For and on behalf of o
K.K.MANKESHWAR & CO., B
Chartered Accountants

FRN:~ 106009W

GO Loy 2o e MLt §5 A
New Delhi, dated the

U5 MAY 2071



Annexure “"A"” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirement” section of our Independent Auditors’ Report to the
members of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended March
31, 2024, we report that:

1. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

a. The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment as at
31st March, 2024 hence reporting under clause 3(i}{(a) to 3(i)(d) of the
Order is not applicable.

b. No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending
against the Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as
amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

2. As the Company does not have any inventory at the year end, accordingly clauses
(ii}{a) and (ii)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

3. The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, Lo companies, firms, Limited Liability Parinership or any cther parties.
Therefore, the provisions of the Clause 3(iii), (iit)(a}, (iit)(b), (iii){c), (iii){d},
(iii){e), and {iii){f) of the said Order are not applicable to the Cempany.

4. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
made any investments in, provided any guarantee cr security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other partics. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(iii}{a), 3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(c), 3(iii){d), 3(iii){e) and 3(iii)(f) are
not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon,

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning
of Section 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the
extent notified.

6. According to the information and explanation given to us, we are informed that
the maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act 2013.

7. According to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:

a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur
examination of the books of accounts, and records, the Company is generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including income-tax, as
applicable, with appropriate authorities. The provisions relating to provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, goods and service tax, cusiom duty, cess
and other statutory dues are not applicable to the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2024
for a perioql"'"""_.ih:o_j_'r_e:';than six months from the date on when they become




b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of

the Company, there is no due in respect of income tax, goods and service tax
and duty of customs as on 31st March 2024 which have nol been depusiled on

account of a dispute are as follows:

Name of Nature of Amount Period for Forum where

Statute dues (Rs in which the dispute is
Lakhs) amount related pending

Inceme Disallowance

Tax u/s 14A 99.45 | AY 2017-18 ITAT- U/fs 156

Income Disallowance

Tax u/s 14A 105,101 A.Y 2018-19 ITAT- U/s 156

8. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961({43 of 1961).

9. (a) The Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any lender,
Hence reporting under clause 3(ix}{a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b} The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financiat
institution orgovernment or any government authority.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no
outstanding term leans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting
under clause 3{ix){c) of the Order isnot applicable.

{d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds
raised on short- term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the vear
for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of
or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting
on clause 3(ix)(f)of the Order is not applicable.

10. (a) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further

11.

public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting
under clause 3{x)(a) of theOrder is not applicable.

(b} During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or
optionally} and hence reporting under clause 3(x)}{b) of the Order is not
applicable.

(a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year,

(b) No report under sub-section {12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has
been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 thh thg Centraj Government during the year and upto
the date of this report. - .




(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no
whistle blower complaints received during the year by the Company.

12.The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of

13.

14,

15.

16,

17.

18.

19.

the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the
examination of the records of the Company, all transaction with related parties
are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 wherever
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards. The Provision of section 177
are not applicable to the company and accordingly reporting under clause
3{xiii) insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the
company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinien and based on our examination, the company does not have an
internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as
per provisions of the Companies Act 2013,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
exarminalion of the records of Lhe Company, the Company has nol enlered inlo
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, clause (xv} of paragraph 3 of the Order Is not applicable.

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section
45-1IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause
3(xvi)(a), (b) and {c) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented
by the management of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016} has only one CIC as
part of the Group.

The Company has incurred cash losses during the financiat year covered by
our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutery auditors of the Company during
the year,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of
Directors and management and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to cur attention, which causes
us te believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one vear from the balance'sheet date will get discharged by the company as
and when they fall due.




20.{(a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) on other thanongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in
Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-
section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

(b} There are no any amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of
section 135 of the Companies Act, pursuant to any ongoing project, has been
transferred to special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section

(6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause
" 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

DINESH KUMAR BACHCHAS
Partner

Membership No. 097820 L
For and on behalf of i
K.K.MANKESHWAR & CO., .- “hair
Chartered Accountants gy SUULRLLE
FRN:- 106009W

LU, 200 F2 O L LSy L
New Delhi, dated the

B £ MAY 7074



“"ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF DHFL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE

LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of
Sectlon 143 of the Companles Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s DHFL
Advisory & Investments Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 1CAL and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit _o_pin\ion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.., =+ ="




-Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial controi over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financiai
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of coliusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degrec
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India.
..iq\&\&1

DINESH KUMAR BACHCHAS
Fartner

Membership No. 097820

For and on behalf of
K.K.MANKESHWAR & CO,,
Chartered Accountants
N

New Delhi, dated the

e

§ 6 MAY 2074



DHEL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Baiance Sheet
as af March 31, 2024

(Currency © Ks in lakhs}

As at As at
Note March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-Current Assers
Financial Assets
{m Oiher financial assets 4 1.55 1.55
Current Assets
(&) Financizl Assets
(i) Cash and cash equivajents 3 53.83 56.81
{b) Other financial assets 4 . 0.29
Total Assets 55.38 305
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Lquity
(@) Equity share capital 5 7.501.00 T7.501.60
{h Other equity 6 (7.451.97 {7.448.22)
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities:
1) Other financial liabilities 7 6.20 5.72
{b} Other current liablities 8 0,15 0.15
Tatal Equity and Liahilitics 55.38 58.65
Matenal accourting policies 2

As per our report of even date attached.
For KK.MANKESHWAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.-[06009W

or and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
DHFL Advisory & Investments Private Limitcd

e
ORI . .
;/r < Mr. Nirav Adani
Director

DiN:10122297

RS

Ms Revati Sawant
Comparny Secretary

Mr. Pradeep Sawant
Director
DIN : 09857171

(%
u:)"‘\*

Mr. Naresh Kedia
Chief Finaneiat Officer

Dinesh Kumar Bachchas
Partner

Membership No, 097820
New Delhi, May 06, 2024



DHFL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss
For the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Rs in lakhs)

Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue from operations
interest income . -
Totat Revenue from operations - -
Other income g 0.51 0.02
Total Income .51 .02
Expenses
Other expenses i 4.26 5.46
Totat Expenses 4.26 546
Profit/(Loss) before tax (3.75) (3.44)
Less: Tax Expenses
Current tax - -
Deferred tax - -
Profit/iLoss) for the year (3.75) (5.44)

Orher comprehensive income
Herns that will rot be reclassified to Statement of profit or {oss -
{tems that will be reglassified to Statement of profit or loss

Net other comprehensive income -

Total comprehensive income/{loss) for the year {3.73) {5.44)
Earnings per equity share (Basic and Diluted) {Rs.) H {0.0Q) {0.013
Material accounting policies 2

The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report ol even date attached.

For KK.MANKESHWAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm chistratinn No.-106009W =
/
My, Pradeep Sawant Mr. Nirav Aduani
Director Direclor

Dinesh !\umar Bachehas DN - (9857171 DIN: 10122297

Partner “ wf _—
Membership No. (97820 UJ)\A \ @\ m&
New Dethi, May 06, 2024 ') A

M. Naresh Kedia Ms Revali Sawant

Chiet Financial Gificer Company Secretary



DHIL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flow
For the year gnded March 31, 2024

{Currency : Rz in lakhs)

. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit / (loss) before tax
Interest on loan
Operating cash flow before working capital changes

{Increase} / Decrease in other current assets
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) in other financial liabilities
Cash {used in)/from operations

Less: Income taxes (paid} / refund
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities (a}

. Cash flow from investing activitics

Net cash (used in)/ from investing activities (b}

. Cash flow {rem financing activities

Net cash (used in)/from financing setivities {c)
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (a+b-+c)

Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year
Casli and vash equivalents as sl eod af The year

Cash and Cash Equivalents Comprise of:
Balances with banks in cunent accounts
Cash in [{and

For the year ended
March 31,2024

For the year ended
March 31,2023

(3.75) (544}
- {0.82)
(3.75) (5.46}
0.29 .
0.00 1.94
0.43 {0.01)
{2.98) (3.33)
(2.98) (3.53}
(2.98) {3.53)
56.81 60.34
18 5681
53.82 556.80
.01 0.01
53.83 56.81

The cash flow statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method’ set out in Indian Accounting Standard-7,

"Statement of cash flow"

The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the financial statements

For KK.MANKESHWAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.-106009W

Dinesh Kumar Bachchas \\u/; !

As per our report of even date attached.

Partner »
Membership No. 897820  TFF
New Dethi, May 06, 2024

'(H‘
¥

o
i)

X1r. Pradeep Sawant
Director
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Chief Financial Officer
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wnd on behalf of the Board of Dircetors of
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Mr. Nirav Adani
Director
DIN:10122297

R

Ms Revati Sawant
Company Sceretany



DHEFL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Cusrency : Rs in lakhs)

A.Eguity Share Capital:

Particulars Arnouant
Balance as at March 31, 2022 7,501.00
Add: [ssues during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 7.501.00
Add: Issues during the year -
Balance as at Maech 31, 2024 7.501.00

B. Other Equity:

Particulays
Reserves and Total
Surplus

Balance as at March 31, 2022 {7,442.78) (7.442.78}
Add/(Less): Transfer during the year - -
Add: Profit during the year (5.44) (5.44}
Less: Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) - .
Balance as at March 31, 2023 {7,448.22}) {7,448.22)
Add/(Less): Transfer during the year - -
Add: Profit during the year (3.75) (3.75)
Add: Other comprehensive income {net of tax) - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 {7,451.97) {7,451.97)

2 Forand on hehaif of the Board of Directers of
34 DHFL Advisory & Invesiments Private Limited
~ 3

For KK.MANKESHWAR & CQ.
Chartered Accountonts
Firm Registration No,-106300W

Mr. Pradeep Sawant Mr. Nirav Adani
Dinesh Kumar Bachchas Director Director
Partner DIN: 09857171 DIN: 10122297
Membership No. 097820 b,\.f‘
New Delhi, May 06, 2024 o o,)"\ @\ *éf/ '
Mr. Naresh Kedia Ms Reviti Sawant

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary



DHFL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

2.1

2.IA

2.2

23

GENERAL INFORMATION

DNFL Advisory & Investments Pve Lid. (DAIPL), incorporated under the Companies Act. 2013, is 2 subsidiary company of Piramaf
Capital and Heusing Finance Limited and carrying on the business of providing all kinds of advisory / consultancy services and (ces
based intcrmediation activities including but not limiled 1o the treasury, banking, insurance and other financial services as well as
marketing, advertising and business prometional activities; soliciting or procuring insurance business as a corporate agenl i respect of al)
classes of insurance, consuiting (or soliciting of all types of loans, investment and portiolio research, market rescarch, The registered
office of the Company is in Unil Nu.601, 6th Floor, Amiti Building, Apastya Corporate Park, Kamam Junction, Opp. Fire Station, 1LI3S
Marg. Kurla West. Mumbai City, 400070, The Financial Statement were anthorised for issuc by the Company's Board ol Directors on
061h May 2024

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
Rasis of preparation of financial statements :

The fmancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as per
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter ("Ind AS™) on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values atl the end of each reporting period. Accounting policies have been
consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision (o an exisling accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. All amounts included in the financial statements are reported in lakhs of [ndian
rupees (Rs. in lakhs) except share and per share data, uniess otherwise stated. The financial statements are prepared on a poing concern
basis,

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that effect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilitics on the date of financial statemcnts and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Difference between the actual results and estimates arc recognised in the period in which the results are known / materialised,

The Company incurred a net loss of Rs. 3.75 Lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2024 and, as of that date, the Company has
accumulated losses of Rs, 7,451.97 Lakhs. The Company is nol carrying out any commercial operations and is in the process of setiling
remaining ducs and completing assessments with authoritics. However, these accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis on

accrual basis in accordance willy the Tndian Accounting Standards.
Present available cash and bank balance is sufficient to sustain the current level of operations. Hence the financial statements arc prepared
O 2 goIng CONCCR.

Operating Cycle

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on currenl/ non-current classification.

An assel is [reaied as current when it is:

*Expected 1o be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

*Expected to be realised within twelve months aficr the reporting period, or

*Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle 3 liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period
All pther assets are classified as non-current.

A liability 1s treated as current when it is;

Expected to be settled in normal operating cyclc.

*Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

*There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The aperating cycle is the time between the acquisition of asscts for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The

Company has identificd twelve months as its operating cyele.

Revenue Recagnition :
Revenue from contract with customers is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss through following steps:

i. Identification of the contract or contracts with the customers
ii. Identification of the performance obligations in the contracts
1. Detennination of the transaction price

. iv. Allocation of the transaction price (o the performance obligations in the contract

v. Recognition of revenue when company satisfy a performance obligation,

Revenue, mainly comprises of charges towards Advisory and Consultancy services. The same is recognized on performance of service,

-

Other Income P
Revenue is recognised when there is reasonable certainty as to measurement and ultimaie realizatioh of the same



2.4 Financial Instrament
A Tinancial instrument 15 any contract thal gives rise 10 a financial assel of one entity and Mnancial liability or equity instrument off
another entity.
Recognition and initial measurciment
Financial assets and {inancial liabilitics are recognised when the Company becomes o party 1o the contractual provisions of the
instrunients.
Financial assets and Inancial liabilities are inftially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly alvibutable o the
acguisition or issue of {inancial assets and financial liabilitics {other than financial asscls and financial lighilities at fair valuc through
profit or foss) are added (0 or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or f{inancial Jiabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recopnition. Transaction costs directly attributable 1o the acguisition of Tinancial assets or financial liabilities at fair value trough profit
or loss are recognised immediately in profit or ioss.

(I) Financial Asset:

Financial asscts thal meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

 the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

& the contraciual tenns of the instrument give rise on specificd dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assels thal meel (he following conditions are subsequently measurcd al fair vatue through Other Comprehensive Income
(FVTOCI):

» (he financial assct is held within a business node! whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and sefling the
Iinancial assets; md

® (e contractual termis of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and inicrest

on the principai amount outstanding.

By default, all otlrer financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

All investments in equily instrumerts are initially measured at fair value, the company may, on initial recognition, irrevoecably elect 1o
measure same cither at FVTQCI or FVTPL.

A financial assel 15 derecognised only when:

+ The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the NMnancial assets or

*+ retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assets, but assunies a contractual obligation to pay the cash {low
o one or more recipicnts,

{II) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

An equily mstrement is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its labilitics. Equity
imstruments 1ssued are recognised at the proceeds received.

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amnortised cost using the effective interest rate method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilitics are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration recognised by the Company
as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL,

Financial ligbilitics that arc not held-for-trading and arc not designated az at FVTTL arc meesured at amortised cost at the cnd of
subscquent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of {mancial liabilitics that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are
determined bascd on the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calcutating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant perfod. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments {including all fees and
poinis paid or reecived that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate} a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a financial liability.
Dcrecognition of financial Habilities:

The Company derecogniscs financial liabilitics when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. An exchange between the Company and the lender of debt and other instruments with substantially different lerms 15 accounted
for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.

Investment in Subsidiarics and Associates:

[nvestment in subsidiaries and associates are recognized and carried at cost. Where the carrying amount of an investinent 18 greater than
its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately o its recoverable amount and the difference is transftired to the
Statement of Profit and Loss. On disposal of investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is
charged or credited to the Statement of Profil and Loss.

Reclassifications:

If the business model under which the Company holds financial assets changes, the financial assets affected are reclassified. The
classification and measurement requirements related to the new category apply prospectively from the first day of the first reporting
period following the change in business mode! that result in reclassifying the Company’s financial assets. During the current financial
year and previous financial yearfhiere was-no change in the business model under which the Company holds financial assets and therefore
no reclassifications were madg:, - .. ;




DHFL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Comtinued)

For the year ended March 31, 20024
Impawrment;
The Company measures the losy allowance for & linancial insteament at an amount equal 1o (he tiferime expected eredit losses 1f the credit
risk on that financiyl tnstrument has increased signiticantly since initial recognition 11 the eredit risk on a financial nstrument baus not
increased significantly since initial recognition. the Company measures the loss allowance For that financial instrument at an amount
equal to |2-month expected credil lusses 12-month expected credit losses are porion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent
the lifetime cash shortlzls that will result if default occurs within she 12 manths after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls
that are predicted over the next 12 months
A loss allowance for full fifelime ECL is required for a financial instrument it the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since iniiial recognition For all other financial mstruments, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL
For assessing increase in credit risk and impainment loss, the company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk
characteristics with the objective of Tacilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on
a timely basis
Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and disclosed separately rom modification losses or gains that are accounted for as an
adjustment of the financial asset’s gross canrying value
The Company s established 2 policy to perform an assessment, at the end of cach reporting period, of whether a financial instrument’s
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the
remaining lite of the financial instrument

The impainment requirements for the recognition #nd measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied to debl instruments at
FVTOCT except that the !oss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and is not reduced {rom the currying amount in the
balance sheet

The Financiat assets for which the Company has na reasonable expectations of recovering cither the entire outstanding amount, or &

proportion thereod. the gross carrying amount of the finaneial asset is reduced This is considered a {partial} derecognition of the financl

asset

Write off:

Loans and debt securities are writtet off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of rectvering the financial asset {either in its
entirety or a portion of it) This is the case when the Company determines that the borrower does nol have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficicnt cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the wrile-off. & wrile of [ constitutes a derecognition evenl, The
Company may apply enforcement activitics to financial asscts woitten off, Recoveries resuftivgg from the Company’s enfircement

aclivities will result in gaing -
T
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DHFL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements {Continued)
For the year ended Moveh 31, 2024

2.5

2.6

2.7

28

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents inziude cash on hand, balance in current account and Balances with banks in deposits accounis wilh orepinal
maturity of fess than 3 months Short term and liquid imvestments being subject to more than insignificant risk of change ip vilue, aze not
included as part of cash and cash equivalents

Impairmert of non financial assets:

The Company assesses sl cach Balance Sheet date whether theee is any indication that an asset may be impaired For the pueposes of
assessing impaitment, the smallest identifiable group of assets (hat generates cash inflows from conlinuing use that are larpely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets ar proups of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit If any such indication
exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of
the cash penerating uhit to which the asset belongs is tess than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable
amount The reduction is treated as an impairment lass 2nd is recopnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 1f at the Balance Sheet date
there is an indication that previvusly assessed impairment loss no longer exists or may have decreascd, the recoverable amount is
reassessed and the asser is reflected at the recoverable amount

Earnings Per Share :
The Company reports basic and diluicd camings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Eamings per shure The basic sarnings per

share is computed by dividing the net profit atiribwmable to the equity shareholders by weighted average number of eywity shares
outstanding during the reporting year

The number of cquity shares used in computing diluted carnings per share comprises the weighted average number of shares congidered
for deriving basic earnings per sharc and also weighted average number of equity shares which would have been issued on the conversion

of all dilutive potential shares In computing diluted eamings per share only potential equily shares that arc dilutive are included.

Taxes on Income
[ncome tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax Income tax expense comprises current and deferred

taxes [ncome lax expense is recopnized in the Starement of Profit and Loss except when they rclate to items that are recogrized outside
profit o Ioss (whether in other comprehensive income or directly (n equity), in which case fax is also recognized outside profit or loss

Current Tax
The tax currently payable is based on the estimated taxable profit for the year for the Company and is calculated using applicable tax rajes

and tax [aws that have been enacted or substantively enacted Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax' as reporied in the Statement of
Profil and Loss because of items af income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items thet are never taxuble o
deductible The current tax is calculated using applicable tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reparting period

Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets aad liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of

assets and liabilittes and their respective tax bases, and unutilized business loss and depreciation caery-forwards and fax credits. Such
deferred tax assets and lhabilities are computed separately for each taxable entity Deferred tux assets are recognized to the extent that il is
probable that future taxable income wilt be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax lesses, depreciation

carry-farwards and unused tax credits could be utilized

Dreferred tax asscts and 1iabilitics are measured based on the tax rates that are expected o apply in she period when the assel is realized or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively cnacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax assets and Habilives are offset when there is a legally enforecable right to set off current tax assets against current lax
liabilitics and when they relate 1o income taxes levied by the same taxalion authority and the Company intends to sctile its current tax

assets and liabilities on 2 net busis

Dreferred tax assels (nchude Minimum Alternative Tax (MA'T) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which gives rise to future
econiomic benefits in the form of adjustment of Future income tax liability Accordingly, MAT is recognized as deferred tax asset in the
balance sheel when the assels can be messured reliably and 1t is probable that Lhe future economie benefit associated with the asset will be

realized




DHFL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes 10 the Financial Stalements (Continued)
For the yeor ended March 31, 2024

29

2.1

21

212

Provisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assels
*Provisions are recognised only when: an entity has a present obligation (lepal or construetive) as a result of a past event, and

*iLis probalile thal an outllow of resources embodying sconomic benels will be required to setile the obligation, and

va reliable estimate can be made of the ainpunt of the ohligation
Provision is measured using the cash flows estimatod to setife the present oblipation and when the effect of time value of maoney is

material, the carrying amount of the provision is the present value of those cash flows Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure
required to seftle a provision is Tecognised only when it is virtually certain that the reimbursernent will be received

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of:
* a present obligetion arising from past events, when it is net probable that an outflow of resources will be required ta settle the obligatiol

and
*a present obiigation srising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible

Where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under

such contract, the present obligation under the contract is recoghised and measured as a provision

Contingent Assets:
Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements when economse inflow is prohable.

Provisions, cantingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at cach Balance Sheet date

Commitments
Commilrnents are future liabihities for contractual cxpenditure, classilied and diselosed as follows:

*  Estimated amount of conlract remaining to be exccuted on capital account and not provided for;
+other non-cancellable commitments, il any, to the extent Lhey are considered material and relevant in the opinion of management

Exceptional items
An item of income or expense which its size, type or incidence requires disclosure in order to improve an snderstanding of the

perfermance of the Contpuny i freated 03 an exeeptional item and the same is disclosed i e retes o swoounts

Critical accounting ysdgements and key sources of estimation uncertainties
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make eslimates and sssumptions

considered in the reperted amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent lisbilities) and the reported income and expenses during
the year The Management belicves that the eslimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent wwl 1easouable

Fuure resutts could differ due 10 these estimates and the differences beiween the actual resulls and the estimates are recognised in the

periods in which the results are known / materialise

Tippaument of Gnancial sssess
The impairment provisions tor financial agsets are based on assumptions abow risk of default and expected loss rates The company uses

judgement in making these assumptions and sclecting the inputs to the impairment caleulation, based on campany’s past lustony, existing
market conditions as well as forward fooking estimates at the end of each reporting period and accordingly Impairment has boen
estimated

Income Taxes

The Company's tax jurisdiction is India, Significant judgements are involved in estimating budgeted profits for the purposc of paying

advance tax, determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected 1o be paid / recovered for uncertain tax positions

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financials assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Bafance Sheet cannot be messured based on quoted

prices in active markets. their fair value is measured nsing vahation techniques which involve various judgements and assumptions

Lining Coneern Assumpuon
Going concern assumption has been applicd on the basis that the company will able to continue ts eperation in the foresceable fture, and




DIFL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements
as at March 34, 2024

(Currency : Rs in lakhs)
As at As at

March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

3 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand 0.01 0.01
Balances with banks in current accounts 53.82 56.80
Total 53.83 56.81
4  Other financial assets

Non-current Assels

Security Deposit 1.55 1.55
Current Assets

Advance to other - 0.29
Total 1.53 1.84
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DHEL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
as af March 31, 2024

{Currency © Rs in lakhs)

Asal As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

5 [Equity Share Capital

Authorized share capital:
2.00.00.000 (March 31, 2023: 9,00,00,000) Equity Shares af Rs. 1¥- each 2,000 9000

Total 2,000 2.000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity share capital:
Qpening balance 1,501 7.5301
Add: Issue of shares during the year . -

Totaf 7.501 7.5M

Reconcilintion vf the sharis outstanding af ihe b nd at the end of the reporting vear

Equity shares March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Y No. of shares Amouat Mo of shares Armnouit
Al the beginning of the vear 75.010.004 7.501 75.010.000 7.3
Adid: Issue of shares during the vear - . . .
Quitstanding at the end of the vear 75.610,000 7.501 75.010.000 7.561
Decails of sharves_hekd by Promuter
e
. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Hicuiars T -
Particufars No. oF shiares [% Holding  [No of shares % Holding
Diramal Capital & Housing Finange Limited 75,009,985 10{W% 75.009.985 100%

Parficulars March 31, 2024 March 312023
No. of shares | % Holding  [No of shares % Haolding
Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited 75,009 955 100% 75,005,985 1%

The Cempariy has only one class of equity shares having a fuce value of Rs 10 per share Each holder of equity share js entitted to
one vole per share The Company has not declared or paid any dividend

Devails ol shares held by Vromwrier

Particulars March 31, 2024
: No. of shares | % Holding Change During the vear
Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited 73 009 985 100%| Nil
N March 31, 2023
p :
articulars No. ol shares | % Holding Change During the vear
Piramat Capital & Housing Finance Limied 75.009 985 100% Nil
6 Other equity
Reisined carnings
Opening Balance {7448 22) {7,442 78)
Net profiif(loss) for the vear (375} (5 44)
Closing Balance {7.45L.97) (7448 22%

Retained carnings are the profils that the Comnpany has camed il date, less any transfers to statutory reserve and dividends paid to
investors The amount that can be disiributed by the Company as dividends (o its equity shareholders is determined basad on the
financial statements of the Company and also considering the requirements of the Companies Act. 2013 T hus, the amounts
reporied above are not distributable in entirely




DHFL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the vear ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : Bs in lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
7T Other Financial Liabilities
Other Payables 6.20 5.72
Total 6.20 5.72
8  Other Current Liabilities
Statutory Dues Payable 0.15 0.15
Total {15 0.15
% Other Income
[aterest on [oan B 0.02
Provision no longer required 0.51 0
Total 0,51 0.02
{0 Other Kxpenses
Legal and professional fees 2.49 3.63
Bank Charges (.01 0.01
Duties and taxes 0.15 1R
Payments to auditors
- as audifor 1.50 L.50
- for other services - -
Other Expenses 0.1 ~

Total 4,26 3,46




DHFL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Naotes to the Finaneial Statements (Continued)

For the year eonded Moreh 31, 2024

{Cumeney . Rs inlakhs)

i} Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic and diluted EPS is compuied in accordance witl, Ind AS 33 “Eamings Per Share” specilicd under sectien 133 of the Companies Act,
The compuiation of sarnings per share 15 set out below:

12

For the year Fou (he year
Description ended ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Nel profie{loss) sttributable 10 equity shareholders {375) {5 44)
Weightad average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 75,000,985 75,009,985
Basic and Diluted EPS of face vaiue of Bs. 10 {0 00} (L)
The basic and diluted FPS is saine as there are no potentral diliitive equity shares
Ratios Mumeraior Denaminalor For the year For the year Yarance
ended ended
March 31, 2024 Wlarch 31, 2023
1| Current Batio Current Assels Current Liabilities 847 472 SRR,
1hy Dehi-Equiry Ratin Total Debt Sharcholders Bquity MNA NA NA
i bl Serviee Cevcernp e Tinga Farmmgrs wenitable fon debn Dol S vive WA NA seh
service
. ity Rali y &l - r— .

1) Retum on Equity Ratio Met Profits efley taxes Mc!a,‘:‘Shareholder 5 1008) ©10)  -2579%

Equiry
L Inventony lumsover ratio NA NA NA NA NA
it Trade Receivables lumiover ratio Net Credit Sales r\vmgc Accounts NA NA NA

Receivable
tei Trade payshbes wmover ratio Purchase Aveinpe Accounts A NA NA

Fayable
th Net capita!l Inmaover ratio MNet Sales Wocking Capital A NA A
{13 Met profit raric Met Profit after tax Mot Sales* HA NA A
141 Rewum on Capital employed i&::;ng before interest and - Capital Employed A NA NA
1h1 Ret on vestmen Interest weome Ulosing investmerts NA MA NA

* Nt srles for tha yeor by Nol (Mareh 31, 2023- NiI), hence this ratio is not dpplivatie
** yarfance due o ingreased accumuiated {osses

13 Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

i4

15

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, [*MSMED™Y which came inta forge Bom Qolober 2.
2006, certain disclosures sre required W by made refating to Micro, Small zud Medium enrerprises On the basis of the
information and records available with company including conliemarians sought froen suppliers on tepistration with specified
authoriry under MSMED, the amonnt of principal and intsrest cwtstanding during the year is Nil {Mareh 31, 2023 Nii)

Contingent liabilities & Commitments

For the year For the vear

Description ended crded
Maypeh 31, 2624 NMarch 31, 2023
Contingent fiabilitics
Tncome tax demand - AY 2017-18 94 46 9% 46
Income tex demand - AY 2018-i9 105 1i 105 1t
‘Fotat 204 57 204 37

Cupita} conumitrent - -

Scgment Reporting

The income of the Company comprises of solety dividend and interest income and accordingly there 21e na repartable segments
as specified in IND AS 108 ("Opeating Sewnent”™} which needs 1 be reported.




DITL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For e year eatded March 34, 2024

iCurrency - Bs in Takhs)

16 Information in zccordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard 24 on Related Party Disclosures,

List of Related Portics

A, Halding company
Piramu] Capital & Housing Finance Linited
Piramal Enterpases Limited - Sltimate Holding Company

B. Key Managerial Personnel & Birector
{a}Mr Pradeep Atmaram Sawant, Direclor
(b ) Mr Alok Bahl, Director (Resigned w e £ Aprit 13, 2023)

{e}Mr Nirav Adam, Direclor (Appointed as Additional Director w e £ April 19, 2023}

{d) Mr. Aditya Mulgund, CEO (Resigned w.e £, December 12, 2022)
{e} Mr Vinod Nekhiladi, CFQ {Resigned w e £ June 29, 2023}

{fy Wr Waresh Kedia, CFO (Appointed w.e { December 26, 20273)
{z) Ms Srishti Soni, CS (Resigned w e £ March 15, 2023)

{hyMs Urmila Rao, CS ((Appeinted w e Fivfarch 15, 2023 and Resigned w e § June 05, 2023)

{iy Ms Revati Sawunt {Appointed w e { November 3G, 2023)

C.  Fellow subsidiaries havirg transaction during the year
{a) DHFL Holdings Limited

1. Detnils of transzctions with related parties

Details of Transactions

Repayment of Advance given
- DHFL Holdings Limited

TOTAL

Interest Inceme
- DHEL Holdines Limited

TOTAL

Fellow Subsidiary

Mzrch 3
2024

L,

029

March 3¢,
2023

8.2¢

0,02

2.02

E.  Details of Balances with related parties

Lozn receivable & Entercst Accrued
- DHFL Holdings Limited

TOTAL

Fellow Subsidiney

March 31, hfavek 34,
2024 2023

- .28

- 0,39

MNote-The teansaction with the related parties are disclosed only till the relationship exists

¥, Disctosure reguived under Section 186 (4) of the companies Act, 2013,

b Partieulars of Eoans mven

As af March

Luzn Fatevest

Hepayments  As at Mareh

Name of the Loance 2023 Given  Aqcrued of loar given 2024
DILFL {Tuldings Limited 029 - UL -
As at March Interest Repayments  Ag at March
Nare of the Lasnce 2022 L.oar Given Accrued of loan given 2023
DHEL Holdings Limited {37 1112 - 152G

Nate- There i5 no loan given during the year under section 186(4) of thie Companies Act, 2013




DHFL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended Murch 31, 2024

{Cumrency : Rs in lakhs)

17 Income Taxes
[n the view of losses, provision for iax has aot been recognised Further the delerred fax asset arising ont of (ining
difference and carryforward ol unused tax losses and unused tax credits bas nor been recognised, since it is not probable

that sufficient future taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the detfered tax asset to be utilized.

18 Financial Instruments-Fair values and risk management

Aceounnting elassification March 31, 2024 Marecl 31,2023
a} Cateporics of Financial Ipstennments:  FVTPL FVOCT  Amortised FVTPL FVOCT  Amortised
Cost* Cost?
Financial Assets
Cash and Bank Balances - . 53.83 - - 56.81
Other financial assets - - 135 - - 184
- - 55,38 - - 58.65
Financial liabilitics
Qther Financial Liabilities - - 6.20 - - 572
- - 620 - - 572

b} Fair Value Hierarchy and Method of Valustion

Financial Instruments Mareh 31,2024
Carrying Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Value
Measured at Amortised Cost*
Financial Assets

Other flnancial assets 155 - ~ .55 1.55
1.55 . - - 185
Financial {tabilitics
Qiher Financial Liabilities 620 - - 620 6.24
6.201 - - 6.20 6.20
Financial Instruments March 31, 2023
Carrying Level § Lavel 2 Levei 3 Total

Measured at Amortised Cost*
Financial Assets

Other financial assers 1.84 - - 1.84 I 54
1.84 - - 1.84 1.84

Financial liabilities
Other Financial Liabiities 512 - - 3.72 572
572 - - 572 572

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are catcgerised into fair value hierarchy based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements arc observabie and the significance of the inputs fo the fair value measurement in its enfirery,
which ure described as follows:

» Level 1 quoted prices (unadjusted} in active markets tor identical assets ot liabilifies.

* Level 2 tnputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and

* Level 3 where unobservable inputs are used for the valuation of assets or liabifities.

* The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other financial assels and other financigl liahilitics Approxinae
their carrying armousnt largely due to the short-ters maturities of these instiruments.




19 Capitnd management

The Company manages its capital st as (o safeguard is ability o continue as a going concem and 10 optimise returns 1o its
shareholders. The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgmem of the appropriate balance of key
tlements in order lo meet its strategic and duy-lo-day needs. We consider the amount of capitzl in preportion to nisk and
manage the capieal structure in baht of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics ol the underiving assels.
In order Lo maintain or adjust the capital strecture, the company may adjusi the amount of dividends paid 10 sharcholders,
eturn capital to sharcholders or issuc new shares.

2

=

Finangial Risk Managcment

The Company s peincipat fioancial labilities, comprise burrowings dnd olber payables. The mab porpose of ese Nuaicisl
liabilitics is o support its operations. The Company™s principal financial assets include investment. other assets and cash
and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Board of Direclors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Credit risk

Credit risk 15 the risk of financial foss to the Comgpany # a customer or counterparty to a financial instrurnent fails to meet
its contractual abiigations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers. The maximum exposure
| to eredit risk is equal to the earrying value of the financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit tisk i 10
' prevent losses in financial aseets. The Company assesses the credil guality of the counterparties, taking into account their
financial position, past experience and other factors

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk thal the Company will nol be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The
Company manages its liguidity risk by ensuring, as {ar a5 possible, that it will always have sufficicnt liquidity to meet its
tiabilities when due. The Company’s Management is responsible for liguidity, funding as well as settlemenl management
The management menitors the Company”s net iquidity position through forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows. The
company is also taking steps to improve liquidity geing forward by focusing on new initiatives

The teble below provides details reparding the contractual maturities of significant financial liahilities and assets as at
March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

As on March 31,2024 As an Mareh 31,2023
Within 12 After 12 Within 12| Alter 12
Total Total
itonths months o hes rionths
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalenis 5383 - 53.83 56.81 - 5681
Other Financial Assets - 1.53 1.535 029 1.55 184
Total Asseis 53.83 1.55 RR.38 S 1.55 RRHS
LIABILITIES
Financial Habilities
Otber Financial liabiiities 6.20, - 6.20 572 B 53,72
Total Liabitilics .20 - 6,20 572 - 572

o qg,mm\,::\\




DHEL ADVISORY & INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes fo the Financial Statements {Continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : Rs in lakhs)

21 Other Statustory information

i) The Company does nel have any Bonami property , where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the

Cormpany for holding any Benami property.

i) The Company does not have any charges or salisfaction which is vet to be tegistered with ROC beyond the stalutory

period.

iii} The Company has not done any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013

)

)

vij

or section 360 of Companies Act. 1936
The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto curreney or Vinwal Currenicy during the period.

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person (s)or entity (ies), including forcign
erititiss (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Tntenmediary shalt

{2) Directly or indirectly fend or invest in other persons or entities identificd in any manner whatsosyer by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (U timate Beneficiarics); or

(b} Provide any guarantee, security of the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The Company have not had any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounls that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessmenis under the Income Tax Aet, 1961 (such as.
search or survey o any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

vif) The company does not have any owned or leased immovable property.

22 Other matters

Information with regard to other matters specified in Schedute 111 to the Act is cither Nif or not applicable 1o the
Company for the year.

23 Previous year's figares

Figures for the previous year have been regrouped, tearranged and reclassified wherever necessary.  Accordingly,
amounts and other disclosure for the previous vear aee L a5 an integral part of the cument year’s financial

statement and are o be e¢ad in relation to the pmo ssures relating to the current year

o X
For KKMANKESHWAR & CO. ¢ & Y f—f ar and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountanis w tunial ) PHTFL Advisory & Investments Private Limited

Firen Registration No.- 1 G6009W

i 2
A4 PN
Mr, Nirav Adani
Director

DIN: 10122297

Bl

Mr. Naresh Kedia Ms Revati Sawant
Chicf Financial Qfficer Company Secrelary

Dinesh Kumar Bachchas
Partmer

Membership No. 697820
New Dethi, May 96, 2024
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DHFL Investments Limited

Standalone Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2024

{Currency : Rs in lakhs)

As at As at
Note March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Financial assets:
(a} Cash and cash equivalents 3 12.76 16.85
{b} Investments 4 102,002.25 102,002.25
{c) Other financial assets 5 1.50 1.50
Total Assets 102,016.51 102,020.60
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial liabilities:
(2} Trade payables
(i} Total outstanding ducs of micro and smal 6 - -
(11} Total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro and small enterprises & 6.43 6.76
{b) Other financial liabilities 7 .17 0.18
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 8 10,145.00 10,145.G0
{b) Other equity 9 91,864.91 91.,868.65
Total Liabilities and Equity 102,016.51 102,020.60
Significant accounting policies 2
The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the financial
As per our report of even date attached.
For Vatsaraj & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 111327W
g ¢ A
Dr. CA B.K.Vatsaraj ifam Sridharan Upma Goel
Fartner Managing Dircetor v Director
Membership No: (39894 DIN: 05165390 DBIN: 00713974

Mumbai, 06 My 2024

Ms Urmila Rao
Company Secretary



DHFL Investments Limited

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
For the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currcncy © Rs in lakhs)

Revenue from operations
Interest income
Dividend Income
Other operating Income
Total Revenue from operations

Other income
Total Income

Expenses
Finance costs
Employee benclits expenses
Depreciaiion, amortisation and impairment
Other expenses
Total Expenses

Profit/(Loss) before tax

Less: Tax Expenses
Current tax
Deferred tax

Profit/(Loss} for the year

Other comprehensive income

[tems that will not be reclassified to Statement of profit or loss

Income tax relating to items thal will not be reclassified o

Statement of profil or loss

[tems that will be reciassified 1o Statement of profit or loss
incoine lax relating to items that wiil be reclassified to Statcrnent

of profit or loss

Net other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year
Earnings per equity share {Basic and Diluted} {Rs.)

Significant accounting policies

Nate For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2623

10 1.40 -
1.41 -
1.40 -
i 5.15 7.77
5.15 7.77
(3.75) (7.77)
3.75) (1.7
3.75) (7.77)
(0.004) (0.008)
2

The notes referved to above forms an integral part of the financial statements.

Ag per our report of even date attached.

For Vatsaraj & Co.
Chartered Accountantis
Firm Registration Na. 1[1327W

’

Dr. CA B.K.Vatsaraj
Partner

Membership No: (39894
Mombai, 0 & w024

Sridharan
Munaging Dirccior
" DIN: 05165390

Director
DUN: 060713974

Ms Urmila Rao
Company Seeretary



DHFL Investments Limited

Standalone Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : Rs in lakbs)

For the ycar ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 iarch 31, 2023
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit / {ioss) before tax {3.75) {(7.71
[mpairement of lavestment - -
Any other adjustments 3 =
Operating cash flow before working capital changes {3.75) (7.77)
Decrease / {Increase} in other financials assets - -
Increase / {Decrease} in Trade Payables {0.33) -
Increase / {Decrease) in other financials liabilities {0.01) 0.10
Cash (used in)/from operations {4.09) (7.66}
Less: Income taxes (paid} / refond - -
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities (a) {4.09) {7.66}
B. Cash flow from investing activities
[nvestments/Additional investment in equity shares - =
Net cash (used in}/ from investing activities (b} - =
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares - 20.00
Borrowings taken during the vear - -
Bomrowings repaid during the vear - -
Net cash {used in)/from financing activities {¢) = 20.00
Net {decrease} in cash and cash equivalents (a+b+c) (4.09) 12.34
Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year 16.85 4.51
Cash and cash equivalenis as at end of the year 12.76 16.85
Cash and Cash Equivalents Comprise of:
Cash on hand 0.04 .04
Balances with banks in current accounts 1272 16.81
12.76 16.85

The standalone cash flow statement has been prepared under the '[ndirect Method' set out in Indian Accounting
Standard-7, "Statement of cash flow"

As per our report of even date attached.
For Vatsaraj & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 111327W

m Sridharan Upma Goel &
anaging Director Director
DIN: 05165390 DIN: 00713974

Ms Urmila Rao
Company Secretary

Dr. CA B.K.Vatsaraj
Partner

Mernbership No: 036894
Mumbai, S M‘? 2024



DHFL Investments Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2024
(Currency | Rs in lakhs)

A. Equity Share Capital:

Particulars Amount
Balance as at March 31, 2022 10,125.00
Add: Issues during the year 26.00
Balance as at March 31, 2023 10,145.00

Add: Issues during the year «
Balance as at March 31, 2024 10,145.00

B. Other Equity:

Particulars Reserves and Surplus
Retained Earnings Capital Total
Reserve

Balance as at March 31, 2022 - 98,219.63 190,096.06 91,876.42
Add/{Less): Transfer during the year - - -
Add: Profit during the year - 7.77 - - ENEi
Less: Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax} - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - 98,227.00 190,096.00 91.869.00

Add/{Less): Transfer during the year - S ,

Add: Profit during the year - 3.75 - = 375
Add: Other coinprehensive income (net of tax} - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - 98,231.00 190,096.00 61.865.00

Piramal Capital and Housing Finance Limited (PCHFL) has acquired Dewan Housing Finance Corporation Limited (DHFL} as part
of an Insolvency and Bankruptcy process. PCHFL submitted the Resolution Plan on 22 December 2020, and it contained prayers
inter alia seeking nuilification of the Compulsory Convertible Debentures {CCDs) issved to Wadhawan Global Capital Private
Limited {(WGC) and extinguishment of rights pursuant to these CCDs. Vide the order approving the Reselution Plan dated 7 Junc
2021, the Hoenble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) also allowed the prayers contained therein. WGC and a limited liability
partnership by the name of TDH Reslty LLP have pursued litigations in relation to the Resolution Plan purportedly as the uitimate
beneficiary of the CCDs. However, the litigation initiated by TDH Realty LLP before the National Company Law Appeliatc
Tribunal, New Delhi (NCLAT) was disposed of as withdrawn by an order dated 27 September 2023, pursuant to settlement between
the parties. The legal representatives of PCHFL have advised that PCHFL has a strong case on merits in the WGC’s litigation
pending before the NCLAT

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

|

ol :
Upma Goel &/

For Vatsaraj & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Finm Registration No. il I(}!?W

L

Dr. CA B.K.Vatsaraj

Partner anaging Director Director
Membership No: 39894 FRN O .+ DIN: 05165390 DIN: 00713974
Mumbai,5{ , 2024 * *
s 1.0 mk/ c.i 111327w)}§ ; )
&y /
Ms Urmila Rao

Company Secretary



DHFL INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

1

2.1

22

2.3

GENERAL INFORMATION

DHFL Investments Limited (DIL) is whoily owned subsidiary company of Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited and has becn
incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, DIL has been incorporated with the intent of becoming a "core investment
company” under the Master Directions issued by Reserve Bank of India on August 25, 2016. DIL's business cbiective is to acquire any
shares, stock, debentures stocks or secunties in accordance with the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and other applicable statutory and
iegal provisions. The registered office of the Company is in Unit No.601, 6th Floor, Amiti Building, Agastya Corporaie Park, Kamani
Junction. Qon. Fire Station. 1.BS Marg. Kurla West. Mumbai Citv. 400070,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
Basis of preparation of financial statements :

The standalone tinancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companics (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015
as per Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter (“Ind AS™) on the historical cost basis
except for certain financial instrements that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period. Accounting policies have
been consistently applied except where 2 newly-issued accounting standard is initially adopied or a revision to an existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. All amounts inciuded in the standalone financial statemenis are
reported in lakhs of [ndian rupees {Rs. in lakhs} except share and per sharc data, unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that effect the reporied amounts of
assets and liabilities on the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and ¢xpenses during the reporting period.
Difference between the actual vesults and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known / materialised.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The Standalone Financial Statements arc presented in Indiap Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All
amounts have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

Revenue Recognition :

Dividend Income
Revenue is recognised when the Company’s night to receive the payment is established, which is generally when shareholders approve
the dividend.

Other Income

Revenue is recognised when there is reasonable certainty as 1o measurement and nitimate reahzation of the same.

{ ) %
Q| 11327 )g

%

..I’JJ Y
Icco\é\




DHFL INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
2.4 Financial Instrument

2.5

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
protit or foss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial asscts or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on imitial
recognition. Transaction cosis directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at €air value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(1) Financial Asset:

Financial assets that mect the following conditions are subscquently measured at amortised cost:

® the asset is held within a business model whose objective is 10 hold asscis in order to collect contractual cash (lows; and

e the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that mect the following conditions are subsequently measured ar fair vaiue through Other Comprehensive Income
(FVTOCI}:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified daies 10 cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount cutstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss {FVTPL).

All investments in equify instruments arc initially measured at fair value, the company may, on initial recognition, tirevocably elect to
measure same either at FVTOCI or FVTPL.

{I1} Financial liabilities and equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued are recognised at the proceeds received.

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FYTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration recognised by the Company
as an acquirer in a business combination to which [nd AS 103 applies or is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subscquent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of tinancial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are
detcrmined based on the effective interest method.

The effective intcrest method is a2 method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial Liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fecs and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts} through
the expected life of the financial liability, or {where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities:

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations ar¢ discharged, cancelled or have
expired. An exchange between the Company and the lender of debt and other instruments with substantially different tenns 15 accounted
for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.

lnvestment in Subsidiaries and Associates:

[nvestment tn subsidiaries and associates are recognized and carried at cost. Where the carrying amount of an investment is greater than
is estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount and the difference is transferred to the
Statement of Profit and Loss. On disposal of investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount 15
charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash tlows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at baaks and on hand, as defined
above, net of outstanding hank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.




DHFL INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

2.6 Impairment of non financial assets:

27

2.8

2.9

The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indicaiion that an asset may be impaired. For the purposes of
assessing hmpaitment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing usc that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets, is considered as a cash generating wnit. I any such indication
exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of
the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carmying amount is reduced to its recoverable
amount. The reduction is treated as an impainment loss and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If at the Balance Sheet
date there is an indication that previously assessed impairment 10ss no longer exists or may have decreased, the recoverable amount is
reassessed and the asset is reflecied at the recoverable amount.

Earnings Per Share :

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the pet profit or loss for the peried attributable to cquity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period/year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the cffects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Taxes on Income

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the applicabie tax rates and
the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences aitnibutable to temporary differences between the
financial statements’ carvying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using the enacted tax rates or tax rates that are substantively enacted at the balance sheet dates. The effect on the deferred
tax assets and lizbilities of a change in tax rate is recognized in the perod that includes the enactment date. Deferred tax assets are
recognized only to the extent there is virtual certainty of realization in future in case of carry forward losses.

Provisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets
The Company recognizes a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past cvent that probably requires an outflow of
resources and a rcliabic estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there
is & possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, requirc an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation that the likelihood of cutflow of resources is remote , no provision or disclosure is made. Contingent
asscts are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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DHFL Investments Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2024

{Currency : Rs in lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

5 Other Financial Assets
Security deposits 1.50 1.50
Total 1.50 1.50
6 Trade payables
(i} Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small - -
enterprises (refer note 12)
Total - -
{ii} Totai cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro 6.43 676
enterprises and small enterprises
Total 6.43 6.76
Ageing of Trade Payable
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
Less than | year 2.95 5.03
1 t0 2 years 2.66 0.83
2 10 3 years 082 0.90
More than 3 years - -
Total 6.43 6.76
Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of infonmation coliected by the Management. The Company has not received
any memorandum {as required to be filed by the supplicrs with notified authority under the Micro,
Smali and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006) from vendor claiming the status as micro or
smali enterpnses, hence no disclosures have been made.
Trade payables are recognised at their onginal inveice amounts which represents their fair values on
inibal recogmtion. Trade payables are considered to be of short duration and are not discounted and
the carrying values are assumed to approximate their fair vaiues.
7 Other financial liabilities

Statutory dues payable 0.17 (.18

Total




DHFL [nvestments Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)

as af March 31, 2024

{Currency : Rs in lakhs)

8  Equity Share Capital

Authorized share capital:

Asat

As at

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

12,00,00,000 (March 31, 2023 12.00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.

0/~ each
Total

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity
share capital:

Opening balance

Add: Issue of shares during the year

Total

12,000 12,000
12,000 12,000

10,143 16,125

- 20
10,145 10,145

Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting vear

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

EqpiusEaney No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 101,450,000 10,145 101,253,000 10,125
Add: Issue of shares during the ycar - 200,000 20
Outstanding at the end of the year 101,450,000 10,145 181,450,000 10,145
Details of shares held by Promoter
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of shares % Holding No. of shares % Holding
Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limticd 101,449,840 100% 101,449,940 100%
Details of shareholder holding more than 5%
shares in the Company
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of shares % Holding No. of shares % Holding
Piramai Capital & Housing Finance Limited 101,449,940 100% 101,449,940 100%

The Company has only one ciass of equity shares having a face value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of cquity share is
entitled to one vote per share. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend.

The Company has issucd 2,00,000 Equity share of Face Value Rs 10/- each to Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited
(Femmerly Dewan Housing Finance Corporation Lid.) ie the Helding company during the previous year.




9 Other equity
As at As at
Mareh 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Capital Rescrve {refer note 9.1} 190,096.06 150,096 .06
Retained earnings {refcr note 9.2} (98,231.15} (98,227.40)
Total 91,864.91 91,868.65

9.1 Capital reserve

Opening balance 190,096.06 190,096.06
Addition during the year - -
Closing Balance 190,096.06 190,096.06

9.2 Retained earnings

Opening Balance {98,227.40) (98,219.63)
Net profit/{loss) for the year {3.73) a7
Closing Balance (98,231.15) (98,227.40)

Pirarnal Capital and Housmg Finance Limited {PCHFL} has acquired Dewan Housing Finance Corporation Limited (DHFL) as
part of an insolvency and Bankruptcy process. PCHFL submitted the Resolution Plan on 22 Decernber 2020, and it contained
prayers inter alia secking nullification of the Compulsory Convertible Debentures (CCDs) issucd to Wadhawan Globa! Capital
Private Limited (WGC) and extinguishment of rights pursuant to these CCDs. Vide the order approving the Resclution Plan
dated 7 June 2021, the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal {(NCLT) also allowed the prayers coniained therein. WGC and a
limited lability partnership by the name of TDH Realty LLP have pursued litigations in relation to the Resclution Plan
purportedly as the ultimate heneficiary of the CCDs. However, the litigation initiated by TDH Realty LLP before the National
Company Law Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi (NCLAT) was disposed of as withdrawn by an order dated 27 September 2023,
pursuant to settiement between the partics. The legal representatives of PCHFL have advised that PCHFL has a strong case on
merits in the WGC's litigation pending before the NCLAT




DHFL Investments Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements {Continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : Rs in lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
10 Other operating Income
Write back of professional fees 1.40 -
Total 1.40 4
11 Other Expenses
Legal and professional fees 1.14 1.94
Filling & NSDL Fees 2.14 32
Bank Charges 0.G1 0.12
Duties and taxes 0.15 0.61
Payments to auditors
- a3 auditor 1.70 225
- for other services - -
Other Expenses 0.01 (03N

Total 5.15




DHFL Investments Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
For the vear ended Muarch 31, 2024

{Currency : Rs in lakhs)

12 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic and diluted EPS is computed in accordance with Ind AS 33 *‘Eamings Per Share’ specified under section 133 of the
Companics Act, 2013,

The computation of eamings per share is set out below:

For the year ended For the year

Description ended
March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

Net profit/(loss} attributable to equity shareholders (3.75) {7.77)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for 101,450,000 101,327,260
Basic and Diluted EPS of face vaiue of Rs. 10 {0.004) {0.008)

The basic and diluted EPS is same as there are no potential dilutive cquity shares.

13 Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
Under the Micro, Small and Mcdium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (‘MSMED’} which came into force from
October 2, 20086, certain disclosures are required to be made reiating to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises. On the basis

of the information and records available with company including confinnations sought from suppliers on registration with
specified authority under MSMED, the amount of principal and intcrest outstanding during the year is Nik.

14 Contingent liabilities
As on March 31, 2024, the contingent habihty is Nil. {March 31, 2023- Nii}
15 Segment Reporting

The income of the Company comprises of solely dividend and interest income and accordingly there are no reportable
segments as specified in IND AS 108 {("Operating Segiment"} which nceds to be reported.

16 Income Taxes

Deferred Tax Assets is not recognised as a matter of prudence and provsion for current tax is not made in view uf
assessable loss for the year,




DHFL Investments Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements {Continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : Rs in lakhs)

17 Information in accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard 24
on Related Party Disclosures.

List of Related Parties

A. Holding company
Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited (based on voting power)
Piramal Enterprises Limited - Ultimate Holding Company

B. Key Managerial Personnel & Director

{a) Mr. Bipin Singh, Director

{b} Mr.Jairam Sridharan, Director

(c) Me.Pradeep Bhadauna, Director {Resigned on Apnl 29, 2023)

{d} Ms. Upma Goel

{d} Mr.Sushant Pawar, Chief Financial Officer {(Resigned on June 01, 2019 however the Board has not
accepted the resignation)

{e} C5 - Ruchi Sheth (Resigned on April 06, 2023)

{f) CS - Ms. Urmila Rao (Appointed on October 05,2023}

C. Joint Venture & Associates
DHFL Ventures Trustee Company Pyt Lid (Associate Company)

Pramenca Life Insurance Company Limited (Joint Venture)

D. Details of balances with related parties

Holding Company Other Reiated Partics KMP & Directors
March 31, Mareh 31,  Mareh 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
20024 2023 2624 2023 2024 2023

investement in Equity shares
- Pramerica Life [nsurence Company Limited = - 102.000.00 102,000.00 - -
{erstwhile DHFL Pramarica Life Insurance

Company Limiled} {Joint Ventured
- DHFL Ventore Trustee Company Pvt. Lid - - 2.25 225 - =
{ Associate Company)

TOTAL - - 102,002 182,002 = -




DHFL Investments Lirnited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements {Continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : Rs in lakhs)

18 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities
The table below shows an analysis of asscls and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected 1o be recovered or

settied.
As on 31st March-2024 As on 31st March-2023
Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total
maonths months months months

ASSETS
Financial asseis
Cash and cash equivalents 12.76 - 12.76 16.85 - 16.83
[nvestments - 102,002.25 102,602.25 - 10200223 102,002.25
Other Financial assets - 1.50 1.50 - 1.50 1.50
Sub total 12.76 102,003.75 102,016.51 16.85 142,003.75 102,020.60

Total Assets 12.76 102,003.75 102.416.51 16.85 142,003.75 102.620.60
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial Habilitics
Trade payables 6.43 - 6.43 6.76 - 6.76
Cther Financial liabilities 017 - 0.17 0.17 - 0.17
Sub total 6.60 - 6.60 6.93 - 6.93

Tota] Liabilitics 6.60 - 6.60 693 - 6.93




DHFL Investments Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Rs in lakhs)

19 Financial Instruments-Fair values and risk management
Accounting classification

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a} Categories of Financial Instruments: FVTPL FYOCI Amortised FVTPL FVOCI Amortised
Cost* Cost*
Financial Assets
Invesiments - - 102,002.25 - - 102,002.25
Cash and Bank Balances - - 12.76 - - 16.85
Other Financial Assets - - 1.50 - - 1.50
- - 102,016.51 - - 102,020.60
Financial Habilities
Trade Payables - - 6.43 s - 6.76
Other Financial Liabilities . - .17 - - 0.1%
- - 6.60 - - 6.94

b} Fair Value Hierarchy and Method of Valuation

Financial Instruments March 31, 2024
Carrying Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total
Value
Measnred at Amortised Cost*
Financial Assets

Investments 102,002.25 - - - -
Cash and Bank Balanccs 12.76 - - - -
Other Financial Asseis 1.50 - - - -
102,016.51 - - - -
Financial labilities
Trade Payables 6.43 - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities 0.7 . . . »
6.60 - - - -
Financial Instrunments March 31, 2023
Carrying Level Level 2 Level 3 Total
Value

Measured at Amortised Cost*
Financial Assets

[ovestinents 102,002.25 - - - -
Cash and Bank Balances 16.85 - -

Other Financial Asscts 1.50 = = : .

102,020.60 =

Financial Habilities

Trade Payables 6.76 y . . .
nher Financial Liabilities 0.18 = = = =

6.94 - o =

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categonised into tair value hicrarchy based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair vaiue measuremenis are observable and the significance of the inpuis to the fair
valuc measurcment in its entirety, which are described as follows:

= Level 1 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

= Level 2 inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

*» Level 3 where unobservable inputs are used for the valuation of assets or habilities.

The management assessed that cash and cash cquivalents, other financial assets and other financial
liabiiities approximate their cairying amount largely due to the short-tenn maturitics of these instrugfé




Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

-Credit risk
-Liguidity risk and
-Maricet risk

Risk management framework
The Company’s principal tinancial liabilities comprise of other payabies. The main purpose ot these

financial liabtlitics is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financiai assets
include cash and cash equivalents thai derive directly from its operations. The Company also holds FVTPL
investments.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity rnisk. The Company’s scnior management
oversces the management of these risks. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks. which are summarised below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency
risk und other price risk, such as equity price risk. Financial instruments atfected by market sk include
FVTPL investments,

Interest rate risk
[nterest rate risk is the nsk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market interest rarcs.

Equity price risk

The Company’s non-listed equity securities are susceptiblc to market price risk arising from uncertainties
about future values of the investment securities. Company’s investment in it's group company - DHFL
Pramarica Life Insurance Company Limited, which is non-listed, is significant. But being the startegic
investment, company is not enflucaced by equity price risk.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the nsk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or

customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating
acttvities from its other financial instruments.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s board ot
ditectors. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approval of Board of directars.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity nisk is the risk that the Company will not be able 10 meet iis financial obligations as they fall due.
The Company’s approach to managing liguidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient fiquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incummng unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Company manages liquidity risk by mainiaining adequate reserves, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of the financial assets and liabilities.

Capital Management

Capital includes equity attnibutable to the equity holders to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital
structurc and healihy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. The
Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments 1o it, in light of changes in cconomic
conditions or its business requircments. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, retumn capital to shareholders or issue new shares, No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the period/year ended March 31, 2024
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DHFL Investments Limited

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Rs in lakhs}

20 Ratio as per the Schedule III requirements

Particulars March 31,| March 31, | Variance%
2024 2023 Numerator Denominator
{(a} Capital to risk- 193% 243% 20% Tier I Capital + Tier |Risk Weighted Assets On
weighted assets ratio i1 Capital Balance sheet and off
(CRAR} Balance sheet iteims
(b} Tier [ CRAR 100% 100% 0% Tier [ Capital Risk Weighted Assets On

Balance sheet and off
Balance sheet items

{c) Tier [ CRAR 0% % (% Tier I Capital Risk Weighted Assets On
Balance sheet and off
Balance sheet itoms

(d) Liguidity Coverage Rat|  193% 243% 20% High Quality Liguid |[Net Cash Out flows
Assets

21 Other Statutory information
iy The Company does not have any Benami property , where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
11} The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is vet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory

jii) The Company has not done any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or
section 560 of Companies Act, 1956,

iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the period.

v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person (s)or entity (ies), including foreign
entities {Intermediaries} with the understanding that the [ntermediary shall:

(2} Directly or indirecily Jend or invest in other persons or entities identified n any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party {Ultimate Beneficiarnes), or

{b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficianics.

vi} During the year the Company have not received any fund from any person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entitics
{Funding Party) with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:

(a) Dhrectly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of

{b) Provide any guarantee, security or the Tike on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficianies.
vii) The Company have not had any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrcndered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey
or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
viii) The Title deeds for all the immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessec and the leuse
agrecments are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the Company,




22 Other matters

Information with regard to other matters specified in Schedule I to the Act is either Nil or not applicable to the
Company for the year.

23 Foreseable losses
The Company does not have any tong term contracts which are required to be assessed for material forseable tosses.

24 Previons year's figures

Figures for the previous year have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary. Accordingly,
amounts and other disclosure for the previous year are included as an integral part of the current year’s financial
statement and arc to be read in relation to the amounts and ofher disclosures relating to the current year.

For Vatsaraj & Co. For and behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accouniants
ICATFRN: 111327W &

PN
Dr.CAB.K. VI saraj iram Sridharan [ pma Goel
Partner Director Dirtctor
M No.: 033994 " DIN: 05165390 DIN: 06713974
Place : Mumbai Mumbai, 8 & My 2024 Murmbai, 0, fMay2024

Mumbai, bl r'}q;(, 2024

Ms Urmila Rao
Company Secretary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of DHFL Holdings Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We hove oudited the accomponying Stondalone Ind AS financial statements of DHFL
Holdings Limited ("the Company”}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315 March 2024,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Qther Comprehensive Income}. the Staterment of
Changes in Equity ond the Statement of Cash Flows for the yeor then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explonatory informotion (hereinafter referred to as "the Stondsolone Ind AS finoncial
statements™).
In our opinion and to the best of cur information and sccording to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financiol stotements to give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act"] in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies {Indion Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 {Ind AS} as amended,
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the stote of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2024, and loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity
ond its cash flows for the year ended on thot date.

Basis for Opinicn

2. We have conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Stondards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Stondalene Ind AS Financial
Stotements section of our report. We ore independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indic (ICAl) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our qudit of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in occordance with these requirements ond the ICAT's Code
of Ethics. We believe that the gudit evidence obtoined by us is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a kasis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Finoncial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

3. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other infarmation.
The other information comprises the information included in the, Board's Report including
Annexure to Board's Report and Shareholder's Information, but dees not include the
Standalone Ind AS Financial statements ond our quditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the
Standalone Ind AS Financial statements does nat cover the other information ond we do not
express gny form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information

and, in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the /ﬁ{m\

stondalone financial statements or our knowledge obtoined during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. i, based on the work we have performed, we (
\

A,
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9 1st Floor, Fort Chambers, C-Block, Tamarind Lane, Fort, Mumbai - 400023
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Vatsara] & Co. | SRR s

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Respensibility of Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

4. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financiol performance, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generolly
accepted in Indig, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in occordance
with the provisions of the Act for sofeguarding of the assets of the Compony ond for
preventing and detecting frouds and other irregularities;, selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; ond design, implementation and muaintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accurocy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the finonciol statement
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the Standalone Ind AS financial stotements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company's obility to continue as a geing concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters reloted to going concern and using the going cancern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operotions, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the carmpany’s financial reporting
process.,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalene Ind AS Financial Statements
5. Qur cbjectives are to obtain reasonoble assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS
finoncial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to froud
or error, and to issue an duditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an oudit conducted in accordance with
SAs will olways detect a moterial misstatement when it exists. Misstotements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the oggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users token on the baosis of
these financial stotements. ‘
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintoin
professional skepticism throughout the qudit. We also:
¢ Identify ond assess the risks of material misstotement of the standaione financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform gudit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain oudit evidence that is sufficient and appropnate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Page 2 of 11
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» Obtain on understanding of internal control relevant to the qudit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriote in the circumstances. Under section 143{3)(i) of the Act.
we are alse responsible for expressing our opinion an whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of occounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists reloted to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that @ material uncertainty exists,
we ore required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions ore based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as o going concern.

s Evoluate the oversll presentation, structure and content of the Standoione Ind AS
Financiol Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial stotements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner thot achieves fair
presentation

Materiglity is the mognitude of misstatements in the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
that, individually or in aggregate, mckes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonobly knowledgeable user of the Ind AS Financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and gualitative factors in {i) planning the scope of our audit
work and in evaiuating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Ind AS Financial stotements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
plunned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We dlso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
ali relationships ond other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

6.

As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report] Order, 2020 issued by the Central
Government in terms of sub-section 11 of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annaxure
A" of this report a statement on the motters specified in paragrophs 3 and 4 of the Order. to
the extent applicable. As the Company deoes not have any subsidiary, joint venture or
associate enterprise, consolidated finoncial statements is not prepared. Hence Paragraph
3{xxi} of Companies {Auditor's Report} Order (CARQ] is not applicabtle.
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7. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that

)

b)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by low have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive

d)

€)

income, the Stotement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of accounts.

in our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Stondards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:

On the basis of the written representations received from the directers as on 31 March.
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31t March, 2024 from being appointed os a director in terms of Section 164 {2} of the Act.
With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over finoncial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in "Annexure B". Our report expresses on unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Compony's internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

8. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies [Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information ond according to the explangotions given to us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the investor Educotion
and Protection Fund by the Company

{a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from berrowed funds or shore
premium or any other sources or kinds of funds} by the Company to or in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”). with the understonding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether | directly
orindirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in gny manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company or {"Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee,
security or the like to or on beholf of the ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign
entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understonding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall. Whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in ony manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
porty ("ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarontee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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{c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonoble and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representotions under sub-clause iv{a) ond iv {b) centain any material mis-statement.

v. The dividend is neither declored nor paid during the year by the Company.

vi. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section Rule 11({g)

of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, based on our examination which included
test checks, the company has used Tally ERP software for maintaining its books of
account which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwaore.
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with.
As proviso to Rule 3({1) of the Companies (Accounts} Ruies, 2014 is applicabie from April
1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11{g) of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 on
preservotion of audit trail as per stotutory requirements for record retention is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

vii. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197{16):
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. no
remuneration is paid by the Company to its directors during the cusrent year. The tMinistry
of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which ore
required to be commaented upon by us.

For Votsara] & Co,
Chartered Accountants
FRN:111327W

Dr. CA B. K. Vatsargj
Pariner

M.No.: 039894
UDIN: 24039 &"I4B\<HIAGB&‘S‘}

Mumboai, 6% May.2024
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ANNEXURE "A" referred to in Paragraph of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to

the members of DHFL Helding Limited on the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the

year ended 31 March 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us irt the normal course of audit and to the best
of our knowledge und belief, we report that:

{i}

{if)

fiif)

(iv)

{v)

{vi}

{vii)
(a)

The Company does not have any property, plant ond equipment, intangible

assets, right of use assets or investment property and occordingly. reporting

under clause 3{i) of the Companies (Auditor's Report} Crder, 2020 (hereinafter

referred to as ‘the Order’) is not applicable to the Company.

The Company deoes not hold any inventory. Accordingly, reporting under

clause 3{ii) of the Order is not opplicable to the Compony.

According to the informotion ond explanation given to us and according to the

records of the Company as examined by us, the Company has not made any

investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or

advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,

Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year. Accordingly,

reporting under Para 3{ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinien angd accerding to the information and explanation given to us,

the Compony has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185

ond 186 of the Act, Accordingly, reporting under Paro 3(iv} of the Order is nol

applicable to the Compony.

in our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us,

the Company has not accepted ony deposits or there are no amounts which

have been deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of

the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as

omended). Accordingly, reporting under Porg 3{v) of the Order is not

applicoble to the Compaony.

The Central Government has not specified maintencnee of cost records under

sub-section {1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company's praducts/

services / business activities. Accordingly, reporting under Para 3{vi} of the

Order is not applicable.

In respect of statutory dues:

According to the information ond explanations given to us, and accerding to
the records of the Compoany as exomined by us, the Company is regulor in
depositing undisputed stotutory dues including goods and services tax
provident fund, employees' stote insurance, income-tax, sales-tox, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tox, cess ond other material
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no
undisputed ameunts poyoble in respect thereof were outstonding at March 31,
2024 for a peripd of more than six months from the date they became payable.

| e
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{viti)

(i)

{x)

{xi}

{xi}

{xiii}

(o)

{a}

{b)

()

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
statutory dues referred to in subclouse (a) obove that have not been deposited
with the appropriate guthorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information ond explanations given to us, no transactions
were surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 which have not been previously
recorded in the books of accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does
not have any loons or other borrowings from any lender, Accordingly,
reporting under clouse 3{ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer {including debt instruments}, during the year. Accordingly.
reporting under clause 3(){a} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion ond according to the information and explonation given to us
and based on the records of the company examined by us, during the yeor the
Compaony has made Right issue of shares during the year. For such allotment
of share the company has complied with the requirement of Section 62 of the
Act, and the funds raised have been applied by the company during the year
for the purpose for which they were roised. The Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of {fully or partly or optionally)
convertible debentures during the year,

To the best of our knowledge ond according to the information and
explanatiens given to us, no froud by the Company or no materiol fraud on the
Company by its officers/employees has been noticed during the year.
Therefore Para 3 (xi) of the order is not applicable to the Company.
According to the information ond explanations given to us including the
representation made to us by the monagement of the Company, no report
under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors
in Form ADT -4 os prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, with the Centrol Government for the period covered by our audit,
According to the informotion and explanations given to us inctuding the
representation made to us by the management of the Company, there are no
whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not
applicable to it. Accerdingly, reporting under clause 3{xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Compony with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where gpplicable. Further, the detoils of such
reloted porty transactions have been disclosed in the standalone finoncial
statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard {ind AS) 24,
Reloted Party Disclosures specified in Compaonies (Indion Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act.
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{xiv}

{xv}

{xvi}

{evii)

{xviif)

{xix)

{ed]

{c}

(d)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required to and consequently, does not have an internal cudit system os per
the provisions of section 138 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3ixiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{xv} of the
Order not opplicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us by the company is
not required to registered under section 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934,

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our
verification of the records of the Company, the company has not conducted
any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finoncials activity during the year
without a valid Certificate of Registration {CoR) from Reserve Bank of India as
per the Reserve Bonk of India Act.1934,

According to the information and explanation given to us the Company is not
a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations mode by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvilc) are not
applicable.

According to the information and explonation given to us, the Group does not
have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3{xvi}{d] are not
applicable.

The Compony has incurred cash losses in the current finonciol yeor and in the
immediately preceding financial year amounting to Rs. 803.20 hundred ond
Rs. 874.68 hundred respactively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us ond on the bosis of
the financial ratios, ageing ond expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the Standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any matericl uncertainty exists as on the date of the oudit
report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further stote that our reporting
is based an the facts up to the date of the gudit report and we neither give any
guarantee ror any assurance that all lighilities falling due within o period of
one year from the bolance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as
and when they fall due
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pog According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company dees
net meet the criteria as specified under sub-section {1} of section 135 of the
Act read with the Companies (Corporate Sccial Respensibility Policy} Rules,
2014 and according, reporting under clause 3{xx} of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

{xxi} The reporting under clause 3(xxi} of the Order is not opplicable in respect of
oudit of stondalone financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no
comment has been included in respect of said clause under this report.

For Vatsaraj & Co.
Chortered Accountonts
FRN: 111327W

Dr. CA B. K. Vatsargj
Partner

M.No.: 039894
UDIN: 24 029894 BRHTAG 389

Mumbai, 8™ May, 2024
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ANNEXURE ‘B' to Independent Auditors’ Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statement of DHFL Helding Limited, Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause
{i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act, referred to in paragraph 7{f} under "Repert on
Other Legal and Regulatory requirement” section of our report of even date,

We have audited the internal financiol controls over financial reporting of DHFL Holding Limited
("the Company”) as of 31% March, 2024 in conjunction with our oudit of the Standalene Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on thot date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Contrels

The Company's management is responsible for establishing ond maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essentio! components of internal control stoted in the Guidance Note on Audit of
internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chortered
Accountants of India {ICAT).

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenonce of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly ond efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguoarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frouds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Finoncial Contrals Qver Finoncial Reporting (the "Guidance Note"} and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Act, to the extent applicable to an cudit of internal financial controls. Those Standords and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequote internal financial controls over
financial reporting waos established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all moterial respects.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is @ process designed to provide

reasonoble assurance regarding the reliability of financiol reporting and the preparation of

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles. A company's internal finoncial control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures

that

(1} Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurotely and fairly
reflect the transoctions and dispositions of the ossets of the company;

{2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generolly
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
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being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and

{3} Provide reasonable assuronce regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a moteriol effect
on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of coliusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluotion of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financiol control over financial reporting may become inadequate becouse of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinien

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequote internal financial controls
system over financiol reporting end such internal financial controls over financiol reporting were
operating effectively as at 31% March, 2024, based on the internal contral over financial reporting
criteria estoblished by the Company considering the essentiol components of internal control
stated in the Guidonce Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contrels Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Vatsaroj & Co,
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 111327W /\

Dr. CA B. K. Vatsaraj
Partner

M.No.: 039894

UDIN: 240393894 B
Mumbai, 6% May,2024
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DHFL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Balance Sheet
us at March 31, 2024

(Currency : Rs in hundreds)

As at Asat
Note March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Financial assets:
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 3 2,906.19 1251
Total Assets 2.906.19 12.51
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial liabilities:
(a) Trade payables
(i} Total cutstanding dues of micro and smail enterprises 4 - -
(i} Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro
and small enterprises 4 600.00 1,514.41
()] Borrowings {other than debt securities) 3 - 288.71
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 6 6,000.00 1,000.00
(b Other equity 7 (3,693.81) {2,790.62)
Total Liabilities and Equity 2,906.19 12.51
Significant accounting policies 2
The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached.
For Vatsaraj & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants f DHEFL Holdings Limited
Firm Registration No. 111327W

(

[

Dr. CA B.K.Vatsaraj
Partrer

Membership No: $398%94
Mumbat, May 06, 2024

Pradeep Sawant
Managing Director
DIN : 08957171 DIN : 00058068




DHFL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss
For the year ended March 31, 2024

{Cusrency : Rs in hundreds)

Note

Revenue from operations

Interest income

Dividend Income

Other operating Income &
Total Revenue from operations

Other income
Total Income

Expenses
Finance costs 9
Empioyee berefits expenses
Depreciation, amostisation and impairment
Other expenses o
Total Expenses

Profit/(Loss) before tax

Less: Tax Expenses
Current tax
Dreferred 1ax

Profit/(Loss} for the year

Other comprehensive income
Itemns that will not be reclassified to Statement of profit o loss
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
Statemnent of profit or loss

Items that will be reclassified to Statement of profit or loss
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to
Statement of profit or loss

Net other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year
Earnings per equity share (Basic and Diluted) (Rs.) 1

Significant accounting policies 2

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

- 206.50

- 2(6.50

- 206.50

- 22.50

903.20 1,058.68

903.20 1,081.18
(903.20) (874.68)
{903.20) {874.68)
(%03.20) {874.68}
{1.61) {8.75)

The notes referred to above forms an integrai part of the Anancial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For Vatsaraj & Co,
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 11 13276

Dr. CA B.K.Vatsaraj
Partner

Membership No: 039894
Mumbai, May 06, 2024

o

Pradeep Sawant
Managing Director
DIN : 08957171

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of
.~~~ DHFL Holdings Limited

ipin Si

Diregtor
DIN 30058068



DHFL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flow
For the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Rs in hundreds)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
. Cash flow from operating aetivities
Profit / {loss) before tax (%03.20) {874.68)
Any other adjustments - 22.50
Operating cash flow before working capital changes {903.20) {852.18)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables (914.41) 753.06
Cash (used in)/from operations {1,817.61) {9912y
Less: Income taxes (paid} / refund - -
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities {a) {1,817.61) {99.12)
. Cash flow from investing activities
Invesiments/Additional investment in equity shares -
Net cash {used in)/ from investing activities (b) -
. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 5,000.00 -
Borrowings taken during the year - -
Borrowings repaid during the year {288.71) -
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (¢} 4,711.2% -
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (a+b+c) 2.893.68 (99.12)
Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year 12.51 111.63
Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year 2,906.19 12.51
Cash and Cash Equivalents Comprise of;
Balances with banks in current accounts 2,906.1% 12.51
2,906.19 12.51

The cash flow statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' set out in Indian Accounting Standard-7,
"Statement of cash fiow"

The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.

For Vatsaraj & Co.
Chartered Accountan
Firm Registration No. [11327W

— ,.:\P...

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
~~  DHFL Holdings Limited

Dr. CA B.K.Vatsaraj
Partner

Membership No: 039894
Mumbai, May 06, 2024

Pradeep Sawant
Managing Director
DIN - 08957171

Diredjor
DIN 00058068




DHFL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2024

{Currency : Rs in hundreds)

A. Equity Share Capifal:

Particulars Amount
Balance as at March 31, 2022 1,000.00
Add: Issues during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,000.00
Add: 1ssues during the vear 5 000.00
Balance as at March 31, 2024 6,000.00

B. Other Equity:

Particulars
Reserves and Total
Surplus

Bailance as at March 31, 2022 (1,915.94) (1,915.94)

Add/(Less): Transfer during the year - -

Add: Profit during the year {874.6%) (874.68)

Less: Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) - -

Balance as at March 31, 2023 (2,790.62) {2,790.62)

Add/{Less): Transfer during the year - -

Add: Profit during the year (903.20) (503.20)

Add: Other comprehensive income (net of tax} - -

Balance as at March 31, 2024 {3,693.82) {3,693.82)
For Vatsaraj & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chariered Accountants DIIFL Hoeldings Limited
Firm Registration No. 11 IBZ?‘W i

Pradeep Sawant g
Managing Director 1O
DIN : 08957171 DIN : 00058068

Dr. CA B.K.Vatsaraj
Partner

Membership No: 039894
Mumbai, May 06, 2024




DHFL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

21

2.2

23

GENERAL INFORMATION

DHFL Holdings Limited (DHL} is wholly owned subsidiary company of Piramal Capitai & Housing Finance Limited and has been
incorporated on September 28, 2018 under the provisions of Companics Act, 2013, DHL has been incorporated to carry on the
busincss/businesses of holding and [nvestment Company, to buy, underwrite, invest in, acquire, hold, deal in and trade in shares,
stocks, debentures, debenture stock, bonds, obligations and securities of any kind of companies or parinership firms or body
corporate, whether in [ndia or elsewhere in accordance with the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and other apphicable statutory and
icgal provisions. The regisiered office of the Company is in Unit No.601, 6th Floor, Amiti Building, Agastya Corporate Park, Kamani
Junction, Opyp. Firc Station, LBS Marg, Kurla West, Mumbai City, 400070,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Basis of preparation of finanecial statements :

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as per
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant amendment rules issued thercafter {(“Ind AS™)} on the historical cost basis except
for certain financial instruments that arc measured at fair values at the end of cach reporting period. Accounting policies have been
consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision (o an existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. All amounts included in the financial statemnents are reported in
hundreds of Indian rupees {Rs. in hundreds) except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated,

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that effect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities on the date of financial staicments and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the repotting period.

Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the period i which the results are known / matenalised.

Revenue Recogrition :

Other Income
Revenue 1s recognised when there is reasonable certainty as to measurement and ultimate realization of the same.

Financial [nstrument

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 10 2 financial asset of one entity and financial liability or equity instrument of
another cntity.

Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
Instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initiaflly measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly aitributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {other than financial assets and financial Habilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilitics at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

{I) Financial Asset;

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the assel is held within a business model whose objective is to hoid assets in order 10 coliect contraciual cash flows; and

# (he contractual terms of the instrument give risc on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value ihrough Other Comprehensive Income
(FYTOCI):

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial asscts; and

e the contractual terms of the finaacial asset give risc on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of poncipal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

All iInvestments in equity instruments are initially measured at fair value, the company may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to
measure same either at FVTOC] or FVTPL.




DHFL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

(11} Financial labilities and equity instruments

An cquity instrument 1$ any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued are recognised at the proceeds received.

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration recognised by the
Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.
Financial liabilities that arc not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting peniods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilitics that are subsequently measured at arnortised cost are
determined based on the effective interest method.

The effective interest methed is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating intcrest expense
over the relevant penod. The cifective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments {including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate} a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a financial liability.
Derecognition of financial liabilities:

The Company derecognises financiaf liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. An exchange between the Company and the lender of debt and other instruments with substantiaily different terms is
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liabitity and the recognition of a new financial liability.

Investment tn Subsidiarics and Associates:

Investment in subsidiaries and associates are recognized and carried at cost. Where the carrying amount of an investment is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount and the difference is transferred to the
Statemment of Profit and Loss. On disposal of investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is
charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.4 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value. For the purpose of the staterment of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at banks and on hand, as

defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

2.5 Impairment of non financial assets:

The Company assesscs at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets thai generatcs cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit. If any such indication
exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its
recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If at the
Balance Sheet date there is an indication that previously assessed impainment loss no longer exists or may have decreased, the
recoverable amount is reassesscd and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount.

2.6 Earnings Per Share :
Basic eamuings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the penod attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period/year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable o equity sharcholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.7 Taxes on Income

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates
and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961
Deferred tax assets and liabilites are recognized for the future tax conscquences attributable to temporary differcnces between the
financial statements” carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using the enacted fax rates or tax rates that are substantively enacted at the balance sheet dates. The effect on the
.I'_,\dq{l:rred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax raie is recognized in the period that includes the cnactment date. Deferred tax
[ | ‘_aﬁfc{s are recognized only to the extent there is virtual certainty of realization in future in case of carry forward losses.

28 -'il’i'ovisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets
7 The Company recogmzes a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probabiy requircs an outflow of
resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when
there is @ possibie obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a
possible obligation or a present ebligation that the likelihood of cutflow of resources is remote | no provision or g
Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.




DHFL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2024

{Currency : Rs in hundreds)

3 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with banks in current accounts

Total

4 Trade payables

{i} Total outstanding ducs of micro enterprises and smali
enterprises (refer note 12)
Total

(i1) Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Total

Ageing of Trade Payable

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterpriscs

Less than | year

1 to 2 years

2 to 3 years

More than 3 years

Total

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

2,906.19 12.51
2,906.19 12.51
600.00 1,514.41
600.00 1,514.41
600.00 1,195.56

- 217.85

- 101.00
600.00 1.514.41

Dues 1o Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of information collected by the Management. The Company has not received
any memorandum (as required to be filed by the suppliers with notified authority under the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006} from vendor ¢laiming the status as micro or
smail enterprises, hence no disclosures have been made. Trade payables are recogniscd at their
onginal invoice amounis which represents their fair values on initial recognition. Trade payables are
considered to be of short duration and are not discounted and the carrying values are assumed 10

approximate their fair values.

5 Borrowings (other than Debt Securities)
Borrowings in India
Measured at amortised cost
Short term borrowings from a fellow subidiary
{unsccured)t

Total




DHFL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2024

{(Currency : Rs in hundreds)

As at Asg at
March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023

6 Equity Share Capital

Authorized share capita]:

1,00.000 (March 31, 2023: 1.00.000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- 14,000 18,000
each

Total 10,000 10,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity share capital:

Opening balance 1,000 1,000
Add: Issue of shares during the year 5,000 -
Total 6,000 1,000

Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting vear

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Equity shares No. of Amount No. of shares Amount
shares
At the beginning of the year 10,000 1.080 10,000 1,000
Add: Issue of shares during the year 50,000 5.000 - =
Outstanding at the end of the vear 60,000 6,000 10,000 1,000
Details of shares held by Promoter
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars Neo. of % Holding No. of shares % Holding
shares
Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited 60,000 100% 10,000 100%
Details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the Company
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars No. of % Holding No. of shares % Holding
shares
Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited 60,000 130% 10,000 120%

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is
entitled to one vote per share. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend.

Issue of Shares Under Right Issue

During the year, the company issucd and allotted 50,000 equity shares pursuant to Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013
(as amended or re-enacted from time 1o ime) ("the Act"), read with the Rules made thereunder {"the Rules") and other
applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules, if any, in accordance with the letter of offer for the issuance of shares on a
rights basis. The shares have a face value of Rs 10 cach and were issued at par, totaling Rs 5,00,000. The share application
money was received on April 28, 2023, and the shares were aliotted on the same day

Other equity
Retained earning

Opening Balance {2,790.62) {1,915.94)
Net profit{loss) for the year {903.20) {§74.68)
Closing Balance (3.693.81)




DHFL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : Rs in hundreds)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
g Other operating Income
Write back of professional fees : - 206.50
- 206.50
% Finance costs
Interest on borrowings - 22.50
- 22.50
10 Other Expenses
Legal and professionai fees 683.00 342.00
Filling Fees 3421 447.00
Bank Charges 24.77 93%.12
Duties and taxes 41.22 70.56
Payments to auditors
- as auditor 100.00 160.00
- for other services -
Other Expenses 5

Total 903.20 1,058.68




DHFL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : Rs in hundreds)

11

12

13

14

15

Earnings per share {EPS)

Basic and diluted EPS is computed in accordance with Ind AS 33 *Eamings Per Share’ specified under section 133
of the Companies Act, 201 3.

The computation of eamings per share is sct out below:

For the year ended  For the year
Description ended

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Net profit/{loss) attributable 10 equity shareholders (303.20) (87468}
Weighted average number of equity shares cutstanding during the vear 56,175 13,000
Basic and Diluted EPS of face value of Rs. 10 (1.61} (8.75)

The basic and diluted EPS is same as there are no
potential dilutive equity shares.

Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enserprises Development Act, 2006, (*MSMED") which came inio force from
October 2, 2006, certain disclosures are required to be made reiating to Micro, Small and Mediur enterprises. On
the basis of the information and records available with company including confirmations scught from suppliers on
registration with specified authority under MSMED, the amount of principal and interest outstanding duning the year
is Nil.

Contingent liabilities

As on March 31, 2024, the contingent liability is Nil. {March 31, 2023- Nil)

Segment Reporting

The company does not have any income from operations during the pericd and accordingly there are no reportable
segments as specified in IND AS 108 {"Operating Segment™} which needs to be reported.

Income Taxes

Deferred Tax Assets is not recognised as a matter of prudence and provsion for current tax is not madce in view of
assessable loss for the year.




DHFL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2024
(Currency : Rs in hundreds)

16 Information in accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard 24 on Related

Party Disclosures.
List of Related Partics

A. Holding company
{a} Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited

(b} Piramal Enterprises Limited - Ultimate Holding Company

B. Key Managerial Personnet & Director
(a ) Mr. Pradeep Atmaram Sewant, Director
(b} Mr. Bipin Singh, Director
{c} Mr. Pralhad Kulkaimi, Director

C. Fellow subsidiaries having transaction during the year

- DHFL Advisory & Investments Privale Limited

D. Details of transactions with related parties

Details of Transactions

- DHFL Advisory & [nvestments Private Limited

TOTAL

Issue of Equity Capital
- Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited

TOTAL

Interest on loan
- DHFL Advisory & Investments Private Limited

TOTAL

Holding Company  Fellow Subsidiaries

Repayment of borrowing and interest on borrowing

March 31, March March 31, March 31,
2024 31,2023 2024 2023
- - 288.71
- - 288.71 -
5,000 = = =
5,000 - - =
- - - 22.58
- - - 22.50

E. Details of balances with related parties

Payable balance
- DHFL Advisory & Investments Private Limited

TOTAL

Holding Company  Feliow Subsidiarics

March 31, March March 31,
2024 31,2023 2024

Mazrch 31,
2023

288.71

288.71

17 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The tabie below shows an analysis of assets and liabulities analysed according to when they 2re expecied to be recovered or

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Within 12 | After 12 Within 12 | After 12
months | months Total maonths mnnths Total
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash cquivalents 2,906.19 - 2,906.19 12.51 12.51
Total Assets 2.906.19 - 2.906.19 12.51 12.51

LIABILITIES
Financial liabilitics
Trade payables 600.00 - 600.00| L51441 1,514.41
Borrowingsfother than debt securities)} . - 288.71 288.71

Tuatal Liakilities 603.00 - 500.00 | 1,803.12 - 1.803.12




DHFL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : Rs in hundreds)

18 Financial Instruments-Fair values and risk management
Accounting classification

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) Categories of Financial Instruments: FVTPL FVOCI Amortised FVTPL FVOC]I Amortised
Cost* Cost*
Financial Assets
Cash and Bank Balances - - 2,906.19 - - 12.51
- - 2,906.19 - - 12.51
Financial liabilities
Trade Payables - - 600.00 - - 1,514.41
Borrowings{cther than debt secunties) - - - - - 288.71
- - 600.00 B B 1,803.12
b) Fair Value Hierarchy and Method of Valuation
Financial Instruments March 31, 2024
Carrying  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Value
Measured at Amortised Cost*
Financial Assets
Cash and Bank Balances 2,906.19 - - - -
2,906.19 - - - -

Financial liabilities
Trade Payables 600.00 - - - -
Borrowings{other than debt securities) - - " - -

600.00 - - - -
Financizl Instruments tarch 31, 2023
Carrying Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Value
Measured at Amortised Cost*
Financial Assets
Cash and Bank Balances 12.51 - - - -
12.51 - - - -
Financial liabilities
Trade Payables [,514.4] . S & s
Borrowings{other than debt securities} 288.71 - - - -
1,803.12 = - - -

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categornised into fair value hierarchy based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair valuc measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

+ Level 1 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

= Level 2 inputs, other than quoted prices included within level |, that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

» Level 3 where unobservable inputs are used for the valuation of assets or liabilities.




Risk management

The Company has exposure to the folfowing risks arising from financial instruments:
-Credit risk

-Liguidity risk and

-Market risk

Risk management framework

The Company’s principal financial liabilities compnise trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities
is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company's principal financial assets include cash and cash equivalents that derive
directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market tisk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The Board of Directors reviews and agrecs policies for managing each of these risks, which are
summarised below:

Market risk

Market nisk is the nisk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will tlucniate because of changes in
rarket prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price
risk Financial insrmimente affected by markat ricle inchide FVY TP invectments

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or futere cash flows of & financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to
a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities from its other financial instruments

Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s board of directors. Invesiments of
surplus funds are made only with approval of Board of directors.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company’s
approach to managing hquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company’s reputation.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintzining adequate reserves, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of the financial assets and liabilities.

Capital Management
Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise sharcholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions or its business requirements. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders, retumn capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. No changes werc made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31,
2023




DHFL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency ; Rs in hundreds)

19 Analytical Ratios

Particulars MZI};];M \ M:;:;)c;;)l, Va:;::ncc e 20 Denontinator Remarks

{a) Capital to risk-weighted | 484.36% 0.83% -58559% |Tier [ Capital + Tier |Risk Weighted Assets

assets ratio (CRAR) Il Capital On Balance sheetand | Variance to due decrease in
off Balance sheet ilems  |Hability & Increase in Cash

in Hand

{b} Tier ICRAR 79.35% 0.00% -100% | Tier | Capitai Risk Weighted Assets
SZOBRAISHECEhErhn] Due to posilive networth
off Balance sheet lems

{c} Tier [ CRAR 0.00% 0.00% 0.08%  |Tier Il Capitai Risk Weighted Asscts
On Balance sheet and
off Balance sheet flems

{d) Liguidity Coverage Ratiq  484% 0.83% -58559% |High Quality Liquid |Net Cash Out flows Vartance to due decrease in

Assels liability & increase in Cash

in Hand

20 Other Statutory information
1) The Company does not have any Benami property , where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any

it} The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory

period.

i) The Company has not done any lransactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companics Act, 2013 or section 560 of

Companies Act. 1956,

iv} The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the period,

v} The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person (s)or entity {ies), including forcign

entities {Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(2) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or cntitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on

behalf of the Funding Partv {Ultimate Beneficianes). or

{b} Provide any guarantee, secunity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

During the year the Company have nol received any fund from any person(s} or entity(ies), inciuding foreign entities
{Funding Party) with the understanding {whether recorded in wniting or otherwise) that the [nlermediary shall:

vi

e

{a} Dircctly or indirectly iend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on

{b) Providc any guaranies, security or the like on behail of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

vii} The Company have not had any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the 1ax assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 {such as,

search or survev or anv other relevant orovisions of the Income Tax Act. 1961,
viii’ The company does not have any owned or leased immovable property.




21

22

23

Other matters
Information with regard to other matters specified in Schedule 11T 1o the Act is either Nil or not applicable to the

Foreseable losses
The Company does not have any long term contracts which are required to be assessed for material forseable losses.

Previous year's figures

Figures for the previous year have been regrouped, rearranged and reciassified wherever necessary. Accordingly,
amounts and other disclosure for the previous year are included as an integral part of the cumrent year's financiai
statement and are to be read in relation to the amounts and other disclosures relating to the current year,

For Vatsaraj & Co. For and behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants DHFL Holdings Limited
Firm Regrstration No, |1 1327?"

Dr. CA B. K. Vataraj
Partner

M MNo.: (633994

Plagce : Mumbai
Mumbai, May 06, 2024

Prijdeep Sawant
Managing Director
DiN : 08957171 DIN | 00058068
Mumbai, May 06, 2024  Mumbai, May 08, 2024
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Piramal Payment Services Limited

Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2024

{Currency : Rs in lakhs}

As at As at
Note March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Financial assefs:
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 3 456.90 54924
Total Assets 496.50 549.24
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial liabilities:
{a) Trade payablcs
{1) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 4 -
{1i} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
and smali enterprises 4 (.81 -
{b) Other financial liabilities 3 0.21 12.83
Equity
{a) Equity sharc capital 6 350.00 550.00
(o Other equity 7 (54.12) (13.59)
Total Liabilities and Equity 496,90 549,24
Significant accounting policies 2
The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached.
For Vatsaraj & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Piramal Paymeni Services Limited

Firmn Registration No. 111327W

Dr. CA B.K.Vatsaraj
FPartner

Membership No: 039894
Mumbai,9f M m, 2024

_Jdiram Sridharan 3
Managing Director Director
DIN: 05165390 DIN: 07492539




Piramat Payment Services Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss
For the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : Rs in fakhs)

Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue from operations
[nterest income - -
Dividend [ncome - =
Other operating Income - -

Total Revenue from operations - -

Other income - =
Total Income - -

Expenses
Finance costs - =
Employee benefits expenses - -
Depreciation, amoertisaiion and impairment - :
Other expenses 8 40.53 13.59

Total Expenses 40.53 13.59
Profit/{Loss) before tax {40.53) (13.59)
Less: Tax Expenses

Current tax - -
Deferred tax - =

Profit{{Loss) for the year (40.53) (13.59)

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to Staterent of profit or loss - -
Income tax relating to items that wiil not be z a
reclassified to Statement of profit or loss

Items that will be reclassified to Statement of profit or loss - -
Income tax relating to jtems that will be - -
reclassified to Statement of profic or loss

Net other comprehensive income g - "
Total comprehensive income for the year {40.53) (13.59)
Earnings per equity share {Basic and Diluted) (Rs.} 0.74) {0.29)
Significant accounting policies 2

The notes referred to above forms an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached,
For Vatsaraj & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 11/1327W

307

Dr. CA B.K.Vatsaraj
Partner
Membership No: (39894

Mumbai. 9, Ma;l 2024

N For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of
. Piramal Payment Services Limited

.‘. -" %/»-_
%/ :
& /
-~ Jairam Sridharan Jagd

Managing Dhirector Director
DIN: 05165390 DIN: 7492539




Piramal Payment Services Limited

Statement of Cash Flow
For the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency @ Rs in lakhs)

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit / (loss) before tax (40.53) {13.5%)
Any other adjustments - -
Operating cash flow before working capital changes (40.53) (13.59)
Increase / {Decrease} in Trade Payabies 0.82 -
Increase / { Decrease) in other financials liabilities {12.62) 12.83
Cash (used in)/from sperations {52.33) {0.76)
Less: Income taxes (paid) / refund - -
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities (a) {52.33) {0.76)
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Investments/Additional investment in equity shares =
Net cash (used in)/ from investing activities (b} -
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 5350.00
Borrowings taken during the year :
Borrowings repaid during the year =
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (c) 550.00
Net increase/{decrease)} in cash and cash equivalents (a+b+c) (52.33) 349.24
Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the vear 549.24 -
Cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year 496.91 54924
Cash and Cash Equivalents Comprise of:
Balances with banks in curvent accounts 496,90 549.24
496.90 549.24

The cash flow statemnent has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method’ set out in [ndian Accounting Standard-7,

"Statement of cash flow”

The notes referred 10 above forms an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.

For Vatsaraj & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 111327W

~

P [( ="

y ) j airam Sridharan
Partner #7.  Managing Director

Dr. CA B.K.Vatsaraj

Membership No: 039894 DIN: 35165390

Mumbai,g{, Mo\?d, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
nt Services Limited

Divector
DIN: 07492539



Piramal Payment Services Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Currency : Rs in lakhs)
A. Equity Share Capital:

Particulars Amount

Balance as at March 31, 2022 -
Add: Tssues during the yvear 550.00
Balance as at March 31, 2023 550.00

Add: Issues during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 550.00

B. Other Equity:

Particulars
Reserves and  Total
Surplus
Balance as at March 31, 2022 - -
Add/{Less): Transfer during the year - -
Add: Profit during the year {1359} (13.59)
Less: Other Comprehensive lacome (net of tax) - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 (13.5%) (13.59)
Add/(Less): Transfer during the year - -
Add: Profit during the year (40.53)  (40.53)
Add: Gther comprehensive income (net of tax) ’ - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (54.12) (54.12)
For Vatsaraj & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants — Piramal Payment Services Limited

Firm Registration No. | 1132PW
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Dr. CA B.K.Vatsaraj Jaira Mallareddy
Partner M‘aﬁ:i’ng Director Director
Membership No: 039894 /DIN: (45165390 DIN: (7492539

Mumbai,gf, oy, 2024
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Piramal Payment Services Limited (PPSL) is wholly owned subsidiary company of Piramat Capital and Housing finance Corporation
Limited and has been incorporated on April 29, 2022 under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. PPSL has been incorporated to carry on
the business of issuance and operations of Prepaid Payment [nstruments in accordance with the RBI's Master Directions on Prepaid Payment
Instruments, issued on August 27, 2021, to undertake any business relevant to prepaid payment instruments including but not limited to
facilitating payments to merchants for goods and services, remittance facilities, bill payments, cash withdrawal etc., as permitied by the
Reserve Bank of India or any goveming authonity from time-to-time, and other applicable statutory and legal provisions. The Company has
applied to the Reserve Bank of India for PPI License. The registered office of the Compaany is in Unit No.6031, 6th Floor, Amiti Building,
Agastya Corporate Park, Kamani Junction, Opp. Fire Station, LBS Marg, Kuria West, Mumbai City, 460070.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Basis of preparation of financial statements :

The financial staiements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies ([ndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as per Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter {(“Ind AS™) on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of cach reporting period. Accounting policies have been consistently applied
except where 1 newly-issucd accounting standard is initially adopted or 4 revision 10 an existing accounting standard requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use. All amounts included in the financial statements are reporied in lakhs of Indian rupecs (Rs. in lakhs}

except share and per share data, unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements requires management (o make estimates and assumptions that cffect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities on the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting peniod. Difference
between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known / materialised.

Revenue Recognition :

Other Income
Revenue is recognised when there is reasonable certainty as to measurement and ultimate realization of the same.

Financial [nstrument

A financial instrument is any contract that gives nise to a financial asset ot one entity and financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity.

Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities arc recognised when the Company becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the instruments.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issuc of financial assets and financial liabilities {other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or tinancial habilitics, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction cosis
directly atiributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately

in profit or loss.

{1} Financial Asset:
Financial assets that mect the following conditions arc subscquently measured at amortised cost:

e the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

» the coniractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income
(FVTOCI):

» the financial asset is held within 2 business model whose obicciive is achicved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give fse on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

By defauit, all other financial asscts arc subsequently measured at fair value through protit and loss (FYTPL).

All investments in equity instruments are initially measured at fair value, the company may, on inttial recognition, irrevocably clect to
measure same cither at FVTOCT or FVTPL.
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(I} Financial lizbilities and equity instruments

An equily instrument I$ any contract that cvidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity afier deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued are recognised at the proceeds reccived.

Al financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration recognised by the Company as
an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applics or is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabiiities that are not held-for-irading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabiiities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost arc determined based on
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is 2 method of caleulating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating intercst expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that fonn an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts} through the expecied
life of the financial liability, or {where appropnate) a shonter period, to the amortised cost of a financial Habitity.

Derecognition of financial liabilities:
The Company derecogniscs financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
An exchange between the Company and the fender of debl and other instruments with substantially different terras 15 accounted for as an
extinguishment of the oniginal financial hability and the recognition of a new financial liabiiity.

Investracnt in Subsidiaries and Associates:

[nvestment in subsidiaries and associates are recognized and carmicd at cost. Where the carvying amount of an investment is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount and the difference is transferred to the Statement of
Profit and Loss. On disposal of investment, the diffetence between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or credited
to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at banks and on hand, as defined above, net
of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Impairment of non financial assets:

The Company assesses at cach Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. For the purposes of
asscgssing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing usc that arc largely independent
of the cash inflows from other asscis or groups of asserts, is considered as a cash generating unit. If any such indication exists, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverablc amount of the cash gencrating unit
to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated
as an impairment loss and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If at the Balance Sheet date there is an indication that previously
assessed impairment loss no longer exists or may have decreased, the recoverable amount is rcassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount.

Earnings Per Share :

Basic ecamings per share are calcuiated by dividing the net profit or loss for the peried attributable o equity sharcholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period/year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted camings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attnibutable to cquity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the peniod are adjusied for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Taxes on Income

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the
provisions of the [ncome Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax conscquences attributable to temporary differences between the financial
statemenis’ carrying amount of existing asscts and liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using the enacted tax rates or tax raies that are substantively enacted at the balance shect dates. The effect on the deferred tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rate is recognized in the period that includes the enaciment dute. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the
extent there is virtual certainty of realization in future in case of carry forward losses.

Provisions, Centingent Liability and Contingent Assets
The Company recognizes a provision when there is a present obhigation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of

resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is 2
possible obligation or a present obligation that way, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, Where there is a possible

obligation or a present obligation that the likelihood of outflow of resourcesd c , no provision or disclosure is made. Contingent assets

are disclosed where an inflow of economic bepefits is probable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
as at March 31, 2024

{Currency : Rs in lakhs}
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0

(i}

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks in current accounts 496.90 549 24
Total 496,90 546.24
Trade payables
Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and smalt i _
enterprises (refer note 16}
Total - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other thag micro 081 i
enterprises and smaall enterprises ’
Total 0.81 -
Ageing of Trade Payable
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
Less than 1 year .81
[ to2 years
2 to 3 years
iiore than 3 years -
Total 0.81 -

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (*MSMED") which came into foree
from 2 October 2006, certain disclosures are required to be made refating to Micro, Small and Medium
enterprises. On the basis of the information and records available with company including confirmations
sought from supplicrs on registration with specified authority under MSMED, the amount of principal and
intcrest outstanding during the year is Nil. {March 31, 2023- Nil}

Other financial liabilities

Statutory ducs payable
Other Payable

Total




Piramal Payment Services Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements {Continued)
as ar March 31, 2024

{Cumency : Rs in lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
6 Equity Share Capital
Authorized share capital:
55,00,000 (March 31, 2023. 55,00.000) Fquity Shares of Rs. 10/- 550 550
each
Total 550 550
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity
share capital:
Opening balance 550 550
Add: [ssue of shares during the year - -
Total 550 550

Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity shares March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 5,500,000 550 5,500,000 550
Add: Issue of shares during the year - - - =
Cutstanding at the end of the year 5,500,000 550 5,500,000 550

Details of shares held by Promoter

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Particulars
No. of shares % Holding

No. of shares

% Holding

Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited

5,500,000 100%

5,500,000

100%

Details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the Company

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Particulars No. of shares  |% Holding

No. of shares

% Holding

Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited 5,500,000 100%

5,500,000

100%

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face vaiue of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is

cntitled to one vote per share. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend.

7 Other eqnuity
Retained Earning

Opening Baiance (13.59} -
Net profit(loss) for the year {40.53} {13.59)
Closing Balance {54.12) {13.59)

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

8 Other Expenses

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

5.78
632

109

0.40

Legal and professional fees 33.97
Fiiling Fees .16
Bank Charges 0.01
Dutics and taxes 6.05
Payments to auditors

- as auditor 0.4¢
- for ather services =
Other Expenses 0.0
Total 40.53
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Notes to the Financial Statements {Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency @ Rs in lakhbs)

9

10

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic and diluted EPS 15 computed in accordance with Ind AS 33 “Eamings Per Share’ specified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013

The computation of eamnings per share is set out below:

For the year ended For the year ended

Description
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net profit/{loss) attributable to equity shareholders {40.53) {13.59)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 5,500,000 4,704,451
Basic and Diluted EPS of face value of Rs. 10 (0.74) (0.29)

The basic and diluted EPS is same as there are no potential dilutive equity shares.

Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Under the Micro, Small and Medivm Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (*MSMED'} which came into force from
Qctober 2, 2006, certain disclosures are required 10 be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises. On the basis
of the information and records available with company including confirmations sought from supplicrs on registration with
specified authority uader MSMED, the amount of principal and interest outstanding during the year is Nil.

11 Contingent liabilities

As on March 31, 2024, the contingent Liability is Nil. {March 31, 2023- Nil}

12 Segment Reporting

The income of the Company comprises of solely dividend and interest income and accordingly there are no reporiable
segments as specified in IND AS 108 {"Operating Scgment") which needs to be reported.

13 Income Taxes

Deterred Tax Assets is oot recognised as a matter of prudence and provsion for current tax is not made in view of
assessable loss for the year,




Piramal Payment Services Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : Rs in lakhs)

14 Information in accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard 24 on

Related Party Disclosures.
List of Related Parties

A.  Holding company

Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited

Piramal Enterprises Limited - Ultimate Holding Company
B. Key Managerial Personnel & Director

{a) Mr. Bipin Singh, Director

{b) Mr.Jairam Snidharan, Director
{¢) Mr. Jagdeep Mallareddy, Dircctor
{d) Mr. Saurabh Mittai, Director

C. Details of transactions with related parties

Holding Company KMP & Directors
Details of Transactions Mareh 31, March 31, March 31, March3l,
2024 2023 2024 2023
Reimbursement of expenses received
- Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limi- - 12.53 - -
TOTAL - 12.53 = =
D. Details of balances with related parties
Holding Company KMP & Directors
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023
Payable balance
- Piramal Capital & Housing Finance - 12.53 - -
Limited
TOTAL - 12.53 - -

15 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are

expected to be recovered or seitled.

As on March 31, 2024 As on March 31, 2023
Within 12 After 12 After 12
Total
months meonths maonths
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 496.90 - - 549.24
Sub total 496.90 - - 549.24
Total Assets 496.90 - - 549.24
LIABILITIES .
Financial liabilities "
Trade payables 0.81 72, 0.81
Other Financial liabilities 0.21 "/;_'\, 7V 3 0.21
AN T )
Sub total 1.02 12 enn P\ Lm
Total Liabilities L02 ﬂg 111327 || 101

Rt




Piramal Payment Services Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : Rs in lakhs})

16 Financial Instruments-Fair values and risk management

Accounting classification March 31, 2024 tarch 31, 2023
a) Categorics of Financial Instruments: FVTPL FVOCI Amortised FVTPL FVOCI  Amortised
Cost* Cost*
Financial Assets
Cash and Bank Balances - - 496.90 - - 54924
- - 496.50 - - 549.24
Financial Habilities
Trade Payabies - - 0.81 - - -
Other Financial Liabilities - - 0.21 - - 12.83
- - 1.02 - - 12.83

b) Fair Value Hierarchy and Method of Valuation

Financial Instruments March 31, 2024
Carrying Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Value
Measured at Amortised Cost*
Financial Assets

Cash and Bank Balances 496.90 - - - =
496.90 5 2 = =
Financial liabilities
Trade Payables 3.8l % = - -
Other Financial Liabilities (.21 - - -
1.02 < - -
Financial Instruments March 31, 2023
Cayne Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Value

Measured at Amortiscd Cost*

Financial Assefs

Cash and Bank Balances 549.24 : 5 = o
549.24 2 s . -

Financial liabilities

Trade Payables - - - - =

Other Financial Liabiiities 12.83 - - s <
12.83 = = = =

Fair value measurements under ind AS are categorised into fair value hierarchy based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

» Level 1 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

« Level 2 inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directiy or
indirectly; and

» Level 3 where unobservable inputs are used for the valuation of assets or liabilities.

*The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets and other financial liabilities approximate their
rarmiing amannt largsly die tn the shortterm matnmnies nf thege instruments

Risk management frameweork

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is
to finance the Company's operations. The Company’s principal financial assets inciude cash and cash equivalents that derive
direcily from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit nsk and liquidity nsk. The Company’s senior management oversees the
manaegement of these risks. The Board of Ditectors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity nsk 1s the risk that the Company will not be able 10 meet its financial obligations as they fali dve. The Company’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its Jiabilities
when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company's reputation.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual /’5@‘“’4
flonws and matching the matbnty nrofiles of the financial assets and lishilities, (l =

V&)

o ,Q Vi
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|
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : Rs in lakhs}

17 Analytical Ratios

Particulars March March | Variance ]
S g || oo sa . Numerator Denominator Remarks
fa) Capital 10 nisk-weighted 48715% 4281% Q1% Tier § Capital + Tier | Risk Weighied Assets On  |[Varinee to due deerease
assets ratio (CRAR) Capital Balance sheet and oft in liability & decrease in
Balance sheet ilems Cash m Hand
{bj Tier § CRAR % % % Tier | Capitai Risk Weighted Assets On

Balance sheet and off
Balance sheet items

(¢} Tier TCRAR 0% 0% 0% Tier 1i Capital Risk Weighted Assets On
Balanee sheet and off
Balance sheet ilems

(d} Diquidity Coverage Ratio | 48713% -512%% 101% | High Quality Liquid Net Cash Oul flows Variance o duc decrease
Assets in liability & dectease in
Cash in Hand

18 Other Statutory information

i) The Company docs not lave any Renami properly . where any proceeding has been iniliated or pending against the Company for holding any
Benami property.

iy The Company does not have any chariges or satisfaction which s yel 10 be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

it} The Company has not done aay transactions with campanics siruck ofl vnder section 248 of the Companies Act. 2013 or section 560 of Companics
At 1954

v} The Company have not traded or invested in Cryplo cumrency o Yirtual Currency during the period.

v} The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested Runds to any other person {sjor entity {ies), including foreign cntities {Intermediaries) with
the vnderstanding that live Intermediary shall:

{a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons ot entitics identifted in any manaer whatsoever by or on behalf of the Fuading Party
{Ultimate Beneficwaries); or

{1} Provide any puarantee. security of the like on behalf of the Ultimate Benefciaries.

During the year the Company have not reccived any Rind from any person{s) or enlity{ies). including foreiga entities {Funding Party} with the
understanding (whelher recorded i wriling or otherwise) that the Inlemediary shall:

{a} Dhrcetly or indirecty lend or invest in olher porsons or entities identificd in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the Funding Party
{Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

wi

{b) Provide any guaramize, security or the hike on Behalf of the Ultinate Beneficianies.

v} The Company have not had any such teansaction which is not recorded in the buoks of sccounts thit has been sumrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments onder Lhe incame Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search o survey or any other retevant provisions of the Income Tax
Act. 1961,

viti. The company does nol have any cwned or leased immovable property

of FRN )
111327
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Other matters
[nformation with regard to other matters specified in Schedule 1T to the Act is either Mil o not applicable to the Company for the year.

Foreseable [osses
The Company does not have any long term cantracts which are required to be assessed for material forseable losses.

Previous year’s figures

Figures for the previous yesr have been regrouped, reamanged and reclassified wherever necessary, Accordingly, amounts and ather disclosure for
the previous year are included as ap integral part of the current year's financial stalement and are to be read in relation to the amounts and other
disciosures relating to the cyrrent year,

For Vatsaraj & Co.
Chartered Accovntants
Finm Registration Mo, 111327W

Dr. CA B. K. Vatsad
Pactner

W No.: (33994
Place - Mumbai

Mumbai )6 ma.fma

For and behalf of the Board of Directors
Firamal Payment Adves Limited

Dhrector
DIN: (7492539

=* Managing Director
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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of
Piramal Finance Sales and Services Private Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

QOpinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Piramal Finance Sales and Services
Private Limited {"the Company”), which comprises of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Cther Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
siatements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information

tn our opinion and 1o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescrived under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, {"Ind AS"} and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2024, its profit (including other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducied our audit n accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our reporl. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Charlered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 1o our audit of
the hnancial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics

We believe that the audit evidence oblained by us is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the financial statements

Information Qther than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The Other
nformation comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to the
Board report but does not include the financial statement and our auditor's report thereon.

Gur opinion on the financial stalements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any lorm of assurance conclusion thergon

(n connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other infarmation is materially inconsistent with
the financial stalements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or olherwise
appears to be materially misstated

It based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstalement of this
olher information, we requiied to report that fact Ve --@ching to report in this regard

B2 Lo\
O

N
~ \\\‘:ﬁ
*( MUMBALO1 ) ;D
G\ Fie y

) '/*f‘\ /

Regd. Office . 19, Esplanade Mansions, 14 Government Place East, Kolkata 700069, West Bengal, India.
Lodha E;_ Co (Registration No. 301051E} a Partnership Firm was converted into Lodha & Co LLP
(Registration No. 301051E/E300284) a Limited Liability Partnership with effect from December 27, 2023

Kolkata Mumbai New Delhi Chennai Hyderabad Jaipur



LODHA
&COur

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India. including the accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies,
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends o liguidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsibie for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial slatements are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and o issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists

Misstatemants can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the hasis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skeplicism througheout the audit. We also:

+ idenbly and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive {o those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resuiting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i} of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial control system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls

¢ Evaluaie the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management
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« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audil evidence oblained, whether a malerial uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may caslt significant doubt on the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern. if we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion

Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the entity o cease 1o continue as 3
going concern

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality 1s the magnifude of misstatements in the financial statements that individually or in
aggregale makes it probable that the econcmic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statemenis may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) ptanning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work and (i} Io
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matiers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safegquards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1 Pursuant to the Companies {(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure "A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that'

(8) We have sought and obtained all the mformation and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of cur audit.

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
50 far as it appears from our examination of those books and records.

{c} The Balance sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss (including other comprehensive income),
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account,

(d} In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended.

{e) On the tasis of the written representation received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on records by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March
31, 2024 from being appointed as a Directors in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
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(fy With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure "B".

(g) With respect fo the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of Section 187{18) of the Act, as amended, The Company being a private
limited Company, Section 197 of the Actis not applicable

{h} With respect to the matters to be inciuded in the Auditor's report in accordance with the Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations as on March 31, 2024.

. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable iosses.

fli. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, 1o the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company

Iv. 8} The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate} have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entity ("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall. whether, directly or indirectly tend to or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (*Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide sny guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. (Refer note 35 to the financial statements)

b) The management has represented, that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no
funds {which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, Jend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in_any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ('Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries. (Refer note 36 to the financial statements)

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
N the circumstances, nothing hias come to our notice that has caused us (o believe
that the representation under sub clause (i} and (i) of Rule 11({e) of The Companies
{Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as provided under {(a) and (b) above, contains any
material misstatement.

v The Company has not declared or paid gividend during the financial year 2023-24 and hence
reporting under Rule 11(f) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable

vi. {a) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant tfransactions recorded n the
software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance
of the audit trail feature being tampered with.
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(b}  As provise to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from
April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11{g) of the Companies {Audit and Auditors}
Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record
retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024

For LODHA & COLLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm r(ﬁ;ﬂ;&fn No. -~ 301051EH#E300284
Ar°

R.P Baradiya
Place: Mumbai Partner
Date: April 30, 2024 Membership No. 44101
UDIN: 24044101BKCJAAT896
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Annexure “A" referred to in “*Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section
of our report to the members of Piramal Finance Sales and Services Private Limited as at and
for the year ended March 31, 2024:

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and
explanations given to us during the course of our audit, we state that:

a. Inrespect of Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE} and Intangible Assets: - The
Company does not have any PPE and Intangible assets and hence reporting under clause
3(i) (a), (b), (¢} and (d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our examination of the records, neither any proceedings have been initiated during the year
nor are pending as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amended, and Rules made thereunder and hence
reporting under clause 3(i)e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company {Refer note 31
to the financial statements)

a.  The Company is in the business of providing manpower services and does not have any
physical inventories and hence reporting under clause 3(ii} (a} of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records, the Company does not have any sanctioned working capital at any
point of time during the year from banks and financial institutions and hence reporting under
clause 3{ii){b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In respect of Investment, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances
in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or any other parties:

{a) The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or guarantee or
provided security to any other entity during the year and hence reporting under clause i a)
of the Crder is not applicable to the Company.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis our examination
of the records, the Company has not made investments except for temporary investments of
surplus funds in the mutual funds and hence reporting under clause 3{iii(b) of the Order is
not applicable (o the Company

{c) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans during the year
ang hence reporting under clauses 3(ii)(c), (d), (&) and (f) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the books and records of the Company, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section
185 and 186 of the Act, to the extent applicable with respect to the temporary investments of
surplus funds in the mutual funds during the year. The Company has not provided any loans,
guarantees and securities to parties covered under section 185 and 186 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
records, no deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Section
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014 have been accepted by the Company and hence reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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vi.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the maintenance of cost records has
not been prescribed by the Central Government under Section 148 (1) of the Act for any of the
activities of the Company and hence reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable (o
the Company

vii  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
slatutory dues including Goods and Services tax. provident fund, employees’ stale
insurance. income tax, sales tax, custom duty, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and
other statutory dues dunng the year with the appropnate aulhorities. No undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues were outstanding as at the last day of the
financial year for a pericd of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records, there are no statutory dues mentioned in clause vii (@) which have
not been deposited on account of any dispute.

vii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
records, there were no lransactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) and hence reporting under clause 3{viii) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company. (Refer note 34 to the financial statements)

X {a) The Company has not taken any borrowings during the year and hence reporting under
clause 3(ix){a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b} The Company has not been declared as wiliful defauiter by any bank or financial institution
or other lender.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not taken any term loan during the year and hence reporting under clause 3{ix){c) of the
Order is not applicable {o the Company.

{d} The Company has not raised any funds on short term basis during the year and hence
reporting under clause 3({ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) Based on our audit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given {o us,
the Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint venture and hence
reporling under clause 3(ix){e) and {f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

x (&) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised any money by way of Initial public offer or further public offer {including debt
instrument) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3{x}(a) of the Qrder is not
applicable to the Company.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records. the Company has not made any preferential allotment, private placement of
shares or fully or parily convertible debentures during the year or in the recent past and
hence reporting under clause 3(x}(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

X (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accorgance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according o the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud
by or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of
such case by the management.
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{b) During the year, no report under sub section 12 of Section 143 of the Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed in Rule 13 of Companies {Audit and Auditers) Rules, 2074 with
the Central Government.

(c) Based on our audit procedure performed and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Section 177(9) of the Act is not applicable and hence reporting under clause
3{xi}{c} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

XN In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3{xii} of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

X According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, all the transactions with related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act and all the details have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by
the applicable Accounting Standard. As explained, provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company. {Refer note 21 to the financial statements)

Xy (a) According to the information ang explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
‘the records, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size
and nature of its business.

{b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit issued to the Company
during the year and till date, in determining nature, timing and extent of our audit procedure.

Xy According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
records, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions prescribed under Section
182 of the Acl with directors or persons conpected with them during the year.

xvi  (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Acl, 1934 and hence reporting under clause 3{xvi) (a), (b} and (c} of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the “Companies in the Group” as
defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and hence
reporling under clause 3(xvi){d} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

XV The Company has not incurred any cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and immediately preceding financial year.

XVl There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and
hence reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Xix According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financiat statements and our knowledge of the Boarg of
Directors and management pians and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that the Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, stale that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due
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The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover of
rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crore or more during the
immediately preceding financial year and hence, provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(xx) {g) and (b} of
the Order is not appiicable io the Company

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company does not have any subsidiary/associate or joint venture and hence
reporting under clause 3{xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For LODHA & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. — 301051E/E300284

}@DM

R.P Baradiya
Place: Mumbai Partner
Date: April 30, 2024 Membership No 44101

UDIN: 24044101BKCJAAT896
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Annexure “B” referred to in “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section
of our report to the members of Piramal Finance Sales and Services Private Limited as at and
for the year ended March 31, 2024

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause {i} of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Firamal Finance Sales and
Services Private Limited ("the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the intarnal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential component of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information.
as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the "Guidance Note”} and the
Standards on Audiling deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls and both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit invotves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financiat reporting included obiaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of ihe risks of material misstatemnent of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error

We beleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinicn on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporling is a process designed 1o provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
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accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts angd expeanditures of the
entity are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management. and {3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the entity's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements, and
(4) also provide reasonable assurance by the internat auditors through their internal audit reports
given to the organisation from time to time.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, inciuding the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements dug to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial conirol over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Opinion

In our opinion, fo the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, broadly, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential Component of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For LODHA & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No. - 301051E/E300284
e
R.P Baradiya
Rlace. Mumbai Partner

Date: April 30, 2024 Membership No. 44101
UDIN: 24044101BKCJAATESS
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Piramal Finance Sales and Service Private Limited

Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2024

{Currency : Rs in Lakhs)

As at Ay at
Note March 31, 2024 March 3T, 2023
ASSETS
{ Non-Current Asscts
{a} Deterred Tax Assets {MNetj 3 4 &
{h} Current tax Assets {Net) 4 774 445
Total Non-Current Assets 758 505
2 Current Assets
{a} Financial Assets:
31 Tnvestments 5 1,360 -
(i Trade Receivables 6 817 989
{iii) Cash and Cash Equivalems 7 248 15
{6 Other current assets 8 237 1,197
Total Current Asscts 2,663 2,301
Total Asscts 3,421 1,806
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
(a) Equiiy share capital o] 14 19
(b} Qe equity Hil 2,003 169
Total Equity 2013 179
Liahilities
2 Non-Current Liabilities
() Provisions i 50 172
Tatal Non-Current Liabilities S0 172
3 Current Liabilities
(&) Frnanciz! habedines: y
{1) Trade payables 12
{a} Total outstanding dizes (o micro and small enterprises 2 -
(b} Total outstanding dues to creditors other than 92 391
micro and small enterprises
(i) Other financial Habilities i3 282 1,237
(b} Cther curvent labilities iq 839 761
<) Prowisions i &3 of
Tota! Current Liabilities [,338 1,438
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,421 2,806
Significant accounting policies 2
The notes refemred to above form an integral part of the financial statements 1 to 38
As per our report of even date attached.
Fow Lodha & Co LLFP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accouniants Piramal Firunce Sales and Service Private Limited

Ficm's Registrauan No: 30iG51E/£300284

i )
g ) ] ™

Sunit Madan

R.P Baradiya

Partner Dircetor [nrector
Membership No_: 44101 OIN - 00713974 DIN: 66441957
Mumbai

30-Apr-24




Piramal Finance Sales and Service Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss
For the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : Rs in Lakhs)
Nore For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2024 Marek 31, 2023

Revenue from operations i3 31,021 25,568
Other Income 16 7% -
Total Income 31,097 25,568
Expenses
Employee benefits oxpense 17 28,401 23931
Other expenses 18 718 1,152
Total Expenscs 29,120 25,083
Profit before tax 1.977 485

Less: Tax Expenses:

Current tax 214 163

Tax Expense for ¢ariter years {93) -

Dreferred tax credit 3 23 41)
Total Tax Expenses 144 124
Profit for the year 1,833 36100

Other comprehensive income
Jtems that will net be reciassified (o profit or inss

Remeasurement of the defined benefit liability/asset} (2} 4

Income lax relating to iterns that will not be reclassilied o profit or loss | {1)
Other comprehensive incoroe / (foss) 13 3
Total comprehensive income for the year [.834 358
Earnings per equity share {Basic and Diluted) (Rs.) 1,833.00 360.5}

(Face value of Rs.10)

Significant accounting policics 2
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements | w 38
As per our report of even date attached

For Lodha & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chanered Accountanis Piranal Finance Sales and Service Private Limited
Firm's Regisiration No: 301051 B/E300284

A [ S

R.P Baradiya Upmiz Goel Sunit Madan
Partner Durector Director
Membership No - 44101 DIN : 00713974 DIN: 06441937

Mumbai
30-Apr-24




Piramal Finance Sales and Service Private Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency ; Rs in Lakhs)
For the vear ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

A, Cash flow from opcrating activities
Profit before tax 1,977 485
Adpestments:
Intangible asseis wridten of - 3
Gath on sell of myraal fund (3) a
Gain on Fair Valuation (%) =
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 1,966 490
Decrease / {Increase) in trade receivables 172 288
{Decrease) / Increase in trade payables {297} 267
Drecrease / (Increase} in other current assels 960 {1,197
{Decrease} / Increase in other financial liabilities {935) 1,065
{Decrease} f Increase in other current liabilities 128 (1633
{[ecrense} / Increase in long term provisions (120) 132
{Decrease) / Increase 1a short term provisions 27 31
Cash flow from operations [.881 913
Less: Income taxes paid (Net of refund) {308} (324}
Net cash flow from operating activities {2) 1,483 389

B Cash flow from investing activities
[nvestments tn motual funds (2.430) -
Redemptions from mutwal funds 1107 -
Net cash flow {used in) investing activities (b} {1.34%9 -

C Cash flow from financing activities
intenim Dividend paid - 1300}
Net cash flow (used in} financing activities {¢) - 1300)
Net Increase in cash and cash cquivalents {a+b+¢) 134 8%
Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year 13 2%
Cash and cash eguivalents as at end of the vear {refer note 7) 249 113

The siandalone cash flow siaterreni has been prepared wnder the '[ndirect Method' set ot in Indian Accounting Standard-7, "Statement of
cash flow"

The notes referred o above form an inlegral part of the financial statemeats

As per our repoit of even date attached

For Lodha & Co LLP For and on brhalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accounianis Piramal Finance Sales and Service Private Limited
Fiem's Registration Mo 301035 | E/E300284

o S i) S %

R.P Baradiya ‘pma Goel Sunit Madan
Partaer Director Director
Membership No.- 44101 DIN : (0713974 DIN; (6441937

Mumbrai
30-Apr-24




Piramal Finance Sales and Service Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : Rs in Lakbs)
A.  Equity Share Capital:
Particulars Amonnt

Equity shares of Rs.10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

Balance as at Apni |, 2022 10
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year -
Balance as at Mar 31, 2023 10
Balance as at April 1, 2023 i0
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year -
Balance as at Mar 31, 2024 10

B. Other Equity:

Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Retained E2rnings

Balance as at April 1, 2022 i

Profi for the year 361

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax 3)

Dividend Paid {300G)

Balance as at Mar 31, 2023 169

Profit for the year 1,833

Cther comprehensive income for the year, net of imcome 1ax 1

Balance as at Mar 31, 2024 2.3
As per our report of even date attached.
For Lodha & Co LLP For and on behatf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Piramal Finance Sales and Service Private Limited

Firm's Registration Mo: 301051 EfE300284

o L) S

R.P Baradiya Upma Goel Sunit Madan
Partrer Director Director
Membership Mo 4410§ DIN : 00713974 DIN: 06441957
Mumbai

30-Apr-24




Piramal Finance Sales and Service Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

it)

tii}

GENERAL INNFORMATION

Piramal Finance Sales and Service Private Limited ("the Company') was incorporated in [ndia on September 99, 2020 and has been carrying
an. as its man business of sourcing. marketing & distributing of financial products. and providing manpower services, ete. The registercd
office ul’ the Company is 2t Fleor 4. Piramal Tower, 2 Peninsula Corporate Park Ganpatrao Kadem Marg. Lower Parel, Mumbai City,
Mumbai, Maharashtra, india, 400013

The Company is the wholly-owned subsidiary of Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Linmited

The tinancial statements were authorised by the Board of Directors for issue in accordance with reselutions passed on April 30, 2024

Basis of preparation
Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as per Scction
133 of the Companics Act. 2013 and relevent amendment rules issued thercalier (“Ind AS™) on the historical cost basis except for cerlain
financial instrumenls that are measnred at fair values at the end of cach reporting period as explained below. the relevant provisions of the
Companigs Act, 2013 tthe Aoy

All amounts included in the financial statemenis are ceported in lakhs of Indian rupees {Rs. in lakhs) except share and per shate data, vnless
otherwise stated
The financial statemients are prepared and presenied on geing concern basis

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have buen prepared on the historical cost basis except for cerain financial instruments that are measured at faic
vaiues at the end of each reporting period

All assets and liabilities have been classified as curcent or non-current 2s per the Company's normal operating cycie and other oriteria set out
in the Schedule T te the Companies Act, 2013 Based on the nature of producis and the time bebween the acquisition of assets for
processing snd their realisabion in cash and cash equivalents, thi: Company has ascertained its operating cyele 25 12 months for the purpose
of current and non current classification of assets and liabilities

Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards (“Tnd AS™) reguires the management (o make
estimates, judgements and assumptions, These estimates, judgements and assumplions affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilivies at the daie of the Nnancial stalemuents and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses docing the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to perind. Actual results
could ditter from those cstimates, Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively. The Management believes that e
estimates used in preparabian of the financial statements are prodent and reasonable Future resulls could differ due to these estimates and
the ditferences belween the actual results and the estimales are recognisud in the periods in which the results are known / materiafise.

Foliowing arcas vntail a high degree of cstimate and judgement or complexity i deicrmining the carrying amount of seme assets and
liabilitics

1. Impaniment of financial assets

2, Fair Valuation of financial assets and liabilitics and

3. ideasurement ol defined benetit obligativns: key actuarial assumptions
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended March 31, 2024

SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES

Financial instruments

Recognition and initial messurement

Financial assets {including Lease rental discounting ussets) and Ginancial Liabibtiss are recopnised when the Company hucomes a party 1o the
contractial provisions of the instruntems.

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are initially measured at fair value Transaction costs that are directly alributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and Hinancial liabilities (other than Hinancial assets and Nnancial liabilities at fair value through profic or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial asseis or financial lizbilities, as appropriate, on initial recogpition. Transaclion costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in statement of profit or loss

Financial assets

Classification

Financial assets that mueet the following condilions are subsequuntly measured at amortised cost:

& (he agset is held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets in order Lo collect contractual cash figws; and

® the contractual teems of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely paymen(s of principal and inlerest on the
principal amount outstanding

Financial assets that mect the following condilions are subsequently measured at Bair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT):
# the financial assel is held within a business madel whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
tinancial assets; and

* the contractual terms of the financial assel give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount gutstanding

By default. all other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL},

Dl instroments
Subsequent measurément of debt instrumcns depends on the Company’s business model fior managing the assel and the cash flow
characteristies of the asset, There are three measurement categorics into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for coliection of contractual cash fiows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and inlurest are
measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on & debt investinent that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is et part of a hedging
relationship is recogrused in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial asscis iy included
in finance income using the effective interest rate methud

Fair value throusl other comprehensive income (FVTOCT

Assers that are held for collection of contractual cash fiows and for selling the financial assets, where the asses’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and nterest. are measured al fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT), Movements in the carrying
amount are 1aken through GCI except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recogmised in the statement of profit and loss. When the tinancial assel is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recogrised in OCH is reclassitied from equity (o the swiement of profit of loss and recognised in other gains/ {losses) Inlerest
income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rale method
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2024

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Ewr value throush profit or loss (FVTPLY):
Assels that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVTOCT are measured st fair value through profit or lass A gain or loss on a debt
investrment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging refationship is recognised in thy
statemeal of protit and loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other gains/{losses) in the period in which it arises
Intzrest income from these financial assets 15 included in other income

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets
The Company apphes the expecied credit loss model for recognising impairment Inss on financial assets measured at amortsed cost, loan
comeitments, trade receivables and other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecopnises a financial asset whan the contractval cights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asser and substantially all the risks and rewards of cwnership of the asset to another party

On derecogmition of financial assets in entirely, the difference betwesn the assel’s carnying amount and the sem of the consideration received
and recervable, 15 recopnised in the statement of profit and loss,

Reelassification of financial assets and liabilities

After initial recagnition of financial asscts and liabilities, no re-classification is made except for financial assets where there is a change in
the business maode! for manaping those assets. The Company's manapgement determines change in the business model as 2 resuh of external
of inlernal changes which are significant 1o the Company’s operations. Such chanpes are evident 10 external parties. If the Company
reclassifies financial assets. it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately
next reperting period following the change in busincss model. The Company does not restale any previously recopnized gains, losses
{including impairment gains or losses) o interest

Financial Habilities and equity instruments

Classilication as debt or equity
Dbt and equity instruments issued by the Company ace classified as either linancial liabililies or as equily in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arranpements and the definitions of a financial liability and an cquity instrument

Equity instrament
An equity instrument is any contract that ovidences 2 residual interest in the assets of an entity afler deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued are recognised at the proceeds recerved, net of direet issuc costs,

Fingneial habihbies

All financial abilities are subsequently measured at amontised cost using the effective interest rate method or at FYTPL

Financial liabilities ar¢ classilicd as at FVTPL when the financial liability is cither contingent consideration recognised by the Company as
an acquirer in a busingss combination to which Ind AS 103 applics or is held tor rading or it is designated as at FYTPL.

Financial lisbiltecs that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accountng periods. The carrying amounls of financial liabilities that are subsequently muasured at amortised cost are determined based on
tiw effective interest method,

The effective interest meihod 15 a method of calculating the amurtised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
refevant penod. The cffective interest rate is the rate thal exactly discounts estimated future cash payments fincluding 2l fees and points
paid or received that form an integral par of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premivnmis or discounisy theough the
expected lite of the Hnancial Liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period. o the amortised cost of a Hinancial liabiliy

The Company derecognises lingncial liabilities when, and only when. the Company’s obligations are discharged. cancelled or have expired.
An exchange bulween the Company and the leader of debt instruments with substannially different teems is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the orizinal financial liability and the recognition of a new financial labiity
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i)

iit)

iv}

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (Continued)
Employee benefits

Employee benebits include provident fund, compensated abscnces and long term service awards. In case of Provident tund. contribulions are
made to the Regional Providenl Fund Office

Defined contribution plans

The Company's contribubion to provident fund to the Regional Provident Fund olfice are considered as defined contribution plans, as the
Company does nol carry any further obligations apact from the contributions made on a monthly basis and are charged as an expense based
on the amount of contribution reqaired 10 be made

Defined benefit plans

The Company contributes to Defined Benefit Plans comprising of Geatuity 2and Compensated absences

Gratuity: The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Grataily Plan”) in accordance with the Payment of Gratoity Act,
1972, The Gratwty Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested cmployces al reticement, death, incapacitation of lerminabion of
employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the lenure of employment. Remeasureient gains and Josses arising
from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in tie period in which they ocour. directly in other
comprehensive income, They are incheded in retained caraings in the statement of chanaes in ¢quity and (n the balance sheet

The Company has a policy an compensated ahsences which are both sccumulating and nen-accumulating in nature. The expected cost of
accumulating compensaicd absences s dewermined by actwarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at each Ralance Sheet date
using projected wnit credit method on the additional amouat expected 1 be paid / svarled as & result of the unused entitlement that has
accumulated ai the Balance Sheet date. Hxpense on aon-accumalating compensated absences 15 recognized in the period in which the
absences ocour.

Employee Share-based payments

The Ultimate Holding company has issued stotk opnions to certain employees of the Company, These transactions are recognised as equity-
settled sharc based payment transachions. The stock compensation expense is determined based on fair value of sptions and the ultimale
holding company”s estimate of options that will eventeally vest and is recognised over the vesting period in the statcment of profit and loss
with correspending increase in liability payable to altimaie holding company as the cost is recovered by the ullimate holding company in
enbirety

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions arc recogmsed when there is 2 present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it s probable that an cutflow of
resources embedying economic benefits will be required to sentle the obligation and therc s 4 rcliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation. When a provision 15 measured using the cash fows estimaled [o seftle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows {when the effect of the time value of morey is material). The discount raie used o determing the present value is 3
pre-tax rate that refleels current market assessments of the time value of moncy and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision duc to the passage of time 1s cecognised as intercst cxpense

Contingent liabalities are disclosed when there is 2 pussible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed
unly by the occurrence of nen accorrence of oy of more uncertan future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that arises from past events where itis either not probable thal an eutilew of resources will be required to setile the ubligation or a
reliabie estimate of the amount cannit be made

Conungent assels are not recognised in the Anancial statements. Contingent asset is @ possible asset that arises from past events and whose
existence wilt be confirmed oaly by the eccurrence of non-gccurrence of onc ur more uncertain foture evenis not wholly within the control
ot the entity, Howeser, they are assessed continually. and if it hus become virtually certain that inflow of ceenemic benetits will arise, the
asset and related income are recogmized in e financial staemends

Revenue vecognition
Manpower and Professional services are recognised in statement of profit or loss over time as the services are rendered

Interest income (rom a finaneial asset s recogaised when it is probable that the economic benelits will Mow to the Company and the amount
of income can be measured reliably Interest income is accrucd on a time basis, by reference to the amortised cost and af the effective interest
ralc apphcatle

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Company's right to ceceive payment has been established (provided that it is
probable that the cconomic benefits will low to the Company and the amount of dividend income can be measured reliably)
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v}

¥i)

vit}

viii}

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Coatinued)

Taxes on income

Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are incladed 10 the determination of the net prolit or loss for the year
Current [ax is measured at the amount expected to be paid 1o the tax authorities in accordance with the Tncome Tax Act, 1961

Delerred tax is cecognised on tumporary dilferences between the carrving amounts of assets and labilities in the financial statements and the
correspending tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, Deterred 1ax labilities are generally recopmsed for all taxable temporary
differances. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that iaxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured al the fax rales thal are expecled 1o apply in the peniod in which the lisbikity is settled or the
assel realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively cnacted by the end of the reporting yuar

Current and deferred tax are recopnised in profit or loss, except when they relate (o items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or dircctly in eguity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are aiso recognised in other comprehensive income or directly n equity
respectively. Where cuprent tax or deferred tax anses from the initial accounung for 2 business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination

Deferred tux assets and defecred tax liabibtics are offser, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current incomy 1ax assels against
current income tax liabilicivs and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation autharity.

While deternuning the tax provisions, the Company asscsses whether gach uncerain (ax position is 1o be considered separately or tonether
with one or more uncertam tax positions depending upon the namre and circumstances of each ungertain tax position,

Segment Reporting

The Company s operating in a single reportable segment 1.¢. manpower and professional service fees The Company is operating 10 a sipgle
reporiable segment and geographical segment in accordance wuth Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments as natified u/s 133 of the Companivs
Act, 2013 and gecordingly there are no separate reportable seaments

Cash and cash equivalents

I the cash Aow statement, Cash and cash equivalent comprises cash in hand demand deposits and Hime deposits with original maturity of
less than three months held with bank and debit balance in cash credit account, Credit balance in cash credit account are shawn within
borrewiags in financizl liabilitics in the balance shear

Exzrnings per share

Basic earnngs per share
The basic camings per share is computed by dividing the net profit adnibutable to the equily shareholders by weighied average number of
equily shares outstanding during the reporting vear.

Diluled earnings per share

Number of equity shares used in computing diluted carmngs per share comprizes the weighted average nomber of shares considered for
deriving basic carnings per share and also waighled average number of equity shares which would have been issucd on the conversion of all
dilutive potential shares. In computing diluted garnings per shace only potcalial cquity shares that are diletive are incloded
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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{Currency : Rs in Lakhs}

3 Deferred tax assets

Deferted tax assets

Movement of deferred tax

Particulars

Movement in deferred tax assets and Habitities;

Provisien for employee benefils
Gain on fair valuation on investments

Particolars

Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities:

Provision for empioyee benefits

Total

4 Current tax assets
Advance Tax {net of Provision as at March 31, 2024 -Rs
340 Lakhs and as at March 31, 2023 « Rs 221 Lakhs)

Total

3 Investments at Fair Value through Profit & Loss
Quoted Investments {fully paid}
Investment in Mutual Funds

Total

Apgregate book value of quoted investments
Aggregate market value of guoted investments

As st As at
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
34 60
34 66
Qpening Recognised Recognised  Closing
halanee as on in Profitand  in Other balance as
April 1, 2023 loss comprehensi  on March
ve income 31, 2024
60 (23} (L} 36
- {2} - (2}
60 (25) N 34
Opening Recognised  Recognised  Closing
balance as on in Profitand  in Qther balanee as
April 1, 2022 loss comprehensi  on March
ve income 31,2023
18 4| 1 60
18 41 | &)
724 445
724 445
1,360 -
i,360 -
1,360 =
1,360 -
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{Currency © Rs in Lakhs)

6 Trade receivables
Unsecured, considersd good

To related parties
Unsecured, considered good

Total

Ageing Schedule

As at
March 31,
2024

817

As at
March 31,
2023

816

817

989

Trade Receivables as at March 31, 2024

up to 1 year

lyear-2years

2years-
Iveuars

3 years and
ahove

Total

Undisputed Trade Reccivables - considered good

817

817

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good unbilled
FEVENUE

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful

Disputed Trade Receivables - considered gaod

Disputed Teade Receivables - considered doubtfut

Total

Trade Receivables as at March 31, 2023

up to 1 year

Iyear-2years

lyears-
Jvears

3 years and
ghove

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered rood

303

Undispuled Trade Reecivables - congidered good anbilied
revenue

656

Undispuled Trade Recgivabies « considered doubiful

Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good

Disputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful

Total

7 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks :
« In current accounts
Total

8  Other Current Assets
Advance given to vendors
Prepaid Expenses
Total

249

113

249

115

112
125

L1153
82

37

1,197
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Notes to the Financial Statements {(Continued)
as at March 31, 2024

{Cumency ; Rs in Lakhs)

As a2t As ut
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
9 Equity Share Capital
Authoriced share capital:
100,000 {March 31, 2023: 100,000} Cquity shares of R 10 each 10 10
Total 10 19
issued, subscribed and paid up capital:
Equity shares
100,006 March 31, 2023: 100,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 10 o
fuliy paid up
Total 10 o
Details of shares held by Promoter
. ) March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars - -
No. of shares | % Holding | No. of shares | % Holding
Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited { From Septernber 28, 100,000 100% 100.000 100%
2022y
Partieulars of shareholder holding more than 5% shares of a ctass of shares
: March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars -
MNo. of shares | % Holdinp | No. of shares | % Holding
Pi i ital & Housi i imi ber 28
irarnal Capital & Housing Finance Limited (From September 28, 160,000 100% 100,000 100%

2022y

* includes 10 shares of Bs. (0 each, fully paid held with br. Jairam Scidharan upto September 27, 2022
* includes 10 shares of Rs, 10 eack, fully paid held with Mr. Bipin Singh from September 28, 2022

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is eattled for one
vote per share. There are no restriction on payment of dividend to equity shareholders. Upon winding op of the company. the holders
of equity share will be entitted to receive balance assets of the company afier distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be in propertion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

19 Other equity
Retained Earnings
Total

10.1 Retzined Earnings

GCpening Balance

Net profit for the vear

Other comprehensive income anising from remeasurement of defined
benefit obligation net of incame tax

Less: interiny Dividend paid

Closing Balance

Dividend un shares

1003 169
2,003 1649
169 1
1,833 361
i {3

- 13040}
2,403 169

-

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on September 14, 2022, intec alia, has approved the payment of an
interirn dividend imeluding dividend disiribution tax amounting (o Rs 308 Lakhs for the financial year 2022-23

Surplus in statement of Profit & Loss are the profits that the Company has eamed till date, less any dividends paid to investors and
can be distnibuted by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders and is deterniined based on the financial statements of the
Company and also considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 Thus, the amounts reported above are not distributable

inenticely
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(Cureency - Rs in 1.akhs)

11

12

(a)
(b)
fc)

13

14

Provisions

Provision {for Employee Benebis

Asat

As at

Mlarch 31,2024 March 3§, 2023

Gratuity (refer note 23,13 98 82
Compensated absence 43 156
Tatal 143 238
Current 93 66
Non-current 50 172
Total 143 238
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSME} 2 0
Total outstanding dues of ereditors other than micro enterprises and sinall 71 391
Trade payables to refuted partics 21 -
Taotal 94 n
Ageing Schedule
Outstanding for following periods from the due date of transaction

I ear-
Trade Payables as at March 31, 2024 Not Due Upsall Jhar dycass- SiCAnSang Taotal

year 2years 3years ghove
MSME = 2 - - - 2
Others 71 - - - - 7l
Trade pavabics to related parties - 21 - - - 210
Disputed dues -MSME - - - - - -
Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 71 23 - - - 94
Trade Payables as at March 31, 2023 NotDue | LPieT ) [lyear- [ dyears. | 3yesrsand Total

year 2Zycars 3years abuve
MSME - { - - - Q
QOthers 374 13 4 - - 3
Trade pavables to related parties - - = E 5 :
Disputed dues -MSME - - = B - =
Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 374 13 4 - - 39
Other financial liabilities
Payabic to emplovees 282 1.237
Total 282 1.237
Other current liabilities
Statutory dues payable 323 321
Goods and service tax credit Payable 366 440
Total 839 761

& Co
Q\ih:.-—‘_\ 4
Q{_/ N \((

I ]
Jc | MUMBALOY )¢
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : Rs in Lakhs)

15 Revenue from eperations

Revenue from operations :
Manpower services

Total
16  Other income

Short term capital gain on mutual fund
Gain on Fair Valuation

Provision No Longer Reguired
Interest on Income Tax Refund

Total

17  Employee benefits expenses

Salarics and wages

Contribution o provident and other fund
Provision for gratoity (refer note 23.1)
Provision for leave encashinent

Staff weifare expenses

Share bascd payment expenses (refer note 23 2)

Total

18 Other expenses

Legal and professional fucs
Recruitment Expenses

Travelling and conveyance

Rates and taxes, excluding taxes on income
Membership & subscription ¢harges
Postage and communication
Printing and stationery

Payments to auditors

- as anditor

- for other services

Other expenses

Total

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
3021 25.568
31,021 25,568

3 =

8 2

50 -

15 -

76 -
25,377 21,091
1,890 1.530
18 17
{113} 160
1.206 1,133

20 -
28.401 23,931
369 127
43 796
67 29

9 B
174 i15

3 -
33 4
10 8
3 3
[ 3
719 1,152
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For the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : Rs in Lakhs)

19 Income Taxes Year ended  Year ended
March 31, March 31,
2024 2423
2, Recognised in Profit or Loss

Current Tax

In respect of the carrent year 214 165
Deferred Tax
In respect of the current vear 26 (42)
Total 239 123
b. The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Yearended Yearended Yearended Yearended
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023
Effective tax rate
reconciliation
Profit before tax 1977 483
[ncome tax expense caleulated at 25.17% {enacted tax rate} 498 122 25.17% 25.17%
Deduction u/s 30JJA (258) - -13.06% 0.00%
Intangiblc assets under development written oft - 1 £.00% 0.27%
Income tax expense recognised in prufit or loss pertaining
to current year 239 123 12.11% 25.44%

20 Earnings per share (‘EPS”)

Busic and diluted EPS is computed in accordance with Ind AS 33 ‘Earnings Per Share’ specified under section 133 of the

Companies Act, 2013
The computation of earnings per share is set ont below:

March 31, Mareh 31,
Deseription 2024 2023
Net profit attributable to equity share 1,833 36t
Weighied average namber of equity shares outstanding during the year tor calculation of EPS 100,000 100,600
Basic and Diluted EPS of face value of Rs. 10 i.833.00 360.51

The basic and dijuted EPS is same as there are no potential dilutive equity shares.




Piramal Finance Sales and Service Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements {Continued)
For the vear ended March 31, 2024

{Currency - Ry in Lakis)

3| Information in accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard 24 on Related
Party Disclosures.

List of Related Parties

a1 Ultimate holding compzany
Firamal Enterprises Limited

h) Holding company
PHL Fininvest Private Limited (Upto September 27, 2022)
Piramal Capilal & Housing Finance Limited (from September 28, 2022)

¢} Fellow subsidiary company with whaom transactions has beer carried out
Piramal Caparal & Housing Finance Limited (Upto September 27, 2022}

d} Enterprise in which KMP of holding company is having significant influence
Pramerca Lilc lnsurance Limited
£} Key management personnel ['RAPY
Sunit Madan (Dirceior}
Tapdeen Mallarcddy {Director)
Upma Goel 1 Dircetory weef, December 12, 2622

f) Transactions and bzlances with related parties

Details of transactions with related parties

Ultimate Holding Hulding Company Other Related Parties Total
Details of Transactions Campany
March 31, Marzh 31, March 3, March 31, Mareh 31, Mazreh 31, March 31, March 3,
024 3073 2024 2023 2024 1023 2024 2023
Service Fees {Income)
Pirarmal Capital & Housing Finance Limited 7 g 30,530 24,609 = - 0,530 24.609
Pramenica Life Tnsurance Limited - - - : 49 - iy -
Dividend Pazid {Expense}
Piramal Enlerprises Limited - 30 - - - B - 300
Legal & Prafessional expenses
Firamal Capital & Housing Finance Limiled - - 193 = - 1 193
ESOP
Pirwmal Enterprises Limited 0 - - - - - 0
[nsurance Fremiwm (Expense)
Pramerica Life Insurance Limited - - - - 125 ag 125 CL
TOTAL 10 g 4 24,605 415 99 31,159 2500%
WNtimate Holding Haolding Company Other Related Parties Total
Details of Quistanding balances Compuny
March 33, March 31, wiarch 3, March 31, March 3, March 3, Mareh 31,  March 3,
024 2013 2024 123 iz 033 134 023
Outstanding balances
Receivable
Piramal Capital & Housing Finance [imited : - 12 131 C - 817 121
Payshle
Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited : 4 w z o - e -
Piramal Enterprises Lintited 1 A = L w & i :
Unbilled Revesie
Piramal Capital & Housing Finance Limited : = - 86 2 - * 646
Advance Paid
Pramerica Life [nsurance Limited : - € 2 = 2 & z

~df

1-01)
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Disclosures as required by the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

("MSMED Act”) are as under:

Under the Micro, Small and Mediom Enterprises Development Act, 2006, ({MSMED’) which came into force from October
2, 2008, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises. On the basis of the
information and records available with company including confimmations sought from suppliers on registration with specified
agthority under MSMED, the amount of principal and interest outstanding during the year is given below.

Farticulars

Principal amount due to seppliers repisiered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at
year end

Interest duc Lo suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as gl year end
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day
during the year

Interest pard, other than uader Sectivn 16 of MSMED Act, 1o seppliers registered under the
MSMED Act, beyund the appointed day duning the year

frierest paid, vnder Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act,
beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Aut, for payments already

made
Further inlgrest remaining due and payable for carlicr years

As at
March 31,
024

As at
March 31,
2023




Piramal Finance Sales and Service Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency * Rs in Lakhs)

23 Employee henefits:

23.

Disclosures for defined benefit plans based ¢n actuarial valuation reports as on March 31, 2624

The Company's defined coniribution plans are Provident Fund The Company has no further oblization beyond making

the contributions to such plans.

Change in projected benefit obligation

Particulars {Non-Funded} | {Mon-Funded)
Gratuity Grataity
Year Ended Year Ended
Mareh 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Present value of benefit obligation as at beginning of the vear 82 7l
Interest cost 6 3
Current service cost 12 4
Past service cost o -
Liability transferred in - -
Benefits paid h (10
Actuarial {gain) / loss (2 4
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of
the year 98 82
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
Particulars (Non-Funded} | (Non-Funded)
Gratuity Gratuity
As at As at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the year {98) {82}
Fair value of plan assets al the end of the vear - -
Funded status (surplus/ {deficit)} {98) 82
Net (Lizbility)/asset recognized in the Balance Sheet {94) {82)

Net interest cost for cerrent vear

Particulars

Present valuc of benefit obligation at the beginning of the vear
{Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year)
Net liability/{asset) at the beginning

{Non-Funded)

{Non-Funded)

Interest cost
{Interest income)

Net interest cost for current year

Gratuity Gratuity
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
82 T
83 1
[ 3
[i] 3
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23

B.

E.

F.

G.

Employee Benefits: {Continued)

Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Lass

Particulars (Non-Funded) | {Noen-Funded)
Gratuity Gratuity
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 3023
Currenl service cost 12 14
Irtterest cost 6 3
Past service cost 0 -
Tutal expenses / {income) recognised in the Siatement of
Profit and Loss 13 17
Expenses recognized in the Other Comprehensive [ncome (OCI) for the vear
Particulars (Non-Funded) | {Non-Funded}
Gratuity Gratuity
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Actuarial {Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the year {2) 4
Return on plan assets, excluding inkecest income - -
Change 1 asset ceiling = _
Net {income)/expense For the year recognized in OCY 2} 4
Principal actuarial assumptions used:
Parficulars (Non-Funded} | {MNon-Funded)
Gratuity Gratuity
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 223
Rate of discounting 729% 729%
Rate of salary increasse 10.00% 10.00%
Rate of employee turnover 60.00% 60 00%
Mortality caie during employment indian  Assured|fndian  Assured
Lives Mortality|Lives  Morality

{2012-14) Urban

{2012-14) Urban

Batance shesi reconciliztion

Particulars

Opening net Tiability

Expenscs recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss
Expenscs recognized in OCT

Net hability transfer in

Benefit paid

Net liability/(2sset} recognized in the Balance Sheet

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2024 023
82 7
18 17
{23 4
(1} (0
98 82

Ve
~d [

1)
Je { MUMBAL01 ) 5
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23 Employee Benefits: (Continued}
H.  Other details
Particulars As gt March 31, As at March 31,
2024 2023
No of members 7340 7174
Per month salary tor members 739 665
Weighted Average Duration of the Projected Benefit 2 2
Obligation
Average expected future service (vears) 1 |
Projected benefit obiigation (PBO}Y 98 82
Prescribed coniribubion for nexi year {12 months) - =
L Net interest cost for next year
Particulars Estimated for Estimated for
the year ended the year ended
March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the year 93 82
(Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year) - -
Net Liabihiby/{asset) at the end of the vear 98 82
Interest cost 7 6
(Interest income) " "
Net interest cost for next year 7 53
J. Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Next Year
Particulars Estimated for |Estimated for
the year ended  |the year ended
March 31, 2024 |March 3(, 2023
Current service cost 8 12
Net terest cost Fi 6
{Expected contributions by the employees) . -
Expenses recognized 15 1§
K. Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments: From the Employer

Projected Benefits Payable in Futers Years From the Date
of Reporting

Estimated for
the year ended
March 31, 2024

Estimated for
the year ended
March 31,2023

1st Following Year

2nd Following Year

3rd Following Year

4th Following Year

Sth Fellowing Year

Sum of Years 6 to 10

Sum of Years 11 and above

61
20
8

LEE S

44

23

o

=R R =
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23  Employee Benefits: {Continued)}

L.

Sensitivity analysis

Projected benefits payable in Future years from the date of| Asat Mareh 31,| As at March 31,
reporting 2024 023
Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions 98 82
Delia effect of +1% change in rate of discounting (i n
Delia effect of -1 % change in rate of discouniing 1 1
Delta eftect of +1% change in rate of salary increasc 1 i
Delta effect of - 1% change in rate of salary increase (1 {1}
Delhta eftect of +1% change in rate of emplovee wenover 1 (n
Delta effect of - 1% change in rate of emplovee turnover 1 1

Notes:

Gratuiby 1s pavable as per company’ scheme as detailed in the report

Actuarial gains/losses are recognized n the period of occurrence under Other Comprehensive Tneome {OCT) All above
reported figures of OCI are gross of taxation,

Salary escalation and attrition rate are considered as advised by the Company; they appear to be in line with the industry
practice considering promotion and dernand and supply of the employees

Average Expected Future Service represents Estimated Term of Post - Employment Bene{it Cbligation.

Cash {low projection is dene considering future salary, attrilion and death in respective year for members as mentioned
above

These plans typically expose the Company to acwarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and
salary risk

Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using 3 discount rale which is determined by
reference to market vields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. Plan invesiment is a mix of
invesiments iR govermment securities, and other debt instruments,

Interest Rate risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability, however, this will be partially offsel by an increase in
the return on the plan’s debt investments

Longevity risk

The present value of the defined berefil plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of
plan participanis both during and after their employment. An increase in the hie expeciancy of the plan participants will
increase the plan’s lability

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salarics of plan participants
As such, un increase i the salary of the plan participanis will increase the plan’s liability
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232 Share Based payment
The Ultimate Helding Company {1e. Piramal Enterprises Limited "PEL") bas issued stock options to certain select
employees of the Company. These transactions are recognized as equity-settled share based payment transactions. The

Scheme allows the Grant ot Stock Options to emplovees of the Company that meel the eligibility eriteria. Each option
comprises one underlying Equity Share

Employee Stock Option Scheme znd related scheme wise details are as follows

For 1/3 vesting | For 1/3 vesting
start - Marveh | start-July (7,

Particulars 31, 224 H24
Date of Gram March 31, 2023 Juiy 17,2023
Number of aptions granted 3134 3285
Number of opiions exercisable as on March 31, 2024 1045 -
Exercise price per option 2 2
Vesting Commencement date March 31,2023 | July 17, 2024
Exercise period 28 Months 36 Months

/3 vesting on 1/3 vesting on
Miacch 31,2024 July 17, 2024
1/3 vesbing on 1/3 vesting on
Augusi 12024 | July 17,2025

173 vesting on 1/3 vesting on
Date of vesting Avgust 1,2025 | July i 7, 2026
Method of Seitlement Equity sctiled Equity settled
Modification to share based pavment plang NA NA

The historical volatility of PEL stock
price returns for a time frame
corresponding  lo  the cemamning
contractual life has been relied upon

Basis of determinacion of volaiilicy a5 a proxy for the expectad volatility,
Emplovee to remain in service on the
Vesting Conditions date of vesting

Summary of stock options

Weighted-
Wei -
Number of eighted Aver‘xg‘e
. Average Remaining
plion: Exercise Price  Contractual Life
(Years)

Balance—March 31, 2022 - . _
Granted during the year 303 200 4 -5 years
Exercised during the year - = =
Forefeited/Lapsed during the year - - -

Balance—March 31, 2023 3.134 200 4 - 5 vears
Granied duning the year 3,283 200 5- 8 years
Exercised during the year - - -
Foreteited/Lapsed during the year - 2 :

Balance—March 31, 2024 6419 200 5- 8 vears
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(Currency . Rs in Lakhs)
The fair values of optiens granted during the year are as follows:

No. of Years Fair value per
Grant date vesting optien
INR 895403 -
July 17,2023 3 years NR 916.08
INR 631.84 -
March 31, 2023 2.33 years [NR 639.48

The fair value has been calculated using the Black Scholes Options Prieing Model and the significant
assumptions made in this regard are as follows:

Grant dated
July 17,2023

Grant dated
March 31, 2023

Risk lree inlerest rate
Expected life
Expected volablity

Expected dividend yield

Exercise Price (TNR)
Stock Price (INR)

6 81%- 6 84%
3.50 - 5.50 years
52.14%- 55 12%

1.74% - 2.07%

2
286.6

691%-092%
3.0- 3.7 years
3562%-58.71%
1.87% - 1 90%
2
678

The historical volatility of comparable compam's stock price returns for a time frame corresponding to the remaining
contractual life has beea relied upon as a proxy tor the expected volatility. Equity volatility has been based on historical
daily slock price returng as sourced from S&P Capital I Pro

Balance Sheet Reconciliation
As at Mareh 31, As st March 3),

{Rs. in takhs) 2024 2013

Opening liability - -
Fxpenses Recognized in Staternent of Profit or Loss 20 =
Payment against liability (19} -

Closing liability 1 -
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24

25

26

2}

b)

Fair Value Disclosures

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Catesories of Financial [nstruments: FVTPL Amortised Cost FVTPL Amortised Cost
Financial Assels
Invesiments 1,360 - - -
Trade receivables # - a7z - 989
Cash & bank balances # - 248 - 115
1.360 1066 - 1 104
Financial lizbitities
Trade payablas # - 94 - 9
Other Hnancial hakilities # - 282 - 1.237
- 376 - | 62§

31 March 2024
Fair Value Hierarchy and Method of Valuation

Notes Carrying Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Instruments Value

Financial Assets
Moasured at FYTPL

Investments
Investments in Mutual Funds 1,360 1,360 - - 1.360

Notes:
The Company has not disclosed ihe far value of rade receivables, cash and bank balances, trade payables and other financia!
liabilities, because their cartyng amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensire thai it will be able o continge as going cancern while maximising the retarn to
stakeholders through the epuimisation of the debt and equity balance. The curment capital structure of the Cormpany as on
March 2024 & March 2023 consists of only cquity

The Company delermines the amount of capital reguired on ihe basis of annual as well as long term operating plans and other
strategic investment plans, The funding requirements are met through cquity or cenvertible / nonconvertible debt securiies or
other long-term fshort-term borrowings. The Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of total debt to equity ravo
and maturity profile of the overall debi porifolio of the Company

Risk Management

Risk Manageinent s an iniegral part of the Company's business stratcgy The Risk Management oversight structure includes
Committees of the Board and Management Committecs. Company's risk philosophy is to develop and maintain 2 healthy
purtiolio which s within iis nisk appette and the regulatery framewark. While the Company is exposed to various tvpes of
cisks, the most important among them ace liquidity risk. regulatory risk and fraud and operational risk The measuremgnat,
oniioning and management of risks remain 2 key Focus area for the Company

The Board of Direclors moniters the quality of audit function and alsa momiters compliance with related regulators

The Company’s risk management strategy is based on a clear understanding of variows risks, disciplined risk assessment and
measurement procedures and conkmuous monnoring, The pelices and procedures established for this purpose are
continuously benchmarked with market best practices

T'he Board of Directors (BOD} of the Company reviews compliznce with risk policies. monitors nisk talerance Hmits, reviews
and analyse risk cxposure and provides oversight of risk across the organization. The BOD nuriurcs a healthy and
independent risk management funclion 1o inculcate a strong risk managemes in the Company and broadiy peiceives
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26.1  Fraud risk and operational risk:
The Company hras an ¢laborate system of mtemal controls communsurate with the size, scale and complexaty of its operations and covers
funding operations, Hnancial reporting, {raud control and compliance with laws and regulations
Risks associated with frauds are mitigated through 100% document verification by the managemeal and review of all the cases which are
entered in the system, includimg corrective and remedial actions as regards people and pracesses
Management monnters and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of intemnal control systems in the Company, its compliance with laws and
tegulations, cificacy of its operaling systems, adherence to the accounting procedores and policies at all offices of the Company and report
directly to the Board of Dircctors of the company.

26.2  Regulatory risk:
The Company requires certain statutory and regulatory approvals for conducting business and {ailure to obtain retain or senew these approvals
in a4 imely manner, may adverscly atfeet operations. Aoy change in Jaws or regulalions made by the government or a regulatory body that
governs the business of the Company may increase the costs of operating the busincss, reduce the atlractiveness of investment and / or change
the camgpetitive landscape

26.3  Liguidity Risk

The Bllowing tahles detail the Campany's remaining conteactual matuarity for tis financial liabilities with agreed repavanent periods. The tables
have been drawe up based on the yndiscounted cash flows of financial fiabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be
required (o pay. The contractual manurity is based on the earlicst date on which the Company may be required to pay

March 31, 2024
Maturities of Financial Liabilifies Upto ! 1te3 Jtn3
yeur years years % years & ubove
Trade Payables 94 - - -
Other Financial Liabilities 282 - E =
Total 376 - - -
March 31, 2023
Maturities of Financial Liabilities Uptol Tto3 3t05
year ¥ears Years 5 years & above|
Trade Payables k3] - - -
Otirer Financial Liabilities 1,237 - = =
Total 1,628 - - -

The Bllowing table details the Company's expected matocity fac its aon-derivative financial assets. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscountad contractual materitics of the financial assets including interest that will be earmed on these assets. The inclusion of miormatian

on non-denvative financial assets s wecassary in order to understand the Ce v's hquidiy risk as the liquidity is managed on a
rel ayset and liabiity basis
March 31, 2024
Maturities of Financial Assets Lptol lto3 Jtes
year Yeurs Years 5 years & above
Trivde receivables 817 z - =
Cash & bunk balances 249 - - =
Total 1,066 - - -
March 31,2023
Naturities of Financial Assels Uptol 13 Jto s
year years years 3 vears & above
Trade recemvables 989 - - -
Cash & bank balances 113 - - -
Total B - &
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26.4

27

27

28

29

30

31

Credit Risk

Credit risk 15 the nisk that counterparty will aot meet its obligations under a financial instrement of custaroer conleact, heading to 3 financial
loss. The Company s exposed to credit risk from ifs operating zctivities (primarily trade receivables)

Trage receivables:

The receivables of the Company are from manpower and professional senvices. Custamer credit nisk is ged by each business unit subj
to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit sisk management. Outstanding cusiomer receivables
are regularly monitored. Mo credil aliowance made. since the entire autstanding balance has been cleared subject to balancesheet date

Financial instruments and cash deposis:
The credit risk on other fimancial instruments is liniited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assipned by creditsrating
AZENGIES

Segment Reporting

The chicl operational decision waker monitors its ponciple business segment 1.0 Sourcing, Marketing & Distributing of Financial products,
Assets & Services. The Company is operating in a single reportable seement 1.2, manpower and profussional service fees. The Company is
operaling iR a single repartable segment and geographical suinent in sccordance with Tnd AS 108 - Operaling Segments as notitied ws 133 of
the Companics Act, 2413 and accordingly there are no separate ceportable segments

Information about Major Customer
Customers contributing = 10 %, of the revenue

Particeslrs For the year ended | For the vear ended
March 3L 2024 Mlarch 30, 2023
Customer | 98% D6%

Analyfical Ratios

Ratio NG T March 31, | March 31, | Yariznce | Remarks far Varianee
2024 2023 {9%) more than 23%
Current ratio Cormrent Agsets Current Liabiiitics 1.96 [T 109% | De to reduction in
Fenplovees’ dues
Debl-cauiy tatio Total Debl Shareholder’s Eauity N.A NA MNAINA
Debi service coverage ratio Eamings available Debt Serice N.A NA N ANA
for debl service
Retum on equity ratig Net Profits after | Average Sharcholder's 18330 3603 408%| Due to increase in
tanes Eguity profig
Inventary lurpaver rabig M.A MA NA M_A N AINA
Trade receivables tumuover raio Net Credit Sales Averaze ACCounts 003 33354 =100% | Due to advance
[in davs] Receivable repaymienls
Trade payables turnover ratio [in Purchase Average Accounis 296 448 -34%( Due to reduction
days) Pavable Recnuitment expenses
Net capilal lwrmaver caio Net Sales Working Capatal 2378 (164 55) -1 14%:|Due 1o increase in
revenuy
Net profit margin (%) MNet Profit after tax Mt Sales 591% 1 41% 319%|Dye to increase in
profit
Relum on capital employed Eang before Capital Employed GBI 2T AT -04%| Due o increase in
interest and laxes ot
Reettrn o investment Tnlerest income Closing invesiments oA N A N AIMA

The Company does nol have any conungent lighility 2nd commitments as on March 31, 2024 {Provious year - Rs Nily
There are no transactions with companies sireck oif ueder section 243 of the Companies Act, 2013 ar section 360 of Companies Act. 1950

The Company docs not have any Benami property. where any procceding has been initiated or pending against the Company for helding any
Benami propeity
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k¥ The Company does net have any charges or satisfaction which is yer to be registered with ROC beyond the statutery periad
33 During the current year the Company has not traded ar invested in Cryplo cuimency or Virtaal Corrency
34 The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts thal has been surrendered or disclosed as

income during the year in the tax assessments under the ncome Tax Acl, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other rolevant provisions of
the Incame Tax Act, 1961

The Company. has rol advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person{s) or entity(is}, incleding foreign entities {(nrermediaries) with
the understanding that the Intermediary shall: (a) directly or indirectly lengd or invest in oiher persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsgever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any puaranteg, security af the like to or an behalf of the
Ulmate Beneficiaries

L
e

6 The Company, has nat received any fund from any person(s) or entity(1s), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
{whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: (a} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by ar on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or {b} provide any gearantee, secunby or the like on
behalf of the Uliimsie Beneficiaries

37 Subsequent o the year end, the Company bias ransferred all 1is employces to Piramal Capital & Housing Finarce Limited (PCHEL 7 the
holding company) effective from April 1,2024, The holdinz company shall be fally and selely respensible for all dues payable by the Company
to the employees whether sccrued or otherwise. The Company will reimburse existing employee related liabilities as on March 31, 2024 o
holding company. en such transfer. Accordingly, there will not be any impact on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

38 Previous year figures have been regrouped or reclassified wherever necessary
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Piramzl Finance Szles and Service Private Limited

L] Guer 49N

Upma Goel Sunit Madan

Director Director

DN 20713974 DHN: 96441957
Mumbai

30-Apr-24
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Members of :
Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited

(formerly known as PRL Agastya Private Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited
(“the company™), (formerly known as PRL Agastya Private Limited) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31. 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of other Comprehensive income, the
Cash flow Statement and the statement of changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind
AS financial statements, give the information required by the Companies Act,2013, as amended (** the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and its loss including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
on the Ind AS financial statements.

Information other than the Financial Statement and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is material misstatement of this ¢ ation,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.




Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position and financial performance including other comprehensive income,
cash flows and change in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with
the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, specified under section 143(10) of the Act we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the companies Act, 2013,we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management




Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to date.of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the company 1o cease to continue as a going concern

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

-

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

ls

(o]

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure
A” a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion prober books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the statement of other comprehensive
income, the cash flow statement and statement of charges in equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule
2015, as amended:

¢) ‘On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2024, taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2024, from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to this Ind AS financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure
B> to this report;

g) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no remuneration is paid
by the Company to its directors during the current year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not
prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordange- Wil &\t 1 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion gl YoANE DS O
information and according to the explanations given to us:




i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position in
its Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 27(b) to the Ind As financial Statements.

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv) a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures that were we considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

v) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the company.

vi) The company, in respect of financial years commencing on or after the 1st April, 2023, has
used such accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for
all transactions recorded in the software and the audit trail feature has not been tampered with
and the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for
record retention.

For AKPJ & ASSOCIATES.
Chartered accountants
Firm Registration No. 156299W e
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Piyush Jain %\ pMURBAI
Partner %

M. No. 184780

UDIN: 24184780BKERCK9983
Place: Mumbai

Date: 02" May 2024




«Annexure A” referred to in paragraph under the heading "Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements'" of our report of even date

Re: Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited (formerly known as PRL Agastya Private Limited) (''the
Company")

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us In the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we state that:

i)(A) (a)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment.

(b). The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(B) All Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year
there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(C) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee) are held in the name of the Company.

(D) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or
intangible assets during the year ended March 3152024,

(E) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

i) (a) The Company's business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, from
banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Therefore, the provisions of Clause
(ii)(b) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the company.

iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not

commented upon.

iv) There are no loans, investments, guarantees and securities in respect of which provision of section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

v)  The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

vi) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under S 148(1) of the
Act for the activities carried out by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the

the Company.




vii) (a) According to the records of the company, undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Investor
Education and Protection Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax,
Custom Duty, Excise Duty, cess to the extent applicable and any other statutory dues have
regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us
there were no outstanding statutory dues as on 31st of March, 2024 for a period of more than six months from

the date they became payable.

(b) The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues have not been

deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

" Name of the statute | Nature of the | AmountTl—ll_Period to

Forum where the

- dues ' (Rsin which the dispute is pending
| | lakhs) amount
| ‘ ‘ relates
“Income tax Income tax | 15.40 h—“\{ 2017-18 | Appeal has been
- Act, 1961 i | filed with
‘ ‘ Commissioner of
I : . Income Tax ]
Income tax " Incometax | 55.41 "FY 2015-16 | Appeal has been filed ‘
Act, 1961 i I with Commissioner of
- | | Income Tax
" Income tax Income tax | 3523 FY 2014-15 | Appeal has been filed
- Act, 1961 | with Commissioner of
; ] Income Tax
© Value added tax Maharashtra | 7 FY 2015-16 | Appeal has been filed
| ,2005 Value added | with MVAT
tax 'l _ .
" Service tax Act, Service tax act | 45 FY 2017-18 | Appeal has been filed
1994 | ‘ with Commissioner of
| | CGST & Central
1 | Excise

| S

viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the of books
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income the during the year. Accordingly, the

~requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

ix) a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

defaulted in repayment of any loan or other borrowings or any interest due thereon to any lender.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to u

declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,

the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

s, the company has not been a

generally been



d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no funds raised on
short term basis which have been utilised for long term purposes.

¢) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

x) a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public offer
(including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and, not commented upon.

xi) a) No fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the year.

b) During the year no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by
the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

¢) As auditor, we did not receive any whistle- blower complaint during the year.

xii) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(b) and 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company and
accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the
Act is not applicable to the Company.

xiv) a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under
audit have been considered by us. :

xv) The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
director. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence
not commented upon.

Xvi) a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to
the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
company.

b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

¢) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requi
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.



xvii) The company has incurred cash loss of Rs. 264.48 lakhs in current financial year & in immediately
preceding financial year company has not incurred cash loss.

xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment

of financial liabilities. other information accompanying the financial statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

xx) There is no liability on the company under the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, relating to
Corporate Social Responsibility. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (xx) of paragraph 3 of the order are not
applicable to the Company.

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under this
report.

For AKPJ & ASSOCIATES.
Chartered accountants
Firm Registration No. 156299W

By o

Piyush Jain
Partner
M. No. 184780

UDIN: 24184780BKERCK9983
Place: Mumbai
Date: 02" May 2024



“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Report of even date on the Ind AS Financial Statements of Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited
(formerly known as PRL Agastya Private Limited).

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited
(formerly known as PRL Agastya Private Limited). (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Managemenf’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (\ICAI’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these
Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Ind AS financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Ind AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control with reference to Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference
to Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For AKPJ & ASSOCIATES.
Chartered accountants
Firm Registration No. 156299W

B T

Piyush Jain

Partner

M. No. 184780

UDIN: 24184780BKERCK9983
Place: Mumbai

Date: 02" May 2024




Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited
(formerly known as PRI Agastya Private Limited}

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

ASSETS
Non-gurrent assets
Propeny, plant and equipment
lavestment property
Intangible assers
Financial assets
i} Gther financial assets
Deferred 1ax asseis {net}
Mon current tax assets
(iher non-cureem assets

Curren! assets
Financial assais
i} Trade receivables
i) Cash and cash cquivalents
i) Bank balances other than (i1) above
w) Other financial assets
(thet current assels

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' funds

Share capital

Other eguity
Total equity

Non-current! lizbilities
Financial liabilities
i} Borrowings
i} Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other non-current liabilibies

Current liahilities
Financial labilitics
1} Bomrowings
n} Trade payables
- Iotal oulstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

- wtal cutstanding dues of other than micro enterprises and swiall enlerprises

1t} Otker financial Labiliges
Provisions
(nher current habilitics

Total liabilities
Total equity ard lizbilities

Summary of material accounting policies

AS 2t

{Rs. in lakhs}
As at

Note March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
3 1404 4 87
3 76,239 21 77,546 .84
3 = £
5 94 14 6416
[ 1,968 62 1.33603
7 | 646 83 1,602 74
8 1,162.72 117187

81,125.56 81,326.51
4 243 .45 28598
g 1,534.20 531.23
10 1,108 11 1,045 30
3 7.5 1602
nl 395 83 443 63
3.49%.10 2,322,346
84,624.66 83.648.87
12 5,549 00 300
13 (3,195.20) {13,113.41)
2.353.80 -13,104.43
14 74,502 94 9098000
15 271094 2,000.45
6 825 6357
i7 6377 6377
77.285.50 53,050.7%
4 % E
18 3245 3437
e 102833 387463
15 376733 292882
] 203 1 .64
19 134 81 15003
4,984,596 3,702.51
82,2710.86 96,753.30
84.624.66 83.648.87
2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial stalements
As per our report of even date

For A P K J & Associates

Chartered Accountants

ICAL Firm Registration No: [36299W

Piyush Jain
Partner
Membership No.: 184780
Place: Mumbai
Date; May 62, 2024
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Darshan Shah

Chief Financial Officer

Sunit Madan
Director
DN 06441957
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Company Secretary
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Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited
{formerly known as PRL Agastya Private Limited)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year March 31,2024

{Rs. in lakhs)
Not ¥or the year ended For the year ended
% Mareh 31,2024 March 31,2023

Income

Revenue [tom operations 20 $,206.20 5.346.28

Other income 21 1.231.60 5,381.73
Total income 10,437.80 10,728.01
Expenses

Employee benefits expense 22 138.27 328.07

Finance costs 23 841591 6,728.93

Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 1.547.86 1.581.01

Other expenses 25 2.191.78 2,510.74
Total expenses 12,253.82 11,148.75
Profit {Loss} before exceptional items and tax (1,856.02) {420.74)
Exceptional 1tem - -
Profit before tax {1,856.02) -420.74
Tax expenses

Deferred tax expense /(income) 6 {433.02) {507.53)
Total fax expenses (433.02) {507.53)
Profit / (Loss) after tax -1,423.00 86.79
Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive incorme not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years:

Re-measurement gain / (losses} on defined benefit plans 1.67 25.14

Tax expense on the above 0.43 6.54
Net other comprehensive income/ (expense) not to be reclassified to 1.23 18.60
profit or loss in subsequent year
Other comprehensive income / {expense) for the year, net of tax 1.23 18.60
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax -1,421.77 10539
Earnings per share {in Rs.}

Basic Earnings per shares 26 -123.4% 96.44

Diluted Earnings per shares -123.4% 96.44
Summmary of material accounting policy information 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statemcents.
As per our report of even date
For A P K J & Associates
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICAI Firm Registration No: 156299W Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited
Piyush Jain \/%;nva’c e Sunit Madan
Partner irector Director
Membership No.: 184780 DIN : 00713974 DIN : 06441957

Piace: Mumbai
Date: May 02, 2024
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Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited

{formerly known as PRL Agastya Private

Limited)

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Rs. in lakhs)

a. Equity share capital (note 12}

As at March 31, 2022
Change during the year
As at March 31, 2023
Change during the year
As at March 31, 2024

b. Bubordinate debt [note 12 (BY

No. of shares Amount
80,000 9.60
20,000 .60

32,400,686 324,000,000.00
32,490,000 324.900,000.00

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

At the beginning of the year - 56,930.00
Movement during the year - {36,950.00)
At the end of the year - -
b. Otber cquity {note 13}
Reserves and surplus
Deemed capital

contribution Securities premium Retzined earnings Total

{net of tax}
As at March 31, 3022 3,956.20 9,215.60 {25,406.13) (12,234.33)
Profil lor the year - - 86.79 86,79
Other comprehensive income or the year - - 18.50 18.60
‘i'tansfer to non convertibie preference share {984.49 - - (984 .49)
As at March 31, 2023 297171 9,215.60 {25,300.74) (13,113.43}
Profit for the year - - (1,423.00) (1,423.00)
Other comprehensive income {or the year - - 1.23 1.23
Addition during the year - 11,340.00 - 11,340.00
As at March 31, 2024 297171 20,555.60 {26,722.51) (3,195.200

The accompanving netes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For A P K J & Assaciates

Chartered Accountanis

ICAI Firm Registration No: 156299W
Y “Farmn

Piyush Jain

Partner

Membership No.: 184780

Piace: Mumbai

Date: May 02, 2024
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Piramai Agastya Offices Private Limited

LY

pma Goel
Director

DIN : 80713974

—||Darshan Shah

Su:t'_l?{a:a/)n/

Director
DIN : 06441957
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Mayank Patwa
Company Secretary
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Pirama] Agastya Offices Private Limited
(formerty known #s PRL Agastya Private Limited}

Statetnent of Cash Flows for the year ¢nded March 31, 2024

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Prafit / (Loss} before tax

Adjustments to reconeile loss before tax to net cash flows
Finance costs

Depreciation and amartisation cxpense

Provision for doubtful debts

[nterest income on bank deposits

Profit on saie of investment propeny

Deferral of Revenue

Liabilities writien back .

Fair value of Lease discounting

Ogperxting profit before working capital changes

Working capital adjusiments

Increase / { Decrease) in trade payable

Increase f { Decrease) in other curment habniities

[ncrease £ {Decraase] in other curvent fnancial liabilities
Increase /{Decrease) in shor-term provisions

Ineegase / {Decrease) in long-term provisions

[ncreasc f {Decrease) in other non-current financial liabilities
Decrease [/ { [ncrease) in cument trade receivables

Decrease / {{ncrease) in financial assets

Decrease / {Increase) in others current assets

Income tax paid {net of refunds)
Net cash (lows generated from operations

B. Cash flows from investing sctivities

Sales (Purchase} of property, plant and equipments, intangibles, capital work in progress

and capital advances

[nvestment in bank deposits

Interest received on bank deposits

Net cash flows generated {used) in investing activities

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of cquity share capital
(Repayment) from cuccent borrowing
Increase/(Repayrnent) of non current borrowing
Repayment of Subordinate debt

[nterest paid

Principal payment of lease Jiabilities

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increase/{Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Compencents of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand
Balances with banks

- On current accounts
Total cash and cash equivalents {nete 9)

(Rs. in Jakhs)
For the year ended Far the year ended
March 31,2024 Mavch 31,2023
(1,856.02) {42074}
841591 6,728.93
1,547.86 1.581.02
- 39.33
(71.90) (31.94)
(758.39) {5,068.23)
(19734} (622.66}%
- {77.90)
(295.33) (200.52)
6,185.29 1,927.29
43875 80.38
4,78 119.48
(72339 202858
0.3% (0.28)
3.34 283
72386 878 67
42.55 62.29
{29.98) (6.47)
54.27 {1951}
7,299.86 5,073.48
{644.09) (52841}
6,655.77 4,545.06
508.99 1,495 58
(62613 242.69
69.90 45.96
516.28 11,785.23
14 58000 -
- (354)
(12,658.82) 46,726.15
= (56,950.00)
(8,090.27) {5,964.15)
- {36.04)
(6,169.09} {16,167.99)
1.002.97 162.30
53123 36893
1,534.20 531.23
1,534.20
1,534.20




Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited
{formerly known as PRL Agastya Private Limited)

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024

Disclosure as required by Ind AS 7
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

{Rs, in lakhs)

March 31, 2024 Opening Cash inflows Cash outflows Non cash Closing

halance changes balance
Current borrowings (net) - - - - -
Non- current borrowings {including current maturities) 91,538.82 - (12,658.82}) {2,236.32) 7662368
Lease Habilities including current portion - - - - -
Total liabilities from financing activities 91,538.82 - {12,658.82) {2,256.32) 76,623.68
March 31, 2023 Opening Cash inflows  Cash outflows Non cash Closing

balance changes balance
Current borrowings {net) 394 - (3.59) - -
Non- current borrowings (including current maturities} 43.203.53 46,726.15 - 1,609.14 91,538.82
Lease liabilities including current portion 160.38 - (36.03) (124.34) 0.00
Total liabilities from financing activities 43,367.86 46,726.15 (39.97) 1,484.80 91.538.82
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Notes :

L. All figures in bracket are outflow.

2. Drirect taxes paid are treated as arising from operating aciivities and are not bifurcated between investing and financing activities.

3. The cash flow statement has been prepared under Indirect Method as per the Ind AS 7 "Siatement of Cash Flows™ as notified under
4. Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date

For A P K J & Associates

Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICAL Firm Registration No: 156299W Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited
W T | ) G
Upma Goel Sunit Madan
Piyush Jain Director Director
Partner DIN : 00713974 DIN : 06441957
ivermbership No.: 184780 ',
Place: Mumbai D W
Date: May 02, 2024 (23 4
seeae Sanrighny A

Darshan Shah Mayank Patwa
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary




Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited
(formerly known as PRL Agasiya Private Limited)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

tA

2.02

General information

Piramal Agastya Otfices Privale Limited {‘the Company’) ( formerly known as PRL Agastya Private limited} 15 a private limited company
incorporated in India under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in [ndia. The sharcholder’s had approved the change ot name of the
Company vide resolution dated 14th February, 2024, And the Ministry of Corporate AfTairs has approved the requisite e-forms and taken on record
the change of name ol the Company w.e.[. 26th April, 2024,

The Company is engaged in the business of real cstate / real estate development and incidental services. The corporale identification number of the
Company is U45201MH2006P 1C163659. Wing A, Amit Building, Agastya Corporate Park, Kamani Junction, LB% Marg, Opposite Firc Brigade,
Kurla (West), Kurla, Mumbai. Mumbai- 400070, Maharashtra, India

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with [ndian Accounting Standards (nd AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013 (as amended from time 10 time) and presentation requirements of Division [l of Scheduie (1]
to the Companics Act, 2013, {Ind AS compliant Schedule 111}, as applicabie to the financial statements.

For all periods up {0 and including the vear ended March 31, 2016. the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting
standards notificd under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
{Indian GAAP) and Companics {Accounting Standards} Amendment Rules, 2016 I'inancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 were the
Company's (irst Ind AS financial staternents.

The financial statements have been prepared on 2 historical cost basis, except for certam financial asscis and liabiliues {refer note 30} which have
been measured at tair value.

The financial staternents are presented in Indian Rupee (Rs.) and all values are rounded 1o the nearesl lakhs upto two decimais, except when
otherwise indicated.

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year.

‘The net current assets of the Company as at March 31, 2024 amounting 10 Rs. {1,485.86) lakhs. Basis the future cash flow projections, the Company
expects to have higher inifows as compared lo expected outtlows. Considering this, the financial statements have been prepared on going concem
basis.

Summary of material accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification

‘The Company presents assets and liabilitics in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification, An asset 1s ireated as current when it is:
- Expecied 1o be realised or intended to be soid or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of irading

- Expecied to be realised within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted (rom being exchanged or used 10 settle a liability tor at feast rwelve moanths afier the reporting period
A Liability is current when:

- It is expected 10 be setled in normal operating cycle

- 1t is held primarily for the purpose of irading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the setilement ol the Habilily for at least twelve months afier the reporting period

- Deterred tax assets and liabilities are classilied as non-current assets and liabilities.

Foreign currencies

The Company's financial staicments are presented in INR (Rs) which is also the Company's functional currency. The Company delermines he
tunctional currenicy and items included in the financial statements are measured using that functional currency.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rates at the daic the Iransaction
first qualifies for recognition.
Monetary asseis and habilities denominated in toreign currencies are transiated a1 the functional corrency spot rates of exchange at the repornting dae.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period in which they
arise.

However, Ind AS 101 gives an exemption for existing long term foreign currency non-monctary ilems the company can continue the policy adopted
tor treatrment of exchange differences arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items pertaining (o the acquisition of a depreciable asset for
tterns recognized on or before March 31, 2015,

For any new Iong tem Eurelgn CUMTENCY AoN- moneldry item n,cogmzcd from or alicr first.1 J’Q_F)@m
{15 g’a‘}%,
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Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited
{formerly known as PRL Agastya Private Limited)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

2.03

2.03

Fair value measurement

The Company measures {inancial instruments at fair value at each bhalance sheet date,

Fair value i3 the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid o ransfer 4 liabilily in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
mcasurement date. The fair valuc measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction 1o self the asset or trans{er the liability takes place
either:

- {n the principal market for the asset or hability, or

- [n the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or hability

‘The principal or ihe most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair vaiue of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing (he asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interesl.

A fair value measurement ol a non-financial asset takes into account a markel participant's abilily 1o generate economic benefits by using the asset in
1ts highest and best use or by selling it 1o ancther market participant thai would vse the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriaic in the circumstances and for which sufficient data arc available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of uncbservable inputs.

Exiernal valucrs are involved for valuation of significant asscts such as properties and unquoted financial assets. [nvolvement of external valuers is
decided upon annually by the Management. Seleclion criteria inciude market knowledge, repulation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. Management decides afier discussions with the Company's external valuers, which valvation cchniques and inputs o use
for each case, The external valuer is a registered valuer

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Ninanciul statements are categorised within the famr value hicrarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole;

Level | - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,
Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the Jowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable,

Fair value measurement

For assets and habilities held at the end of the reporting period that arc measured in the financial statements on a recwring basis, the Company
determines whelher transfers have occurred between levels in the hicrarchy by re-assessing categorisation {based on the lowest level input that is
significant o the {air value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company's management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as denvative instruments and
unquoled financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for sale or distribution in discontinued
operations.

At each reporting date, {he management analyses the movements in the values of asscis and liabilities which are tequired to be remeasured or re-
assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the magor imputs applied in the latest valuation by
agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents,

The management also compares the change in the fwir value of each asset and Liabilily with relevant external sources to determine whether the change
i3 reasonabic. O an annual basis, the management and the Company’s external valuers present the valuation resuls to the Company's independent
audiiors. This mcludes a discussion ol the major assumptions used in the valuations,

For the purpesc of fair vatue disclosures, the Company has dejermined classes of essets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characieristics and
risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above,

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair vaiue related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions {noic 31)
Financial insiruments (incloding (hose carmied at amorntised cost) {note 30)




Piramal Apastya Offices Private Limited
(formerly known as PRL Agastya Private Limited)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

2.04

2.05

Revenue recognition
‘The Company recognises revenue from coniracts with cusiomers based on a five step model as set out in Ind AS 115,

Interest income

interest income is accrued on a lime basis, by reference (o the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rates applicabie. Yor all debt
instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, inieresi mceme is recorded using the ettective
mierest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated {ulure cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability.
When calculating the effective interest raie, the Company estimates the expected cash {lows by considering all the contractual terms of the tinancial
instrument (for example, prepayment, exiension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expecied credit losses. Interest income is included
in finance income in the staiement of protit and loss,

Reatal Income and other associated income

Rental [ncome and associated income arising from operating leases on investmem properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
term and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or logs due (0 1§ operating nature.

Income from Management services rendered are recognized as the services are performed and are booked based on agreements / arrangements wilh
the concemed parties.

Taxes

Current income fax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount cxpected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authoritics. The tax rates
and tax laws vsed (o compute the amount arc thuse that are enacted at the reporting date,

Current meome fax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss Is recognised owtside statement of protit and loss (either in olher
comprehensive income or in cquity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying lransaction cither in OCI or directly in equity .
Management penodically evaluates positions taken in the 1ax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject 0
mlerpretation and establishes provistons where appropriate.

Taxable profit differs {rom profit before tax as reponed in the statement of profit and loss because ot flems of income or expense that are taxabie or
deductible tn other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.

Deferred frax

Deferred ax is provided vsing the liability method on wemporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposcs at the reporting date,

Deterred tax liabilitics are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of guodwill or an assel or liability in a transaction that is not a2 business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences. the carry forward of vnused tax credits and any unused Tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised Lo the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which (he deductible emporary
differences, and the carry {orward of unused t1ax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, cxeept when the delered 1ax asset relating to the
deductible temmporary differcnce arises from the inival recognition of an asset or lizbility in a Iransacuion that i3 not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaclion affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or 1oss

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced o the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit witl be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets arc re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised 1o the extent that it has become probable that future 1axable profils will allow the deferred 1ax asset 1o be recovered

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax raies (hat are expected to apply in the year when the assel is rcalised or the liability is
scitled, based on tax rales {and (ax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted a1 the reporting dae,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside staternent of profit and loss (either m other comprehensive
income or in equity). Deferred tax ilems are recognised in corrclation to the underlying transaction either in QCl or directly in equity.

Delerred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relale 10 income taxes levied by the same taxalion authority and the Company intends {0 sclile
its current tax asseis and liabilities on a net hasis,

Tax credit 15 recognised as an asset only when and to the extenl there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay income lax Tugher than that
computed under MA'T, during the year that MAT is permilied to be set oft under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (specified period). [n the year, in which
the tax credit becomes cligible to be recognised as an assel in accordance with the recoramendations contained (n the guidance note issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAD, the said asset is created by way of a  C1 ; statement of Prum aug.,n shown as
Deferred tax asset. The Company reviews the same al cach balance sheet date and w rites Ay \-'r},li& M i : exlent
there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay income i '}ghur than |
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Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited
(formerly known as PRI, Agastya Private Limited)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

2.06 Property, plant and equipment and investment property

2.07

‘The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its Property, Plant and Equipment and [nvestment Property as recogmised in
the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as s deemed cost in accordance with
thc cxemption provided under lnd AS 101

Property, plant and equipment, invesiment property and investment property, under construction is stated at cosi, nel of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any, Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs [or Jong-term
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them scparaiely based on their specific usclul lives. Likewise, when a major inspection 15 performed, its cost is recognised in
the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition crileria are satisfied. All other repait and maintenance costs are
recognised in slatement of profit and loss as incurved.

Useful [ives estimated by the
Asset description management
{years)

Building 60
Plant and machinery 31015 years
Building 60
Furniture and tixiures 1
Office equipment 5
Vemetes 8 to 10 vears
Computer and hargware 310 6 vears
Network and Servers 6

An itern of property. plant and equipment and investment property and any significant parl initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when ao lelure economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the assel (calculated as the
difference between e net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derccogmised.

The residual values, usclul lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and cquipment and investment propeny are reviewed al cach
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and veflect fair
approximation of the period over which the assets are tikely 10 be used.

Investment propertics are properties held to eamn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property under construction for such purposes).
Investment propertics are measured initiatly at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to inttial recognition, investment properties are stated at
¢osl Jess accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment ioss, if any.

Cost includes cost of land {including development rights and land under agreements to purchase), intermal development costs, external development
charges, construction costs, overheads. borrowing cost and development/ construction materials,

The Company depreciates building component of investmeni property over 60 years from the date of original purchase.

Though the Company measures invesiment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes
(refer note 3). Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited extemal independeni valver applying a valuation
mode! recommended by the [ntemational Valuation Standards Commuitee.

investrnent propertics are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from usc and no [ulure
economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised
in statement of profit and loss in the period of derecognition.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on mitial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition. inlangible assets are carned at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumuiated impaitment Josses, il any.

The useful life of intangible asscis are asscssed as cither finile or indefinite.

Intangible assels with Bnite lives are amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated vseful economic life. Intangible asscts are assessed for

impaimment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
inangible assct with a finfie usetul life are reviewed at least ai the end of each reporting perfod.

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future cconomic benefits embodied in the asset are considered 1o
modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated us changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expenses on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

Gains or losses arising from dececognition of an intangible asset are measured as the ditterence between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
armount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The useful life of major asset is as under :

. Useful life estimated by the
Asset description e vy
2] T e management (years)
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Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited
(furmerty known as PRL Agastya Private Limited)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

2.08

209

210

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable (o the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time 1o
gel ready for its intended wse or sale are capitalised as pant of the cost of the asset. All othier borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they occur, Borrowing cosis ¢onsist of interest and clher costs that an entity ncurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Leases
The Company assesses al conlract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right o control the vse o
an identified asset for a peried of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessce
The Company appiies a single recognition and measurement approach for all icases, except for shori-term leases and leases of iow-vaiue assets. The
Company recognises lease habilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i} Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date ol the lease (i.c., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
usc assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease Habilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made a1 or before
the commencement datc lcss any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transters 1o lhe Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset
The right-of-usc assets are also subject to impaicment.

ii} Lease liabilities

Al the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments o be made over the
lcase term. The lease paymenis include fixed payments (including insubstance fixed payments) less any lcase incentives receivabie, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value goarantees. The lease payments also include the
exereise price of 4 purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company und payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease torm reflects the Company exercising the option 10 terminate, Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the cvent or condition that triggers the payment oveurs,

In calcuiating the presenmt value of iease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the Jease commencement date because the
mnterest rate implicil in the lease 15 not readily delerminable, After the commencement daie, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
aceretion of intercst and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in (he lease term, a change in the lease paymens {e.g., changes o (uture payments resulting from 2 change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying assel.

iii} Short-term leases and leases of low-value asyets

The Compauny applies the short-term lease recognition exemption 10 its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases thal have a
lease term of 12 months or less [rom the commencement date and do not contain 2 purchase option). [t also applies the lease of low-value asscls
recognition exemplion to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on shori-term leases and Icases ol low-value
assels are recogmised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease lerm

Company as a lessor

Leases in which Company does not transfer substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of an assel are classified as operating leases. Rental
income from operating lease is recopnised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial dircct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added io the carmying amount of the lcased assct and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent renis are recognised as revenue in the oeriod in which they are earned.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporiing date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists. or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amouni. An assel's recoverable amount is (he higher of an
assel's or cash-generating wnit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual
assel unless the asset does not generale cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Company's of assets. When ihe
carrymg amount of an asset or COU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to ity recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the esiimated future cash flows are discounted 1o their present value using a pre-fax discount rate that reflects current
rarket assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less cosis of disposal, recent market
Qﬁkl i3 used. These ’gujmlaﬁaus\arc

mdicators.




Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited
(formerly known as PRL Agastya Private Limited)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

2.1

2.12

213

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be conflirmed by occwrrence or non-oceurrence of one
or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required 1o setiie the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that
cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not cecognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the
financial statements.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (Jegal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an cutflow
of resources embodying cconomic benefits will be required 1o settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset, bul only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision 1$ presented in the statement
of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

[f the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due 1o the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Retirement and other employee benefits
i. Defined contribution plan

Retirement benefit in the form ol provident fund is 2 defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution
payable to the provident fund. The Company recognises contribution payabic to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee
renders the related service. 1T the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liabifity after deducting the conribution already paid. If the contribution already
paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-
payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or 2 cash refund.

it. Defined benefit plan

Gratuity lability for ctigible employees are detined benefit obligation and are provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projecied unit
credit method made ai the end of each financial year. Obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows using discounted rate
that is determined by reference (o marker yields at the balance sheel date on government securities where the currency and terms of the government
securities are consistent with the currency and estimated terms of the defined benefit obligation.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit Hability are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a correspording debit or credit to retained eamings through OCT in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profil or loss in subsequent periods

iii. Leave encashment

Leave encashment, which are expected to be avalled or encashed beyend 12 months from the end of the year are reated as other long term benefits.
The Company's liability is actuarialiy detennined {(using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of cach year. Actuarial losses/gains are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

MNet interest is calevlated by applying the discount rate 1o the net defined benefit liability or asset, The Company recogrises the following changes in
the net defined benefil obligation as an expense in the statemen of pro{it and loss:

> Service cOsls COmprising curvent service costs, pasi-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and nor-toutine settlemenis: and

> Net nterest expense or income
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

2.14 Financial instruments

A financial instrunenl is any contract thal gives rise 10 a financial asset of one entity and a fnancial lability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets and financial liabilitics are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions ot the instruments.

Financial assets and financial labilities are initiafly measured at Tair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilitics (other than financial sssets and financial Habilities at fair value through statement of profit and loss) are
added to or deducied from the fair value of the financial assets or financial Habilities, as appropriate. on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable 10 the acquisition of financial assets or financial habilities at fair vaiue through profit or loss are recognised inmediately i profit or loss.

Financial assets

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified m two categories:
- Debt instruments al amortised cost

- Debt instruments, derivatives and equily instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A 'debt instrument' is measuted at the amortised cost if both the following condilions are mel:
- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is 10 hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

- Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates Lo cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest {SPPI} on the principal
outstanding.

After initial measurernent, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the cffective interest rate (EIR} method,
Armortised cost is caleulaied by taking into account any discounl or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are integral part of the EIR. The
EIR asortisation is inciuded in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising {rom impairtaent are recognised in the profit or loss. This
catezorv generailv avolies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FYTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the eriteria for categorization as at amortised cost or as
FYTOCI, is classified as at FYTPL

in addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVTOCT criteria, as at FVIPL,
However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminaies a measvrement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as *accounting
mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrurnent as at FVTPL..

Debt nstrumenls metuded withm the FVTPL calegory are measured at fair value with 2ll changes recognised int the Staicment of Profit and Loss,

Derecognition
A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised {i.c.
removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transierred its righis to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in {udl
without matenal delay te a third party under a 'pass-through’ arrangement; and either {(2) the Company has lransferred substantially ail the cisks and
rewards of the asset, ar (b} the Company has neither transferred nor relained substantially ail the risks and rewards of the asset, bul has transferred
control of the assel.

When the Company has transferred its righls to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and
to what extent it has refained (he risks and rewards of ownership. When il has neither wransferred nor retained substantially all of the visks and
rewards ot the asset, nor transferred control of the assel, the Company continues 1o recognise the transferred assel to the extent of the Company's
continuing involvement. in that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability, The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retaimed.

Impairment of financial assets
I accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (LCL) model tor measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the
following tinancial assets and credit risk exposure:

a} Financial assets that are debt nstruments, and are measured al amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securilies, deposits, trade reccivables and bank
balanee.

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOC],

¢) Lease recetvables under Ind AS 116,

d) Trade receivables or any contractual right Lo receive cash or another financial asset thal resuls from transactions that are within the scope of Ind
AS 115 (relemed to as “contractual revenue receivables'.

¢} Loan commitiments which are not measured as at FVTPL.

) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FV1TPL




Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired {POCI) financial assets. Le.. financial assets which are credit impaired on
puichase/ oniginalion.

ECL impawrment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the year is recognised as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This
amount is reflected under the head ‘'other expenses’ in the Statement of profit and loss,

Financial assets measured as at amortised cost and other contractual revenue receivables- ECL is presented as an allowance, {.¢., as an integral past of
the measurernent of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off critena, the
Company does not reduce wnpairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial lizbilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company are classified as either {inancial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
conlractual arrangemend and the defimitions of a financial liability and an equity mstrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by a Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase ot the Company’s own equily instruments is recognised and deducted direcily (rom equity. No gain or toss is recognised in statement of
profit and loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments,

Financial lizhilities
Subsequent measurentent
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised ¢051 using (he effective interest method or at FVYTPL.

However, financial lizbilities thal arise when a transfer of a financial assct does not quality for derecognition or when the conlinuing involvement
approach applies, financial guarantec contracts issued by the Company, and commitments issued by the Company to provide a loan at below-market
interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below,

Financial Liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are nol held-for-trading and arc not designated as at FVIPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods, The carrying amount of financial labilities that are subsequently measured a1 amortised cost are determuned based on the
effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of cost of an asset is included in the “finance cost’ line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculaling the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocaiing interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exacily discounts estimated future cash payment {including ali fees and points paid or received that
{orm an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or {where appropriale} a shorter period, 10 the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derccognition of finaneial liabilitics

The Company derecognises financial Labilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligation are discharged, canceiled or have expired. An
exchange with a lender of debl insttuments with subsiantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability
and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarty, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial hability (whether or not
atlribuiable 1o the tinancial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a
new [mancial liability . The diiference beiween the carrying amount of the financial liability derccognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offsct and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offsct the recognised amounts and there is an inteation 1o settle on a net basis, 10 realise the assets and sewle the labilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original matority of three months
or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in valuc.

For the purpose of the stalement of cash fiows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of
cutsianding bank overdrafis as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.
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2.16 Segment information

20

Identification of segments

The company is primarily engaged in real estate activities where revenue is principally derived {rom operating lease rental income and cormmercial
real estate development and related activities, Accordingly the company has only one 1dentifiable segment reportable under Ind As- 108 Operating
segments.

Scgment policies

‘The Company is operating in a single geographical segment i.¢. India, hence operations of the Company do nol qualify, [or reporting as peographic
segments, the criteria set out under Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments”.

Significant accounting judgement, estimates and assumptions

‘The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimales and assumptions that affecl the reported
amouats of revenuc, expenses, assels and frabilitics, and the accompanying disclosurcs, and the disclosure of contingent liabiliies. Uncerlainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result i outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or Liabilities affected in
future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant
eftect on the amounts recognised in the financial statermnents:

Estimates and assumptions
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing hasis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised and future perieds are affected.

The key assumplions concerning the fulure and other key sources of estimation uncertainty al (he reporting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjusiment to the carmying amounts of assets and liabilities within the nex! {inancial year, are described below. The Company
based its assumptions and eslimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumplions
about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are reflected in the assurnptions when they occor.

Recent proncuncements under IndAS
New [nd AS standards applicable for the first time in current financial year had no impact on the Company’s financial stalements:

Ind AS I - Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments (o ind AS 1 provided guidance and examples to help entities apply matcriality judgements to accounting policy disclosures. The
amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities 1o disclose their
‘signiticant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the
concept of materiality in making decistons about accounting policy disclosures. The amendments have had an impacl on the Company’'s disclosures
of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company’s ftnancial staiements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

The amendments 10 Ind AS 8 clarify the distinction between changes 1n accounting esumates, changes in accounting policies and the cosrection of
errors, They also clacity how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments had no impact on (he
Company's financial staternents.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies. Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments (o [nd AS 12 Income Tax narrow the scope of the initisl recognition excepiion, so that it no longer applies to transactions that give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases and decommissioning liabilities. The amendments had no impact on the
Company’s financial statcments.
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4 Trade receivables

March 31, 2024

{Rs.in

Wierch 51, 2023

lakhs)

Lurreat Non-current Current Non-current
Linscewred, considered good 13327 - 0795
il impainad iy 27008
Receivables from relaled parics [LRE] - 7503 '
51354 - 556,07 -
Less : Provision for impaimment of trade secoivables (270.09) (270,09}
Tatal 24345 - 283,98 -
B
Movements in the provistan for impairment of trade receivebles are os follows:
Partitulars
Cpening Balanco o FELNS -
Add - Provision for rezcivables impaired - - 39.33 -
Closing balance 2M.09 - 31008 -
Trade receivables ngeing schedule :
Ladi d tende i d trade Dispated Lrade
Az gt March 31, 2024 ceceivables - receivebtes - ceceivablis - credit Toual
considered sond tansidered aaad impnired
Current but not dus Ty - - 2679
Liss than & months Tra5 - 249
& months - 1 vear H2 03 - - 9203
1-2 wears 5t LET 3905
fome than 2 veans & 263 1% 243 1%
Tatal 243.45 270,09 51354
Undisputed tegde Dispuled trade Disputed trede
As at March 31,2023 receivabies - receivables - regeivibles - eredit Tatal
cansidered good ronsidered pood impaired
Currenl but ot due - - =
Less than & monihs 21508 - 213406
G months « | vear M B4l 763
1-2 vears L] = ni Tus
Mone than 2 viean 19141 191 43
(Total 2185.98 270.0% 55607
March 31,2024 Muarch 31,2023
5 Orher linancial assets Current Non-current Current Non-current
Irerest acerded bot rol duc 1751 E 602 -
Secuniy depasits - N - el L6
Total 1751 9414 16,01 G-FE_

6 Deferred Lax assels (net)
Deferred tax asset

March 31, 2024 Maurch 31, 2023

Unabsorbed depneciation 3s per Income 1as ant 922747 024 13
impact of dityre charged to af prafil and 1056 1 the correnl sear but aflowed far wax a .
pufposcs on paymeat basis 2185 3 51
Total (A} 9,446.33 8,169 .64
Deferred tan liebilities
Irmpact of expeadiluge allowed for tas purpase in curdent e bul chamed to saiement of prof and tos 9140 160 00
in the subscquent vears
impact of lcase cquadisation e 4613 IRl
Differenee bn written down valut of propeny, plank and properts ard L
86015 34 puf accounling baaks and rax books 5930 49 CAEE
Tatal {B} TATLTL 6,633.61
Dreferred tax assets (net} (A-B) 1.968.62 1,536.03
Druriry Ul Maaskeial venr ended 8arch 31, 2024 deferred s a3set lids 00t hest reeegaised on Busiiss ksses of Rs 17 26 fakhs o accoum af wneenainty of Realisgtion

March 31, 2024 Wlarch 31, 2023
Accounting loss befors income tex [EREET) [E5ITET
At Indin's staluton income % rate oF 26 00% (March 31, 202): 26 0%} {4237} FHA 3
Reversal of OTA on losses due to wacertainity of reahisatton faliferd) PG 24
Ind AS adjustments penaining to sceority deposil. lcascs and othurs - -
Capual Gain on sale of propery - Pemangat difforcnee . HILED
Qthers (R 179457

- 1 & . 4

At the ellective income tax rate of +ve 23% (March 31, 2023: +ve 120.63%) (433,02 BTN
Income tax expense reponed in b staement oF profi aad koss 433002} 307 33)




Pirgmal Agastys Offices Private Limited
{formerly known a8 PRL Agastys Private Limited}

Muotes to Financial Statements for the year ended Macch 31, 2024

7 Non currenl tax assets
Advante (RCAME fak
Total

&  Other non - current assets
Lesse cqualisaiion wese
Tatal

9 Cash and cash equivalents
Balztocs with banks:
- {In cumrem accounts
Cagh an hasd
Taral

10 Bank balance other then cash and cash equivalents
Fixed deposit with angimal materty of foss than |2 months®
* Earmarked balanees with bank
£With Bank 1033 00 Lakh & Goverment Agencios |0 50 takhst
Total

Bregk up of fingncinl sssets caemied at emortised cost
Cash ond cash equivalcnts {note 93

Gther bank balances trote 100

Cther Current financial assars trote 3 i

Other Mon - Curment Rraheial agseit fnowe 3 1)

Curent Trade mecivables (agte 4}

Tetal financial asscls carricd at gmortised cost

11 Other cursent assets
Prepad expenses
Advances to vender
Bal with o
Lease cqualisaicon mserve
Toiat

1.6:46 B3 1003 74
1646383 1,002.74
1,162 72 11717
1.562.72 Li7.§7
1534 20 53123
1534.20 53113
LIBE (1 1045 30
110811 I
1534 20 33123
L1801 1043 50
1751 1602
9314 416
24343 243 08
2199731 1.942.89
1617 16,06
2633 497
- 5747
35333 346 69
55583 243,63




Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited
(formerly known as PRL Agastya Private Limited)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Rs. In lakhs)
Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
12 Share eapital No. of sharein  Amount  No. of sharein  Amnunt
2. Anthorised share capital
i. Equity share capital
Equity shates of Rs. 10 each 770 00 7.700.00 < S
Clags "A" - - 4.00 40.00
Class "B" - - ¢10 1.00
Ciass "C” - - 310 1.00
Class "D" - - oG 1.00
Class "E" - - 1570 157.00
Total THLO0 7, 70000 20.00 200.00
it. Preference share capital
7% Non Curutative Compulsory Conventible Preference Shares of Rs. (0 cach 230.00 230000 - -
7% Non Cumulative Redeemable Non-Conventible Preflerence Shares of Ry, 10 - - 23000 2.300.00
cach
Total 230.00 2.300.00 23000 +.300.00

Nete: Duning the year ihe Company has changed the tecms of the preference shaces from 7% Non Cumulative Redeembable Noa-Convertible Prefecence Shares
1o 7% Nen Cumulative Compulsory Converiibie Preference Shares

b. Terms / rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one ciass of equity sharcs having a lzce value of Rs 10 per share Each holder of equity share is entitled o one vote per share The
Company declares and pays dividend i Indian Rupees

c. Terms / rights attached to preference share

March 2024

Each compulsory convertible preference share has a par value of Rs. 10, The preference shares carry a dividend of 7% per annum, The dividend rights are non-
cumulative The prelerence shares rank ahead of the equity shares in the event of a hquidation

March 2023

Each ron convertible preference share has a par value of Rs, 10 The preference shares carry a dividend of 7% per annum, redeemable at any time but before
end of 20 years from the date of allotmeot L.e March 16, 2007 The dividend nghts are non-cumulative. The preference shares rank ahead of the equity shares in
ihe event of a liquidation

d. Issue of equity capital
Equity shares of Rs. 1 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

No. o[: i;:ire in Amount Mo. 0[: ]s([::re in ot
Equity shares of Rs. 10 gach 324 90 3,249 00 - -
Class " A" = - 0.50 500
Class"B" - = 010 100
Class " C" = - 010 140
Class™ D" - - 010 130
Class™ L™ = - 010 100
Total 324.90 3.249.00 3.90 9.00

Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the heginning and at the end of the vear

Outstanding at the end of

Particulars At the Beginning of year Issued / reclassification 12
iNo. of Share Amount No. of Share Amount No. of Share  Amount
Class "A" (.50 300 {050 {300y - -
Class "B" G§.10 i 00 {010} (1.00) - -
Class "C" 310 .00 {0005 {10403 = -
Class "D" oL 1 0% (0 (1 00} - -
Class "E 010 1.00 {0.10) ().00) . 2
Equity sharcs of Rs. 10 each - - 324 90 3,249 00 324 90 3,24900
0.90 4.00 32400 3.240.00 324,90 3,249.00
Preference shares of Rs. 10 cach issued, subscribed and fully paid March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
. No. of share in No. of share in

Particula /

arti s takhs Amount Jakhs Amount
7% Non Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares 230 2,300 - -
Toial 230 2,300 - -

Reconciliation of the preference shares outstanding at the beginning and at the ¢nd of the year

Qutstanding at the end of

Particulars At the Beginning of the year 1ssued / reclassification vear
No. of Share Amount Na. of Share Amaunt MNo. of Share  Amount
Redeemable non convertible preference share (NCRPS) 23000 2,300 .00 23U {2,300 00) - -
Compulsory convertible preference share (CCPS) - - A Q‘E&ﬁ@hjnﬂ 00 23000 2,300.00
230.00 2300007 5.7 - ey N\ -

i ""-’rf YA
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Piramal Agestya Offices Private Limited
{formerly known as FRL Agastys Private Limited)

Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

(2t

—

(b}

{c

{Rs. 1n lakhs)
e. Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries
Cut of equity shares 1ssued by the Company, shares held by its holding company and their subsidiarics are as below:
Equrty shares
March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023
No,of sharein  Amount  Ne. of sharein  Amount
Piramal Capital and Heusing Finance Limited
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 32290 324900 = =
Class "A" B - (.50 300
Class "B" - - G310 1.00
Class "C” - - G0 1.00
Class "D” - - 10 100
Class "E" - - 0,10 1.00
Total 334.00 3,249.00 0.90 9.00
f. Details of the shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of share in %  No. of shares Yo
Piramal Capital and Housing Finance Limited
Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach 32490 100% = ~
Clags "A" - - 0.50 100.00%%
Class "B" - - 06 100.00%
Class "C" - - 0.0 100100%
Class "D - - a1 100.00%
Class "E" - - D10 100.00%
324.90 1.00 0.99 5.00

. Details of shares hetd by promoters
As at March 31, 2024

fogPrRsres Change No. of shares

% change

o,
Particutars Promater :.“ t!’e during the at the end of 7 of total during the
name beginning of shares
the year year the year year
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid S0.000.00 32 40000000 32,4%0,000.00 100 00%, 3IG000.00%
- Piramal Capital and Housing Finance Limuted
Prefecence shares of Rs 10 each {ully paid (CCPS) 23,000,000 06 - 23,000,000.00 100 (0% 0 00%
- Piramal Capiial and Housing Finance Limued
As af March 31, 2023
No. of shares
Change No. of shares % change
: Promoter at the . % of total :
Particulars el during the  at the end of during the
name beginning of shares
r— year the year year
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid = 90,000.00 90,660 606 100.606% 10 00%%
- Piramal Capital and Housing Finance Limited
Preference shares of Rs 10 each fully paid {NCRPS) - 23,000,00000 23000060000 100.00% 100.00%

- Piramal Capital and Housing Finance Limiled
B. Subordinaie debt

March 37, March 31,

2024 2023
At the beginning of the year - 36,950.00
Addition during the year - {56,950 40)
At the end of the year - =
Other cquity

March 31, March 31,

2024 2023
Securities premium
At the beginning of the year 921560 821560
Addition during (he year 11,340 00 -
At the end of the year 20.,555.60 9.215.50
Retained earnings
Al the beginning of the year (23,300 74) {23,406 13}
Profit /{loss) for the vear {1,423 00} 86 79
Cilher comprehensive expense for the vear 1.23 18 60
At the end of the year (26,722.81) (25.300.74)
Deemed capital conteibufion (net of tax)
Al the beginning of (he vear 2971 393620
Addition during the year - -584 49
Af the end ef the year 2.5971.71 2.971.71
Total (3,095.20) (1311343

Natare and purpose of reserves
Securities premivm; The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in seg {f\/ re'n'n m‘rrn
Retained earnings: Retained earnings are the probisflosses that the Company has earned/incurred tll dagl’le

Degrned capital contribution: The amount received in excess of the fair valuc of Gnancial instruments |{

div idends or of ‘uh
ugsd on lﬂlllﬂf}l.‘(.k}%]llll\ ¥
jisi




Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited
{formerly known as PRL Agastya Private Limited)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Rs. in lakhs)
Aaat As ut
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
14 Borrowings
Non-curreat borrowings
Term loans (secured)
Indian rupee loan from banks (note i} 61.623.68 62,138 82
Current maturity of long term borrowings (2.020.75) (558.82)
59,502.93 61,580.00

Other loans {unsecured)
Loan from holding comapany {note i) : 15,000 00 27,100.00

Mon converible redeemnabic prefecence shaves (note 12} - 2.300.00
15,000.00 29,400.00

Taral 74,502.94 90,580.00

Current borrawings

Loans from banks {secured)

Overdraft with banks 5 <

Total a =

Aggregatc secured loans 59,502.93 61,580.00

Aggregate unsecored loans 15,000.00 29,400.00

Nate:

{i} Term loans

March 2024

Sanctioned facility of Rs 62,500.00 Izkhs was availed in Dec 2022 from ICICI Bank for the period of 144 months (i 6l Dec 15, 2034)
The said new facility was secured by pani passu charge aver unsold portion of Wing A Piramal Agastya Carporate Park (Phase [} along
with the land comesponding to i, located at Kurla,

March 2023

Sanctioned facility of Rs 62,500 00 lakhs was availed in Doc 2022 Gom [CICT Bank for the period of 144 months (i.e. il Dec 15, 2034)
The said new facility was secured by pari passu charge over unsold portion of Wing A Piramal Agastys Corporate Park {Phase 1) along
with the land comesponding to it, located at Kurla,

{ii} Secured Bank Overdraft

Bank Overdraft facility of Rs.2,500 00 lakhs was sanctioned in Dec 2022 from ICIC! bank was repayable ond d and was g by
pari passu charge over unsold portion of Wing A Piramal Agastya Corporate Park (Phase 1) along with the land corresponding 1o it, located
at Kurla,

{ii} Unsecured Joans from relsted parties
The ungecured loans of Rs. 15,000 lakhs iled from holding comp




Prramal Agastya Offices Private Limited
tformerly kanown as PRL Apastya Private Limited)

Motey to Financial Starements for the year ended March 31, 1024

(Rs. im lakhsj

15 Other financial liabilities Biarch 31, 2024 March 31, 023
Cunvent Non-current Curvent  MNon-current
Cutvent maturities of long-term dehi;
Tadan rupee loan rom banks {(nole t4) A ) 554 42 -
Inderest sccrued bub rot dye on bomawings ather than felated pars a1y - 245 He -
Hgunn deposu L3I A2 [T 1,0 HE
Defereed income 340 SRIY3 IR 6 357
Ketenhgn money payable 337 - 353 -
Empluree beaehis payabte 3 M - 2544 a
Totzl 376735 2,710.94 252882 TA06.45
* The Compan has eeelassiied the secunty deposit amouni from other coment financial lialulines 1 othet
non current inancial lisbilites 35 per schedule 1 of ihe Companies Acl 2013
16  Provisions March 51, 2024 Merch 31, 2023
Cusrent Non-curmnl Cwrent Non-carvent
Provision (of employes benefis
Leare encashrent 133 in 148 (R
Gratuiy a5 453 024 LR
Total .03 525 164 657
17 Ctber non current liabititics March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Cinhet pables 6317 Ha 17
Total 6397 63,17
18 Trade payables
§i) Oustanding dues of Micro 7 and small B 3245 3437
1) (o) Ouistanding ducs af Trade Payable other than micro prises and small Y3 85 4114
(b} Due 1g rebated pares NS 65l
Totat 1 060,77 62202
Trade payables ngeing il
As gt March 3, 2024 Mot due Less than 1 yerr 1-% yoars 2.3 yerry More than 3 Tolal
yeavs
Ouistanding dues of MEME (B2 ] 2421 - - - 17 45
Outstandine dues of Trade parables other than MSME kML 117 81 TH 43 n7s 1553 1028 52
As 2l March 31,2023 Mot due I.ess than | year 1-2 yeaty 1.3 years More than 3 Tuolat
LT
0 ding dues of MSME 1315 1.2 - - 34.37
Dmstaadine dies of Trade navables other han MSME A58 405 LA 454 3427 (1] BT 6
Break up of fingacial tiabilities canied @t amortised cosl
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Pomowings (ngwe |4 T30t ULE L R
‘Ttade payables inote (8) oG 7T (2242
Qther Rinancizl labililies (rote 13} GATE 2N 4920 1%
Foral Anancial Hpbilijkes carried al ameriised cost H2,042.00 96,531.19
19 Other current liabilities Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Staiutary dues 1916 £ ls0n3
Advance from debrors :
-from relaed pares T H +
~frara ofhers 1S -
Foind 154.81 150.03

oo
N
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Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited
{formerly known as PRL Agastya Private Limited)

Notes to Fingacial Statements for the yeae ended March 3, 2024
{Rs, in lakhs)

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2624 March 31,2023
20  Revenue from gperations
Remtal and other related revenues 5.206.20 5.346.28
Tatal 9,206.20 5.346.28
XU Other income
interest income on Fixed deposits 7140 TR
Interest income on Income tax refund 18.28 -
Profit on sale of invesimont property 758.3% 506823
Salc of scrap - 003
Fair value of Lease deposit discounting 29333 200,52
Oihers 33.20 80.99
Total 1.231.60 3,381.73
22 Employee benefits expenses
Salarfes, wages and bonus 120.76 29460
Cenmbution to provident and other funds 597 1054
Gratuity and leave encashntent expenses 374 G4i
Staff welfare expenscs 7.80 13.52
Totsl 138.27 31807
23 Finance costs
Tnkcrest on loan from banks 5.575.36 4.888.31
interest on loan from related party 25149 815.84
Finance cost om lease Bability - .08
Finance cost on izase renta) deposit received 281.96 191.04
Other borrowing cost 4368 824,66
Total 8,415.91 5,725.93
24 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on property, plant and equipmenr (note 4) 516 214
Depreciation on investment property (Rote 5} 1,343 T} 1,542,190
Depreciation on rght of use asset - 2977
Total 1541.86 1.581.01
25  Other expenses
Advertisement and business promotion expenses 144 6.11
Royaity 3558 33.85
Lease rent - plant & machinery 46,10 3684
COMMURICation Cxpinses 186 4.23
Commission and brokersge 238 534.87
Houscheeping cxpenses 23768 199.1%
Insurance kY72 2778
Legal and prolessional fees 150.85 8341
harketing support fees - 997
hanagement suppor Fees - 3833
Ner loss on foreign curency transactions D05 -
Power and el 69533 34146
Prning and stanonery 6.52 199
Ratas and tanes 39396 496,73
Provision for doubtful debis - 3933
Security expenses 19378 19714
Travelling and conveyance expensas - 501
Misceliancous expenses .09 2151
Repairs and maintenance
-Building 214.62 4286
-Others 15847 1%% 47
Payment to suditors :
- 23 yuditer 4400 350
- for other services 013 -

2,191.78 2,510.14




Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited
{formerly known as PRL Agastya Private Limited)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Rs. in lakhs)

Note 26 : Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profivloss) in basic and diluted below EPS for the year atributable to equity holders by the weighied
average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear

Diluted EPS amounis are caleulated by dividiag the profit{loss) attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares cutsianding
during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued an conversion of all the dilutive potential cquity shares into equity
shares

The foliowing retlects the loss and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computationy:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Profit/{Loss} attributable 1o equity holders for basic carnings {1,423 00) 8679
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS* in lakhs 11.52 0.80
Weighted averspe nomber of Equiy shares ad)usted for the effect of dilution 1152 050
Face value per share (in Rs } 10 10
Basic earning per sharc (in Rs} {12349 96 44
Erluted earmng per share (in Rs) (12349 96 d4

¥ There have been no other transactions involving equity shares or potential equity shares between the reporting datc and the date of authonisation of these
financial statements.

Note 27 : Commitments and contingencies
{a} Commiiments
Estimated value of contracts remaining o be exceuted on capital account and not provided for (net of advances)

At March 31, 2024, the Company had commitments is Nil {March 31, 2023 - Rs Nil}

{b} Contingent liabilities

Claim against the Compary not acknowledged as debts Rs 138 04 lakhs {(March 31, 2023 . Rs 138 04 lakhs)

A} The Company has preferred appeal before Comnissioner of Income Tax (Appeals). Mumbai for demand amounting to Rs. 106 .04 Takhs {March 31, 2023
- Rs. 106.04 lakhs) determined pursuani to financial years 2014-15 2015-16 and 2017-18 in respect of expense disallowed and mismoatch n credil

B) The Company has preferred appeal before Commissioner, Mumbai for demand amounting to Rs. 7 lakhs (March 31, 2023 : Rs. 7 lakhs) determined for
FY 2013-16 in respect of MYAT payablc on scrap sale

C) The Company has preferred appeal before Assistant Commissiener, Mumbai for demand amaounting 1o Rs 45 lakhs (March 31, 2023 : Rs. 45 lakhs)
determined for FY 2017-18 in respect of Service tax Credit on Retention money

Based on the inlerpretation of the provisions / legal position and facts, the Company is ot the opinion that the aforesaid demand would be either deleted or
substantially reduced

Note 28 : Unhedped foreign currency exposure
The unhedged foreign currency exposure s Nil

Particalars of unhedged Fereign currency exposure as at balance sheet date

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Import trade payables

Armount in tareizn corrency (LS
Amgunt in Ry

Closing Rate - -

Note 29 : Details of does to micro, small and medium enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
The principal amouni and the inierest due thereon remaining unpaid 1o any supplier as st Whe end of each
accounting year

Principal amount 3245 3437

[rterest amount
The amount of mterest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act. 2006 along with the

amounts of the payment made to the supplicr beyond the appointed day during cach accounting year -
The amount of interest due and payable for the periad of defay in making payment {which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the penod) but without adding the inlerest specified under the MSMED Ac,

The amount of further inferest remaining dug and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when
the interest dues as above arc actually paid 10 the small enterprise tor the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

The above information regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extenr such partics has been identified on the basis of information
available with the Company e




Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited
{formerly known as PRL Agastya Private Limited)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Rs. in lakhs)

Note 30 : Fair values

The carrying values of finencials instruments of the Company arc reasonable and approximations of fair values

Particulars _ March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{:,:-?"l:f; Fair Valus Carrying amount Fair Value

Financial assets - Non current

Financial assets (carried at amortised cost
Other financial assels G4 14 9414 54,16 6416
Trade receivables - - - -

Financial assets - current
Financial assets (carried at amortised cost

Quher Orancial asseis 17.51 17.31 16.02 16.02
Financial liabilities - Non current
Financial liabilities (carried at amortised cost)

Trade payables - - - .

Indian rupee loan from banks 30,502 93 59302 93 &1 380 (0 61,580.00
Mon convertible redeemable prefecence shares - - 230000 230000
Indian rupce loan from related party 15,000.00 13,000.00 27,100.00 2710000
Other fimancial babihities 2,094 2711094 200045 200045

Financial liabilities - current
Financial liabilities (carried at amortised cost)

Bomrowings - - - -
Trade payables 1,060.77 1,060.77 62202 62202
Ciher Hnancial liatulibes 376735 3176733 2,928 82 2,928 82

Mate 31 : Fair value hicrarchy
Al financial instrurments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value higrarchy described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that 15 significant to the fair value measurement as a whole

Level | Inpwts are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This includes quoted equnty insttuments, govemment
securilies, quoted borrowings {fixed) and mutual funds that have guoted price

Level 2 [nputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, cither directly (1.e. as prices) or indirecily
{i.c_derived from pricesy. This includes detivative financial instruments and unguoted borrowings (fixed and floating rate}

Level 3 Inputs are not based on observable macket data (unobservable inputs) Fair values ate determined in whole or in pant using a valuation model based
on assumphions that are neither supporied by prices [rom observable curvent markel transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on avalable
market data This inclhudes unguoted equity shares

All financial instrumenis are carned al amortised cost

Note 32 : Financial risk management ohjectives and policies

The Company’s risk management policies are established 1o identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limnts and conirols,
and to monitor tisks and adherence to limis. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regulatly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company's activities

The Board of directors ensures that the Company's financial risk activitics arc governed by appropriate policies and procedures and thal financial risks are
identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Dircctors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks, which are summarised below

{A} Markef risk

Markei risk is the risk that the far value of future cash Dows of a Dnancial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: interest ratc risk, currency cisk and other price risk, The Company's financial instruments are exposed to Interest rate risk
since the company has floating rate debt instraments

The lollowing table summaries the carrying amount of [inancial assews and habilibies recorded al the end of the periad by categories:

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate o the position as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 The sensiuvity analyses have been
prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to ficating interest rates of the debt arc all constant and in place as at March 31, 2024
and March 31, 2023

(B} Interest rate risk
Inierest raie cisk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluciuate because of changes in market interest rates, The
Campany's exposure to the risk of changes in market intercst rates relates primarily to the Company's long-lerm debt obligations with floating interest rates

As real sstate development is capital intensive, the Company are exposed (o interest rate risks The Company's real estate development projects s {unded o
2 large extent by debi and any ncrease in interest expense may have an adverse effect on our results of operations and financial conddtion. The Company's
current debt facilities camy inlerest at variable rates and fixed rates (with periodic reset of inlerest rates) As at March 3, 2023, the majorily at’ the
Company's indcbtedness was subject Lo variable interest rates, In view of the high debt to equity ratios tor W{Egl

inerease in interest expense is likely to have a significant adverse effect on financial results .‘} &




Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited
{formerty koown as PR, Agastya Private Limited)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Rs. in lakhs)

{C) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meel its obligations under a financial instrumenl, beading 1o a hnancial loss, The Company is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities and from its financing activitics, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions and other financial
nStrUments

Credit nisk en cash balances with bank are himited because the counterparties ate entitics with acceptable credit ratings. The exposure to credit risk for trade
receivabie is low as the Company gives possession of flats (o customers on receipt of entire agreement value

(D} Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the rigk that the Company may not be able ta mcet its present and future cash and collateral obiigations without incurring unacceptable
losses. “The Company’s objective is to, at ail imes maintain eptimum levels of liguidity to meet ity cash and collateral requirerments. The Company closcly
monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robusl cash management system. It maintains sdeguate sources of financing including debt and overdraft from
banks at an optimised cost

‘The Company's maximum exposure to credit nsk for the components of the balance sheet as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 is summarised as
below:

On demand Ltsi:::n ! I to 5 years > 5§ years Total
As at March 3, 2024
Borrowings - 212075 48,948 71 56,524 17 117,593.63
Other financial liabilities - 8.202 73 2,710 94 10,%13.67
Trade and other payables - 1,215 59 - - 1,215.59
- 11,53%.06 51,659.04 56,524.17 119,722.88
As at March 31, 2023
Borrowings - 55882 #2537 75 6539975 128,496.32
Ciher financial liabilities - 10,201 11 200045 12,201.55
Trade and other payables - 77203 - - TIL05
- 11.531.98 64,538.20 65,39%.75 141,469.92

At present, the Company does expect Lo repay all liabilities at their contractual maturity

Note 33 : Capital management

For the puipose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, convertible/redeemable preference shares, share premium
and all other equity reserves atributable to the cquity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to
maximise the shareholder valuc

The Company manages 15 capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to sharcholders or
issue new shares, The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, lease liabnlities less cash and cash
cquivalents

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Debt

Borrowings 74,502 94 90,980 00
Trade payables 1,06 77 62202
Oiher linancial habilities 6,478 29 4,929 27
Lease liabilities - -
Less: cash and cash cauivalents i1.534 200 {53125
Net debt #0,507.80 96,000.06
Equity 2,353 80 {13,104 43)
Total eapital 2.353.80 {13,104.4%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31,2023

Note 34: Other statutory information

I The Company does not bave any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending aganst the Company for holding any Benam

2 The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

3 The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yeu 1o be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period

4 The Cornpany has not traded or invested in Crypto cuerency or virtual currency dering the inancial year

5. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), meluding foreizn entities (Intermediaries} with the
undersianding that the intermediary shall:

{a} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate

{b) provide any guarantce, security or the like 1o or on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiarics

& The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income tax act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any cther relevant provisions ot the [ncome tax act, 1961}

7 The Company has not received any fund (rom any person(s) or entity, mcluding foreign entitics (Funding party) with the understanding {whether recorded
nwnbiag or otherwise) thal the Company shall:

directly or indirectly lend or invest i other persons or entitics identified in any manner whaisoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Bene (iciaries

Note 35 : Foreign currency transaction

March 31, 2024
1669
16.6%

Capnal Expendituce in foreign currency




Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited
(formeriy kpown ax PRI, Apestya Private Limited)

Notes to Finuncial Stetements (or the year ended March 31,2022
Naote 36 - Related party disglosures
Mames of related parties and refated party relationship

Helding comparny
Uloimate Elolding compaay

Ky manageinent personnel

Pararmnal Capatal and Housng Finance Limied
Piramal Lrierprises Limited

Mes Upma Goel (appoued wea 13 122022

Mr Sunnt Madan {appownted we F13 12 2022)

Mr Jagdecp Maltareddy (appointed w e 13 12 2022}
Mr Darshan Haresh Shah (appomted we 104 10 2023)
Mr dayank Manoy Pavea {appoanted w e [ 1001 20324}

Relared paries with whom transactions have taken place during the currenl or previous vear

Holding company
Litimawe Holding company
Oher relaved pany

Reizted party transactions

Piramal Copital and Housing Finance Tamited
Pirgmal Esterprises Limoed

a) Pwamal Corporate Seraces Limied

b} Piramal Pharmi: Lisuted

<} Gopknshna Prramal Memonal Hospial
d} Aaszan Colporate Solutions Private Linited
¢} Prramal RBealty Privave Lomited

‘The following table provides the torel amoum of tansactons 1hat have been entered into with related parties and amount to related parhies Ton the relevant (nancial year

{Hs. in lakhs)

{a) Purchase of gouds and services

Transactions during the year

Amount owed to related parties

March 31, 2024 March 30,2803 March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Manneement and narketing suppor, fees
PRI. Developers Prvate Limited 3R3G -
Bovaliy s
Firamal Coiporate Senviices Liauted 33 38 ERR- 5] 3202 1 4%
Fwamal Capirat & Housing Finance Limited 231489 B384 # =
Amenities and livence ey
Gopaknshna Pramal Memonal Hospial - 2 an - (113}
Aasan (orporate Solutrens Povate Limied - 2024 (363} {4 83)
Service cenlre fpes
Aasan Comporate Solutions Private Limied E - 30
3 A Transactions during the year Amount owed to related partios
(b) APENS “ompHin
ol Reimbursemens of expenses incarred on hehaifof the Company March31,2024  March 31,2023 March31,2623  March 31,2023
Electricity & water reimbursement
Aasan Corporare Solutions Private Limited - H = =
Property tx reimbursenient
1Mramal Enrerprises Limigd 4198 - -
Priramal Pharma Limated QY -
Insunmnce expenses remmbursement
Prramai Capital & Hovzing Finance Limited 03 - -
Repayment of Amaount owed to
i t
(e} Loans taken and repavment thereof Year ended Loan taken Iﬂter,est Leaa {including Sutlﬂrd.l.ﬂ:ll‘k{c CE .re!flted ,
(et of TDS) {note (i) below)  parties{including
[nterest)
lnierest acerued)
Piramal Capual and Hlovsing Finance Lirmited March 31, 2024 - 136342 14,343 42 - 15,000 00
March 31,2023 48, 30000 134 26 22134 20 2210000
PRI Developers Privawe Limated March 31, 2024 - - - - -
March 31, 2023 - - iu4 -
g Additions .
(d} Subordinate debt Year ended Opening batance (note Gii) below) Repayments Closing
PRL Developers Prvate Limied warch 31, 2024 - - . -
warch 31, 2023 36,950 00 - 56,550 00 -

Transactions during the year

Prramal Capital and Housimy Finance Lronied

Transactions regnrding vental and other reloted revenues

March 31,2024
14,380 00

‘I'ransactions during the year

March 31,2024 March 31,2023 March 31, 2824

Amount receivable from related parties

March 31, 223

Piramal Phasing Larmated
Paramal Caprtal and Housing Fioance Limied
Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

58744
2791712

420533

70020 1018

(27800

Mol
w03

1} For the vear ended March 31, 2024 and March 310 2023, the Company has aot recorded any anparment of recervables relating 1o amounts owed by relawd paries This assessment is
undenzken each hoancial vear thronsh exammang the financial posinon of the 1elated party and the market w which the related pany operawes

{2) Security Deposit

Year ended Opening halance Additions Repayments

Llosing

Piramal Capatal and Housing Finance Limoed
Paramal Capatal and Hausing Froanes Lanired

March 31, 2024
March 31, 2025

1306 89 X
T 1196 72

1306 82
1306 89



Firamal Apastya Offices Private Limited
{formerly known as PRE Agastya Private Limited)
Notes 1o Financial Statements for the year ended March 33, 2024
{Rs. in lakhs)

Note 37 : Gratuity aad other post empioyment benefit plans

{a) Befined contribution plan
The following amount rucopmised as an expense in statement of profit and foss on account of provident fund. There are no other obligations other than the
conribution payable to the respeciive authorities

March 31, 2624 March 31,2023

Eenployee’s conribution to provident fnd 597 10,54
{t) Defined benefit ptan
The Company hss a uafunded defined bencfit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is govemned by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the act, employce

Paad A rl

who has completed five years of service is entitled 1o specific benefit. The level of benefirs provid P on the ber's Tongth of service and salary at
age. Every employee whe has completed five years of more of service gets a gratuity on departuse at 13 days salary (last drawn salary} for each
compleied year of service g5 per the provision of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,

The following tables summaries the componenis of net berefit expense recognised in the staiement of profit and toss and the unfinded status and amounls
recognised in the balance sheel B the graruity plan,

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Statement of profit and loss
Net emplovee benefit expense recognised in the employee cost

Current service cost L&4 4.58
Interest cost on benefnt obligation 0.36 (K]
{Gain) / losses on settlement

Net bencfit expense .00 6.24

Amount recarded in ather comprehensive income (OC1)

Opening recopnised in OCT outside stat t of profit and toss

Remeasurement during the year dueto :

Actuarial logs / (gain) arising from change in demographic assumprions {0.72} .
Agluartal loss / {gain) aristng from change in financial assumptions 078 {025
Actuarial loss arising on account of expedience changes {1.72) {24.54)
Amount recopaised in OCL ide stat t of profit end loss (1.67) {25.14)
Closing trecognised in QCL id of profit and loss {1.67) 125.14)
Reconciliatinn of net liabiiity / asset

Opening defined benefit liability / (assets) 485 23.76
Expense charged to skatemen of probr snd loss 200 6.24
Actual benefits paid - -
Liability wansfemed to subsidiaries - -
Amount pmised in oulside of profis and loss {1.67 (2514}
Closing net defined benefit liubility 518 4.85
Balance sheet

Henefst asset f liability

Dcfined benefit obligation 518 485

Fair velee of plan assets - -
Present value of unfunded obligations - .
Less ; warecognised pasl service cost - -
Plan {assetifliability 5818 4.85

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation sre a5 follows:

Opening defined benefit oblipation 4.85 2375
Current service cost 1.64 4.58
a5t service cost - -

| on defined benefir oblizati 0.36 166
Remeasurement during the year due o :

Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions 0.72) -
Actuanial 1955 arismng [rom change in financial assumplions 78 (9.2
Acrugnal pain arising on account of expedence changes (1.7 (24.94)
Benefits patd -
Ciosing defined benefit abligstion 5.18 4.85
Net liabitity is bifurcated as follows :

Cwrrent 065 024
Non-Gurrent 4.53 461

Net lizbility




Piramal Agastys Offices Private Limited
{formerly known 35 PRL Apastya Private Limited)

Motes to Finanvial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Rs. in lakhs)

The princips! ptinns used in determining pratuity benefit obligation for the Company's plans are shown below:
March 31,2024 Adarch 31,2023
Discount rate 7.44% 6.98%
Expected rate of rerum on plan asseis (pa.} Mot applicable Not applicable
Employee wemowver 500% 5.00%%
Salary escalaion 6.50% 6.50%
ortality pre-refirement India Assured Indiz Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Monahy
(2012-14} {20214}
E'tban Urhan
A guantitative analysis for significant ption is as shown below:

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Assemptions - discount rate

Sensitivity tevel 1.00% 1.00%,
impact of increase in 100 (56} bps on defined beach obligation 921 {0.35)
Impact of decrcase in 100 (50) bps on defined benefie obligation 023 044
A ptions - sslary fution rate

Sensitivity level HO0% LO0%
[mpaci of merease n 100{30) bps on defined benefit obligation 0.4 044
lmpact of decrease in 100 (503 bps on defined benehit ebligation {0.23} {0.40)

Assumptians - employee turnover rate

Sensithaty level 100 1.00%%
mpach of increase in 100 (50) bps on defined benefit obligation {209 {6.01}
Lmpact of decrease in 140 (50) bps on defined benehe obligation 0.09 ixvl|
The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change wn an ption while holdirg all gther ptions constant, in practice, this is unlikely 10 occur and
changes in some of Lhe assumpiions may be concciated. When caloulating the seasitivity of the defined bencfit obligation to significant sotuarial pi

the same method {preseat value of the defined bore Bt obdigation caloulated with the proj 1 unit eeedit method at the end of the reporting peniod) has beer

applicd as when calculating the delined benefit biability recogmsed in the balance sheet.

factars, such as

The estimates of fewre salary increases, considered in scarial valustion, wake t of inflation, senjonty. p ion and other
supply and demand tr the cmployment market

The gratuity liabiitties of the Company are unfunded and hence there are o asseis held to meet the lizhilines

Amounts for the current and previaus year's are as follows:

Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Gratuity

Defined benefit obligation 518 483
Man asseis B -
Surplus / {defick) {5.18) {4.85)
Expenicree adjustments on plan liabilities {172} {24.94)

Ixpericace adjustments on plan assels - =

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
The foliawing payments are expected contibutions to the defined benefic plan in fulgre years:

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting peried) 063 0.24
Berween 2 and 3 years 256 1,83
Benween & and 10 years 248 159
Beyond 10 years 1.94 725

1.62 1410

‘Total expecied payments

The aviiage duration of the defined beneRt plan oblization ai the end of the reporting periad is 10 years (March 31, 2023 10 years)

= R No,
'258399}#}




Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited
(formerly kagwn as PRL Agastya Private Limited)
Mates to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Rs. in lakhs)

Note 38 : Leases
The Company has cettam leases of machinery with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of office equipmunt with low value The Company applies the
“short-temn lease’ and 'lease of low-valug assets’ recognition excmptions for these leases

Set out below are the canving amounts of right-oFuse assets erised and the mov during the year,

Rental property PI.‘:‘_ ami Total
As at March 31, 2822 57.66 92.05 149.71
Additions - - -
Wrirten back {45.03) {74 91) {11994}y
Depreciation expense (1262} (1715 {2877}
As Bt March 31, 2823 - - -
Additions - - .
Wiaitten back - - -
Depreciation expense - - -
As at March 31, 2024 - - -
Set out below arc the camying ol tease liabiliries (inciuded vader interesi-bearing loans and bomrowines) and the movements during the yeur

Rental property PI":‘_ an:dy Tatal
As at Mareh 31,2022 T3.38 90.00 160.38
Additions - - -
Wrirten hack (59.45) (73.98) {133.43)
Accreation of inierest 351 558 008
Payments (14 44} {21.60} {36.04)
Ag at March 31, 2823 - - -
Additions - - -
Written back - - -
Acereation of interasi - - -
Payments = - =

As at March 31, 2024 = = -
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Curtent - -
Non-current - -

The foliowing are the amounts recogrised in statement of profit and loss Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets (note 24) - 29.77
Finance cost on lease labilities (note 23) - 908
Expense relating to leases of low-vaue assets mote 253 46.10 36.84
Total amount recognised in statement of profit and Inss 16.10 75.70

Note 3% : Events after reporting period
There is no subsequent cvent after the reporting period which requires adjustments 1o the financial statomnents

Nate 40 : Other B[ v infor
Contract balances

Wlarch 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
Trade ceceivable from customners under [nd AS 113 243 45 285.98

Note 41 : Corporate Sociat Responsibility
As per seeiton 135 of the Compantes Act, 201123 and rules thercin, the Company 15 required o spend at least 2% of averape net profit of past three years

towards Corporate Social Responsibility {C3R). The Company has losses in past thice years and hence no amount is requited 1o be spent wwards CSR

MNaote 42 ; Exceptional items

Mar-24 Mar-23
Nl Nil

Exceptional items

Nate 43 : Soctal security code

The code of social securily 2020 has been notified in official gareve on September 29, 2020, The cffective date for which the chanpes are spplicable 15 yei
be notificd, and the rules are yei 10 be framed. Impact iC any of the change will be assessed and accounted in the periad in which said Code hecomes effective
and the rules framed thereunder are nonfied

MNote 44 : Segment reporting

A. Basis of Sepmentanan

The company is primarily engaged in real estate activitics where revenue is principally derived from operating lease rental income and
commercial real estate developmunt and refated activities. Accordingly the company has only one identifiable segment reportable under [nd As-

8. Geopraphical infarmation
The Company is operating in g single geographical segment i India, henee operations of the Campany do not quality, (or ceporting as peographic sspments,
the eritenia sel out wader Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments”

C. Information sbout major cugtomers
Revenue Fromn three cusiomen is Bs 6495637 Lakh Ffor the yeor ended March 31, 2024 (Provious Year: Rs 3203 36 lakhs } constitnted more than 10% of the
inal revenue of the Compiny.

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Name of Customer % of total % of total
Amoune Amount
Revenue Revenue
Aditya birla Fashioa and retail hmited 1784 10 1938% 24.34%
Mahindrz & mabindra Buzpcial services hauted 1918 55 20,848 18249
Piranal Capital & housing finance hroited 2793 72 30 358% 17.35%

59.92%

§496.37 7?&‘)} e Ri¥ide )
'L}T{ 156290W |%
) r‘mLMBNI;}?




Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited
(formerly known us PRL Agastya Private Limited)

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2024

Note 45 Ratios

8. No. Particulars Reference Ma;;; 431' Mazr&:;s}l, Va:;nce Reason for variance*
1 Current ratio a 0.70 0.63 12%
2 Debt equity ratio b -366% |Increase in total equity due fresh issue of 324 lakh
17 67 .1.00 shares ‘@ Rs. 45 Per Share (10 Rs. Per Sharc Phase
Value 33 Rs. Per Share Securities Premivm) &
Conversion of NCPS to CCPS .
3 Dbt servive coverage ratio ¢ 0.39 0.13 212%|Due to decreasc in repayment of bomowings as
) ) compare tg Pinancial Year 2022-2023
4 Return on cquity ratio d 0.26 (.01 4722%|Due to increase in couity
5 Inventory Turnover ratio NA NA NaA NANA
6 Trade Receivables furnover ratio 3 3478 15.87 119%|Due to increase in turnover
7 Trade Payables Turnover ratio { 2.77 4.57 -39% | This is on account of increase of irade pavable,
8 Net Capital turnover ratio 4 -6.20 -3.87 60%|Due to Increase in Revenue
9 Met Profit ratio h 15% 2% -1032% | Proii on sale of land 5068 .231akh Recorded in last
{inancial vear
10 |Return on Capital Emploved i 10.48% 9.52% 10%
11 Reiurn on Investment NA Na NA NA[NA

* Variance morc than +/-25% is explained

a Current ratio = Current Asscts/Current Liabilities
b Debt equity ratio = Total Debi{ Borrowing + Lcasc Liability+Int accrued on borrowing/Sharehoider's Equity
c Debt service coverage ratio = Earning For debt service = Eaming belore interest, dep, Tax and exceptional items/Debt service = Interest & lease
payments + Principal Repayment
d Return on equity ratio = Net Profit after Taxes - Prefercnce Dividend/Average Shareholder's Equity
e Trade Receivables Tumover ratic = MNet Sales( Gross Sales - Sales relurn)/Average trade receivables
f Trade Payables Tumover ratio = Net Expenses( Other expenses + Employee expensesYAverage trade payables
g Net Capital wmover ratio = Net sales( Total Sales - Sales Return) /Working Capital { Current Assets -Current Liabilities)
h Net Prafil ratio = Net Profit  /Net Sales (Total sales - Sales Retum }
i Return on Capital Employed = Eaming before Interest, dep, Tax and exceptional items/Average Capital Employed (Tangibie net worth + Total
Debt + Deferved tax liability}
Nete 46 Standards issued but not yet effective
There are no new standards issued as on the date of approval of financial statements.
Note 47 Previous year figures have been regrouped, re-arranged and re-classified wherever agcessary to confirm to current year's classification,
Note 48 Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on May 02, 2024,

As per our report of even date

For A P KJ & Associates

Chartered Accountanis For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors of

ICA] Fiem Regisiration No: 156299W Piramal Agastya Offices Private Limited
Sunit Madan

Piyush Jain irector

Partner DIN : 064419357

Membership No.: 184780
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 02, 2024

S

Darshan Shah Mayank Patwa
Chief Financial Gificer Company Secreiary






